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Based in Hong Kong, PYI Corporation Limited focuses on
ports and infrastructure development and investment, and
the operation of ports and logistics facilities, in the Yangtze
River region of China. It also engages in land and property
development and investment in association with ports

and infrastructure development. In addition, PY| provides
comprehensive engineering and property-related services
through Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

2012 2011
Turnover (HK$m) EXBE(HEBTT) 5,207.9 5,357.2
Gross profit (HK$m) EF(EEAR) 438.9 440.9
Earnings before interest and taxation (HK$m) KAMNERBAEF (BEEET) 638.3 552.3
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$m) REREMER (BEBT) 334.1 200.1
Shares in issue (m) BETRD (BER) 4,558.5 4,529.1
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFEGET) 1.01 0.99
Earnings per share (HKS) BRAENCERT) 0.074 0.044
Dividend per share (HK$) xS (B 7T) 0.025 0.010
Total assets (HK$m) BEE(BBAT) 11,827.8 14,895.0
Quick assets (HK$m) BHEE(EEAT) 5,042.8 9,295.5
Net current assets (HK$m) MEBEEFE(BESIT) 1,208.3 3,299.1
Net debt (HK$m) FEE(EEBT) 648.3 1,821.4
Shareholders’ funds (HK$m) BrEe (BEEET) 4,609.9 4,500.6
Current ratio TR ED L & 1.24 1.46
Quick ratio REPLL K 1.02 1.30
Net debt/equity ratio FAEEARLE 0.14 0.40
Gearing ratio BEARBEHE 0.58 0.73
Return on equity e 7.2% 4.4%
Total shareholder return ER e -18% -19%

4
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN*

HESCE
HK$ 2 [ Year-on-Year % - 300
BT REBML
- 250
1.5
- 200
1 - 160
- 100
05
35% -4 50
0 | - 0
. -19% -18%
-43% -50
-71%
FYFE o7 08 09 10 11 12
I Total shareholder return A% 5 48 Uz 25 * — Share price (cum dividend) A& (EB)* — Share price (ex dividend) (B (B 8)*
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE* SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
BREEFE" BRRES
HK$ 1.0 HK$m 5,000 - 4,610
BT o8 BEBT 4000 4,130 =
. ) 3.377 3,647
0.6 3,000
0.4 2,000
0.2 1,000
0.0 0
FY &% 08 09 10 11 12 FY FE 08 09 10 11 12
EARNINGS PER SHARE" PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
BREF" P& 3R FE Ak &= R
HK¢e 121 HK$m 400 -
360
o 103 AEBT 334
300
2001 200
139 149
100 -
FY F% 08 09 10 11 12 FY &£/E 0 08 09 10 11 12
DIVIDEND PER SHARE RETURN ON EQUITY
BRESE P& #E W 2
HK¢ %
&AL Exaad
3.8% 3.6%
FYEE 08 09 10 11 12 FY % 08 09 10 11 12

* Figures for year ended 31 March 2010 and prior years have been adjusted for rights issue in July 2009
* BZE2010F3A31H LR ZAIFE 2 BFE R 200957 A 2 A
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MAJOR CORPORATE EVENTS
AREERE

MAY f A

PYI completed the disposal of 50.1% interest in Yangkou Port Co, following
which PYI's equity interest in Yangkou Port Co decreased from 60% to 9.9%
and Yangkou Port Co ceased to be a subsidiary of PYI.

RESETREEF DB RRS01%EE - 1NF B RR 2 #zmbBERH60%EHE
9.9%  MAOABRRA N TBRREEE ZHBAR -

AUG /\H

PYlI's subsidiary, Paul Y. Engineering, proposed placing of its shares to
fund its proposed acquisition of a 50% interest in a new film joint venture,
Legendary East Ltd., for a total consideration of US$220.5 million.

REEBZMBAR  REZERSPHEEELRMNBEEAFEEEARE2.205EET
IWHEFTE S A & (b ¥ Legendary East Ltd. 50% 35 °

OCT + A

PYI paid a special cash dividend of 2 cents per share.

REEBRN BRI ZFHRRSBE -
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MAJOR CORPORATE EVENTS
REERE

DEC +=F

PYI and its subsidiary, Paul Y. Engineering, announced lapse or termination of
its share placing and the new film joint venture investment in Legendary East
Ltd.

REEENHAMNBRARRERESM  REREZROEERTEXEERE
Legendary East Ltd. 2 & & KK 1E -

Land Bureau granted the land use right of 25 pieces of allocated land located 2 O ] 2

at Zhicheng Town, Yidu City to Yichang Port Group for its own use at total
consideration of RMB60,826,600.

BELrRRAEESBKERRNNREE TS E 2 25@E B by T FMAE - 1ER
BERAA%  BREAEARKB0,826,6007T °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

... The Board has proposed a final
_ ~ dividend of HK0.5 cent per share
— Wthh together with a special casha-____
' ) dividend of HK2 cents per_sharg_n_a_ad'__.—-
— in October 2011, represents a payout
. ;_1 ratio of 34% for this finan g|a L
H-_ pe e —

| C  EERABERANBESK
~ 05#{lL - ERER2011EFE108
- S ORASRBLZBABERE .
: ARBEE YRS EEA% e

e —

Tom Lau 215 R
Chairman and Managing Director @34 &
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRBES

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report our annual results for the year ended 31
March 2012. Turnover amounted to HK$5,208 million (2011:
HK$5,357 million), while gross profit reached HK$439 million
(2011: HK$441 million). Net profit after taxation was HK$334
million (2011: HK$200 million), an increase of 67% year on year,
and earnings per share reached HK7.4 cents (2011: HK4.4
cents). Shareholders’ funds increased by 2% or HK$109 million
to HK$4,610 million (2011: HK$4,501 million), representing a NAV
per share of HK$1.01.

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HKO.5 cent per share
(which, together with a special cash dividend of HK2 cents per
share paid in October 2011, amounts to a total dividend of HK2.5
cents per share (2011: HK1 cent per share), representing a payout
ratio of 34%) for this financial year.

During the year under review, PY| endeavored in further
streamlining our Yangtze Strategy to enhance the long-term value
of the Group. In May 2011, PYI completed the disposal of 50.1%
interest in Yangkou Port Co with an aim to focus our resources

in the operation and development of other ports and port-related
business along the Yangtze River. A detailed review of our
operations this year is set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section.

We believed that good corporate governance lays the foundation
of sustainable growth of the Group; therefore, we firmly adhered
to uphold high standards of corporate governance and maintained
transparent communications with investors and stakeholders.
Throughout the year, we were steadfast in maintaining and
implementing best practices. We also continued to pursue
consistent internal control and audit programs, and provided
necessary trainings across our offices in the Mainland.

NET PROFIT #t X

HK$ MILLION BE&#E T

BURR :

KARAR BTE2HMEBEEHZ=20129F3A318 LB K
FEMERE - FREEES2.08FE L (2011 : 53.57(8%
TL)  EFFEAIMEA T (2011 4 41EHETT) o BR
%4 F3.34EH L (2011 : 2BAB L) » HF L H67% °
FRAEFT7.4%E (2011 + 4.47810L) : BREE S 1 HN2%K
1,09 BT E46. 185 L (2011 1 45,0188 L) - BITR
BEFE10IBT -

EZRABERAHAREER0EEN - ER S R2011
FIOARNEREINZFHHNRERE - B BRERE
B2.57 Al (2011 : G|RUEA) - A BFREZIRE TiE
34% e

BEFRN RE-—EHBNE-—FTELELRIKE ERA
EERBEE - 2011F58 REZKEEFOEAF
501% @ UAFEASBERRBERETREEREE
RIGFEMBOUNRESOMENER -FHALE
FRAZEBOE FR(ERBAWEONM)—& -

BAPREERMNEEERADNEERSBERRERZER -
Eit KFERIBERETRKIHNEEE R THRRE
ERERANRFAZAENEE -FA SEERES
FPRUTRERR AREEERARARA —ROA
ZH RBE TR LREATZ2HI
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRBES

Our unceasing effort in building better communities we serve

was well recognized by receiving the title of “Caring Company”

for the fourth consecutive year by Hong Kong Council of Social
Service. Being a dedicated corporate citizen, PYl demonstrated a
strong commitment to corporate social responsibility addressing
on education and youth development. Apart from continuing to
devote to sponsorship of academic activities, we also joined our
subsidiary in donating HK$1 million to Friends of Hope Education
Fund of Hong Kong in this year to support their educational works
in China and Hong Kong.

Details of our corporate governance practices and corporate
social responsibilities are included in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The global economy remained overshadowed by uncertainties
and market volatility. The pace of recovery of United States
remained lagging, and fears on the uncontrollable sovereign debt
crisis in Europe were intensified, which faltered global economic
environment. Despite the uncertain global economic environment,
China registered another year of stable growth in 2011. The
Central Government rolled out various austerity measures aiming
to effectively dampen inflation and ensure a balanced and
sustainable economic growth.

Looking ahead, the global economic outlook remains challenging.
The downward adjustment by the Central Government on the
GDP growth target indicates that the economic growth of China
will experience a slowdown trend in 2012.

10 FYIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2012 Annual Report
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRBES

PYI remains confident in the medium to long-term prospects of
the Yangtze River region despite a challenging global environment.
In China’s Twelfth Five-year Plan, consolidation of ports for an
efficient integrated transport system and acceleration of the
development of Yangtze River region and inland waterways
become the strategic focus in the country. We will keep on refining
our Yangtze Strategy to maximize shareholder value by driving
long-term sustainable growth and will continue to take a cautious
and prudent approach in responding to the challenge of the
ever-changing market.

| sincerely take this opportunity to express my appreciation to my
fellow Board members for their successful leadership. | would
also like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to our executives and
staff across the nation for their commitment and contribution. | am
most grateful to our shareholders, clients and partners for their
continuous support and confidence in our strategic vision over the
years.

Yours faithfully,

Tom Lau
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22 June 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEREFWE DN

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Ports Development

Yangkou Port (9.9% owned)

Yangkou Port contributed about HK$390 million (2011: HK$329
million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year. The profit was
mainly attributable to the gain on disposal of 50.1% interest in
Yangkou Port Co of HK$389 million (before related PRC income
tax charge of HK$127 million but including release of cumulative
exchange gain of HK$231 million reclassified from equity to profit or
loss upon loss of control of subsidiary) (2011: Nil), whereas profit of
the last year mainly represented gain on revaluation from land bank
situated at the harbour-front industrial zone of Yangkou Port.

In order to keep in line with the PRC government plans and policies
and to meet market demand, Yangkou Port has entered a stage of
accelerated development. As such, extensive funding is required

for the financing of the ongoing capital expenditure program. It was
envisaged by the PYI’s directors that earnings and cash flow in
Yangkou Port Co is unlikely to be channeled to PYl and the PYI's
shareholders in the short or medium term. Therefore, on 31 January
2011, the Group entered into a conditional agreement to dispose of
50.1% of its equity interest in Yangkou Port Co at a consideration of
RMB1,507 million. The disposal was completed on 26 May 2011 and
the Group received net cash amount of RMB647 million (being 50%
of the consideration of RMB753.5 million and after deduction of PRC
tax and levy in the sum of RMB106.5 million). The remaining 50% of
the consideration of RMB753.5 million will be satisfied by instalments,
namely, RMB150.7 million, BMB301.4 million and RMB301.4

million to be paid on or before 31 December 2011, 2012 and 2013,
respectively. The deferred consideration bears interest equivalent

to the Standard Lending Rate announced by the People’s Bank of
China and is secured by a charge on the 50.1% sale interest. The first
instalment of RMB150.7 million together with interest concerned (after
net of PRC tax and levies) of about RMB5.4 million were received
during the year.

12 P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2012 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEIWR DN

PYI remains confident in the
medium to long-term prospects
of the Yangtze River region
despite a challenging global
environment.

BEZRRFMMAEE - (RE
HRIIARBH P RARRIIA
FEmfED o

The directors consider the disposal a good opportunity for PYI to
further crystallise its investment value in Yangkou Port Co, to realise
the accumulated unrealised profit arising from gain on revaluation

of land in cash and to focus its resources in the operation and
development of other ports and port-related business along the
Yangtze River in the future. PYI will continue to enjoy the future growth
of Yangkou Port through the remaining 9.9% equity interest, which is
intended to be held for long-term investment purpose and is classified
as an available-for-sale investment with carrying value of about
HK$363 million as at 31 March 2012.

Ports and Logistics

PYI achieved satisfactory progress in implementing its Yangtze
Strategy during the year. The Group’s network of cargo ports was
strengthened and generating synergy value.

Nantong Port Group (45% owned)

Nantong Port Group contributed about HK$35 million (2011: HK$50
million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year. Its net profit
amounted to about HK$78 million (2011: HK$111 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2011, which was affected by the expiration of
certain income tax exemption benefits and the increasing operating
and financing costs.

Nantong Port is a major river port in the Yangtze Delta, one of China’s
category-one national ports opened to foreign trade and an important
hub port of the country. The main cargoes handled by Nantong Port
Group are iron ore, minerals, cement, steel, coal, fertilizers, grains
and edible oil. Nantong Port provides easy access to the Yangtze
region by road and waterway and is an ideal hub port for cargo trans-
shipment.

EERALETHEIRELE—SERBERNFABRAAZ
REBE SALHEGMEEZRFRERGNER
TERABKEREPEERFER I GEAMBORIA
BMAEOEBZRK - REREEBBEBOINERS Z
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A ERE - R2012F3A318 2 BRAEE 4 A3.638%
ik
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FRA - REZHORIKBERER - AEHE 2 GEE
A4 AN - WEAHREE -

MEBOSE (FA45%ER)
FRN - mEBEOEEAAND 2K EEFER 43,5008
77T (2011 : 5,0008 %) - HRETHEHHRES
BHE - MESERMBREALEFZEET - NEZE2011
F12AG1ALLFE - MBEB DSBS 57 FEL7,800
BB (2011 1 118BT) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR DM

Annual cargo throughput of Nantong Port Group grew by 7%
reaching about 59 million tonnes in 2011 (2010: 55 million tonnes),
while the container throughput in 2011 increased by 14% to 446,000
TEUs (2010: 392,000 TEUS).

Yichang Port Group (51% owned)

Yichang Port Group contributed about HK$33 million (2011: HK$21
million) to the segment’s operating profit for the year. Its operating
result was benefited from improved profit margin.

Yichang Port Group is principally engaged in transport logistics and
properties investments, providing transportation, cargo loading and
discharging, storage, shipping agent, cargo agent, port logistics and
port equipment rental services in Yichang Port, which is situated on
the Yangtze River near the Three Gorges Dam in Yichang City, Hubei
Province.

Annual cargo throughput of Yichang Port Group for the year ended
31 March 2012 dropped by 4% to about 7.6 million tonnes (2011:
7.9 million tonnes). Its annual container throughput increased by 19%
to 62,000 TEUs (2011: 52,000 TEUs).

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal (40% owned)

Jiangyin Sunan contributed about HK$12 milion (2011: HK$94
million, of which about HK$90 million was resulted from the Group’s
bargain purchase of additional 15% interest in Jiangyin Sunan) to the
segment’s operating profit for the year. Despite a drop in container
throughput in 2011, Jiangyin Sunan achieved an improvement in
turnover and gross margin by focusing on higher margin service mix.

Jiangyin Sunan is principally engaged in containers loading and
unloading, storage, maintenance, washing and leasing of containers.
The container terminal operated by Jiangyin Sunan is the only
container terminal in Jiangyin. Its annual container throughput in 2011
decreased by 12% to 485,000 TEUs (2010: 554,000 TEUs).

14 P{IC) PYI Corporation Limited 2012 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR DM

Jiaxing International Feeder Port (90% owned)

Jiaxing International Feeder Port multi-functional zone is a core
infrastructure project in Zhejiang Province and a pilot feeder port
under the plans of Ministry of Transport.

Situated at Nanhu District of Jiaxing City, Jiaxing International Feeder
Port occupies a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass of 326,000 sq
m. Currently, the port has 10 berths with total annual throughput
capacity of 100,000 TEUs. A customs office is located in port area

for efficient consignment, declaration and clearance at one stop.

The port also features a range of integrated logistics supporting
services such as examination, steam sterilization facilities, storage and
information services etc.

The port declared soft open in mid 2010 and is still in the stage of
trial run. As such, no operating result was contributed by the port
during the year. The port is expected to start commercial operation in
late 2012 and target to become the first container feeder port in the
Yangtze Delta with comprehensive customs and logistics services.

LPG and Logistics (100% owned)

The LPG distribution and logistics businesses of Minsheng Gas
recorded an operating loss of about HK$24 million (2011: HK$10
million) for the year. Competition from compressed natural gas
continued to put pressure on sale volume as well as margin in
Wuhan. A slight operating profit was recorded by its LPG distribution
business, whereas continuing research costs incurred by its logistics
business to enhance the product performance and logistics efficiency
had resulted in an overall operating loss.

RBEHBME P 2 —EABHAAEA ©
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EHAK B EBRERSTOK o ILIFERAE B 10MEBAL -
fAaFEAE /100,000 E4E - BRANREEBNHFE
A EEY — XM ER TR - SRR FEE - B
BAUWRHENBRE REBSRE AHRBE ELF
AELGEMEMRZERY -

WHEER2010FFFVTHE BRMENAEER
B-BEl ZEERFALEEBCEEE - BHEE
BER2012FFERGEELE BEERAR=AFHE
BEIR Gt 2 TE O R Th a2 A W ik AR 765 /) PR SR SE AR AH B8 o

BAL R R R (BB 100%# %)

RER REAHMNBREEDHEHENTEBHRGLEES
18492,4008 % 7L (2011 : 1,0008 8 L) - BfEAARA 2
BRFEBEHRZZHEERMNBBERESN - RIERD
EBHBNEEERT  HEMREFANREAERE
BRYFTRGE 2 BER R AN SRR EEE -

mC) REE@MARAT 201258 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEIWR DN
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Engineering Business — Paul Y. Engineering
(62% owned)

Paul Y. Engineering Group achieved turnover of HK$4,304 milion
(2011: HK$4,334 million) during the year, representing a decrease of
about 1% as compared with the last year. It contributed about HK$48
million (2011: HK$52 million) to the Group’s operating profit during the
year and proposed a final dividend of HK1 cent per share (2011: HK1
cent per share), or a payout ratio of 20% (2011: 20%). The decrease
in turnover was mainly attributable to certain major infrastructure
projects being carried out by its joint ventures with other contractors
and were excluded from the turnover of Paul Y. Engineering Group.
Margin was affected by the rise of labour and material costs.

During the year, the management contracting division of Paul Y.
Engineering Group secured new contracts totaling HK$8,891 million
(2011: HK$4,669 milion) in aggregate value. Subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, additional contracts of about HK$887 million
were secured. As at 31 March 2012, the total value of contracts on
hand of Paul Y. Engineering Group was about HK$15,106 milion
(2011: HK$10,406 million).

Paul Y. Engineering Group has benefited from the increase in capital
works expenditure in both Hong Kong and Macau markets, despite
a restraint in profit margin improvement owing to inflated labour and
material costs. Paul Y. Engineering Group will strive to maintain a
balance between risk and return, and keep seizing opportunities

to expand and diversify its business. With its solid foundation and
professional expertise, Paul Y. Engineering Group remains confident
in increasing its order book and continues to strive for more premium
projects to bring substantial return.

16 P(lC) PYI Corporation Limited 2012 Annual Report

Despite the uncertain global
economic environment, China
registered another year of stable
growth in 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR DM

Property

The property business contributed about HK$156 million (2011:
HK$86 million) to the Group’s operating profit for the year. The profit
was mainly attributable to contribution from sale of units in Nantong
International Trade Center of about HK$71 million (2011: HK$38
million) and the gain on revaluation of investment properties from
about 0.35 sq km Land Being Formed (as defined in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements at page 164 of this annual report)
located at Xiao Yangkou of about HK$73 milion (2011: HK$19 milion
from investment properties situated at Yichang). Deferred tax of about
HK$34 million (2011: HK$5 million) relevant to the revaluation gain
was charged to the income statement.

As at 31 March 2012, about 2.31 sg km (2011: 2 sg km) of the

11.5 sg km land bank situated at Xiao Yangkou have reached the
forming stage or formed and serviced stage. About 1.89 sq km of
the Formed Land (as defined in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements at page 164 of this annual report) and 0.35 sg km of the
Land Being Formed at Xiao Yangkou were classified as investment
properties and measured at fair value of about HK$575 million (2011:
HK$468 million), whereas the remaining 0.07 sq km Formed Land at
Xiao Yangkou was classified as trading stock.

Nantong International Trade Center is a commercial and office
development in the heart of CBD of Nantong City with a gross floor
area of some 80,000 sq m. The office tower and commercial podium
were completed in October 2010 and September 2011, respectively,
which contributed turnover of about HK$303 million (2011: HK$212
million) during the year. A cumulative area of about 42,000 sg m with
a total contract value of about RMB465 million has been sold or
pre-sold up to 31 March 2012, representing about 66% of its total
saleable area.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR DM

Wanhua Zijin Garden, a residential property development near
Yangkou Port with a gross floor area of 65,000 sg m, was completed
and contributed turnover of about HK$61 million (2011: HK$156
million) during the year. A cumulative area of about 55,000 sq m with
a total contract value of about RMB319 million has been sold or
pre-sold up to 31 March 2012, representing about 93% of its total
saleable area.

In the Hangzhou Hi-Tech Industry Development Zone of Bingjiang,
Hangzhou City, the Group holds an investment property, the Pioneer
Technology Building, which is an office building with gross floor area
of some 20,000 sg m. The building contributed rental income of
about HK$10 milion (2011: HK$8 million) during the year and its
occupancy was about 97% as at 31 March 2012.

In the main urban district of Yichang City near Yangtze River, the
Group holds certain commmercial properties of about 5,000 sg m
through Yichang Port Group. Total rental income contributed from
the Yichang investment properties amounted to about HK$4 million
(2011: HK$3 million).

Treasury

The treasury investments contributed about HK$75 million (2011:
HK$6 million) towards the Group’s operating profit for the year.
Despite the trading securities recorded a fair value loss of about
HK$22 million (2011: HK$3 million) during the year, the overall
performance of the treasury segment was improved after accounting
for the interest income from the high-yield loans and RMB bank
deposits in Hong Kong of about HK$17 million (2011: HK$9 million)
as well as the interest income and relevant RMB translation gain
derived from the deferred consideration receivable for disposal of
Yangkou Port Co of about HK$80 million (2011: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWR DM

As at 31 March 2012, total value of the Group’s portfolio of trading
securities amounted to about HK$60 million (2011: HK$47 million),
equivalent to about 0.5% (2011: 0.3%) of the Group’s total assets.
Portfolio of high-yield loans receivable amounted to about HK$103
million (2011: HK$113 million), equivalent to about 1% (2011: 1%) of
the Group’s total assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

In May 2011, the Group completed the disposal of 50.1% interest

in Yangkou Port Co to a shareholder of Yangkou Port Co at a
consideration of RMB1,507 million. Yangkou Port Co ceased to be a
subsidiary of PYI and its financial result had been deconsolidated from
the Group during the year.

Apart from the above, there are no other material acquisition and
disposal of subsidiaries and associates during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no major subsequent events since the end of the reporting
period and up to the date of this report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
gy e

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of about HK$5,208 million (2011: HK$5,357
million), representing a decrease of about 3% when compared
with last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the drop

in turnover of the engineering arm — Paul Y. Engineering and its
subsidiaries (the “Paul Y. Engineering Group”) as certain of its
management contracting business was carried out through joint
ventures with other contractors. Also, there was no contribution in
turnover from Yangkou Port Co after the disposal of 50.1% interest
in Yangkou Port Co in May 2011.

The Group’s gross profit remained stable at about HK$439

million (2011: HK$441 million) as compared with the last year and
represented a gross margin of 8% (2011: 8%) of the consolidated
turnover. The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 6% to
about HK$312 million (2011: HK$295 million), which was mainly
attributable to the increase in administrative expenses from Paul Y.
Engineering Group. Profit before taxation of about HK$561 million
was achieved as compared with about HK$466 million for the last
year. The Group’s profit before taxation was composed of:

(i) net gain of about HK$48 million in Paul Y. Engineering
Group engaged in management contracting and property
development management businesses (2011: HK$52
million);

(ii) net gain of about HK$390 million in ports development
business (2011: HK$329 million);

(iii) net gain of about HK$56 million in ports and logistics
business (2011: HK$155 million);

(iv) net gain of about HK$156 million in property business (2011:
HK$86 million);

(V) net gain of about HK$75 million in treasury business (2011:
HK$6 million);

(Vi) net corporate and other expenses (including inter-segment
profit eliminations) of about HK$86 million (2011: HK$76
million) of which about HK$18 million was acquisition-
related costs (2011: HK$14 million); and

(vi)  finance costs of about HK$78 million (2011: HK$86 million).

Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of PYl was about
HK$334 million (2011: HK$200 million) and basic earnings per
share was HK7.4 cents (2011: HK4.4 cents). The increase in net
profit for the year was mainly attributable to the gain on disposal
of 50.1% interest in Yangkou Port Co of HK$389 million (2011: Nil)
less related income tax charge of HK$127 million (2011: Nil).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
B #5 Bl B

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION

When compared with the Group’s financial position as at last year
end, total assets decreased by 21% to about HK$11,828 million
(2011: HK$14,895 million) and net current assets decreased by
63% to about HK$1,208 million (2011: HK$3,299 million). The
changes were mainly attrioutable to about HK$372 million of
deferred consideration in disposal of 50.1% interest in Yangkou
Port Co being due after one year from 31 March 2012, whereas all
assets of Yangkou Port Co disposed during the year was classified
as current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2011. Consequently,
current assets decreased from 1.46 times to 1.24 times of current
liabilities. After accounting for the net profit of about HK$334
million, surplus arising from RMB exchange translation of about
HK$134 million net of release of translation reserve of HK$231
million upon disposal of Yangkou Port Co, and dividend distribution
of about HK$136 million to PYI’s shareholders, equity attributable
to owners of PY! increased by 2% to about HK$4,610 million (2011:
HK$4,501 million), representing HK$1.01 (2011: HK$0.99) per
share as at 31 March 2012.

Net cash outflow from operating activities was about HK$496
million (2011: inflow of HK$460 million), mainly due to utilization

of more funds for mobilizing new construction projects by Paul

Y. Engineering and receipt of lesser deposits for pre-sale of
properties in Nantong, the PRC during the year. Net cash inflow
from investing activities was about HK$29 million (2011: outflow
of HK$640 million) and that from financing activities was about
HK$309 million (2011: HK$331 million), resulting in a net decrease
in available cash and cash equivalents of about HK$158 million
(2011: increase of HK$151 million) for the year after excluding net
increase in pledged bank deposits of about HK$648 million (2011:
HK$50 million). The net increase in cash and cash equivalents for
the year would be about HK$490 million (2011: HK$201 million)
after adding back net increase in pledged bank deposits.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had total assets of HK$11,828
million (2011: HK$14,895 million) which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and credit facilities. A variety of credit facilities
were maintained to meet its working capital requirements and
committed capital expenditure, which bore interest at market
rates and had contracted terms of repayment ranging from on
demand to ten years. The Group mainly generated revenue and
incurred costs in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi, and no financial
instruments had been used for hedging purpose during the year.
The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy and
manages the fluctuation exposures of exchange rate and interest
rate on specific transactions.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
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As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s total borrowings amounted
to about HK$2,653 million (2011: HK$3,298 million, including
amounts reclassified as held for sale of about HK$1,283 million)
with about HK$1,715 million (2011: HK$1,667 million, including
about HK$410 million reclassified as held for sale) repayable on
demand or within one year and about HK$938 million (2011:
HK$1,631 million, including about HK$873 million reclassified as
held for sale) repayable after one year. Out of the Group’s total
borrowings of about HK$2,653 million (2011: HK$3,298 million),
about HK$339 million (2011: HK$254 million) was non-recourse to
the Group (excluding the Paul Y. Engineering Group).

As at 31 March 2012, borrowings denominated in Hong Kong
dollar of about HK$1,255 million (201 1: HK$583 million) bore
interest at floating rates and no balance (2011: HK$2 million) bore
interest at fixed rates. Borrowings denominated in Renminbi of
about HK$1,071 million (2011: HK$2,543 million, including about
HK$1,283 million reclassified as held for sale) bore interest at
floating rates and about HK$327 million (2011: HK$170 million)
bore interest at fixed rates. The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.58
(2011: 0.73), which was calculated based on the total borrowings
of about HK$2,653 million (2011: HK$3,298 million) and the
Group’s shareholders’ fund of about HK$4,610 million (2011:
HK$4,501 million).

Bank balances and cash of the Group as at 31 March 2012
amounted to about HK$1,740 million (2011: HK$1,241 million,
including about HK$128 million reclassified as held for sale),

of which about HK$1,289 million (2011: HK$767 million) was
denominated in Renminbi, about HK$428 million (2011: HK$464
million) was denominated in Hong Kong dollar and about HK$23
million (2011: HK$10 million) was denominated in other currencies.
Also, about HK$732 million (201 1: HK$84 million) had been
pledged to banks to secure general credit facilities granted to the
Group, which included about RMB575 million (equivalent to about
HK$709 million) (2011: Nil) deposited in Hong Kong to secure
banking facilities denominated in Hong Kong dollar and available
in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2012, the Group had a net debt
position (being bank balances and cash net of bank borrowings) of
about HK$649 million (2011: HK$1,821 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Apart from the claim described in note 32(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 March 2012, the Group had
contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees given to banks for
banking facilities given to third parties of about HK$70 million
(2011: HK$65 million) and an investee of about HK$336 million
(2011: Nil), and indemnities issued to banks for performance bond
of construction contracts undertaken by an associate and jointly
controlled entities of about HK$39 million (2011: HK$37 million).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2012, certain property interests, property, plant
and equipment, trade receivables and bank balances of the
Group with an aggregate value of about HK$2,246 million (2011:
HK$2,093 million), as well as the Company’s investment in certain
subsidiaries of about HK$296 million (2011: HK$141 million) and
the Group’s benefits over certain construction contracts were
pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure general credit
facilities granted to the Group. As at 31 March 2012, about HK$97
million (2011: HK$110 million) of these pledged assets was used
to secure credit facilities which were non-recourse to the Group
(excluding the Paul Y. Engineering Group).

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had expenditure contracted for
but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment and
project under development in the amount of about HK$97 million
(2011: HK$190 million).
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
E

PYI will keep on refining our Yangtze Strategy
to maximize shareholder value by driving
long-term sustainable growth.

RESBBECRIIERE  EBEDRESE
BRABRRFREAER -

YANGKOU PORT NANTONG PORT GROUP YICHANG PORT GROUP
0% RSO EE HEEHEN

Pf‘ﬂ&l‘l

JIANGYIN SUNAN
CONTAINER TERMINAL

IREF AR RAERE




CONSOLIDATED TURNOVER #& & %48

JIAXING INTERNATIONAL MINSHENG GAS PYI PROPERTY PAUL Y. ENGINEERING

FEEDER PORT REEIE REEHE
= E A F RS A

4 B -
p—— @
L} o

v e e
T

ml) resmamaa 201268 25



Yangkou Port
FOE

Yangkou Port, a natural deep-sea harbour near the mouth of

the Yangtze River, declared soft open in October 2008. The port
comprises mainly a harbour-front industrial and logistics park of 30
sq km, a 13 km Yellow Sea Crossing and a 1.4 sq km man-made
island connected to 29 berths.

Situated in the eastern coast of Jiangsu, Yangkou Port endeavors
to become a major trans-shipment hub specializing in bulk cargo
and a large-scale petrochemical industrial and logistics zone.

By the end of 2011, PetroChina’s LNG terminal on the man-made
island received 18 LNG tankers with delivery of over 1.2 million
tonnes LNG after commenced commercial operation in May of
the same year. Highways, railway, canal and other connecting
infrastructure and utility associated with Yangkou Port are being
developed concurrently.

In May 2011, PYI completed the disposal of 50.1% interest in
Yangkou Port Co to further crystallize the value of our investment
in Yangkou Port. Upon completion, PYI's equity interest in Yangkou
Port Co decreased from 60% to 9.9%.
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Nantong Port is a major river port in the Yangtze Delta and an
important hub port of the country. It is one of China’s category-one
national ports opened to foreign trade. By providing easy access
to the Yangtze region by road and waterway, Nantong Port is an
ideal hub port for cargo trans-shipment.

Nantong Port occupies a shoreline of 4.2 km and a land mass

of 1.5 sg km with 5 major terminals namely Tongzhou Terminal,
Jianghai Terminal, Yaogang Terminal, Langshan Terminal and
Container Terminal. They together operate 24 berths, of which

14 berths are for vessels of or over 10,000 tonnage, including

2 berths for vessels of 150,000 tonnage, 5 berths for vessels of
70,000 tonnage, 4 berths for vessels of 50,000 tonnage and 3
berths for vessels of 10,000 tonnage. The main cargoes handled
by Nantong Port Group are iron ore, minerals, cement, steel, coal,
sulphur, fertilizers, grains and edible oil.

In 2011, Nantong Port had recorded highest annual throughput
and achieved over 100 million tonnes annual throughput for sixth
consecutive year. Nantong Port Group recorded about 59 million
tonnes of annual cargo throughput and 446,000 TEUs of container
throughput in 2011, representing 7% and 14% year-on-year
growth respectively.

MBERARIZANIZNERBERAY —AEERE
B UABER -BEHRENESHOR - BEEHEZK
EmERERIRENES KAERBNENTERE
BARE

HRERBRIFERIAE - HH16FHAE - KE
AEEERE SFEBMNE TEB BB RILE
REXMBE RO EBHES RS EAEEENRM - &
FEBRKIA A4 - BIE2E15E B ROAN - 5
TEWACAN - ARS8 MR RCRA RIEA B AR - BiE
BOSBEREZTBERHEREERE - B’A - KER
B EM - BRR R R B RS

BBBSR0MFHEREETa AL E - WEEFEF
EFEWAS -2011F  mASOEEBRGBZ2FRE
B £ 45,0008 M - £ E M F W 2 5446,00062 £ 5§ -
BRFDBIERT%R14% -

mC) REEEERAT 20125% 27



Yichang Port Group
HEBBEE

Yichang Port is situated on the Yangtze River near the Three
Gorges Dam in Hubei Province. Yichang Port Group is principally
engaged in transport logistics and property investments, providing
transportation, cargo loading and discharging, storage, shipping
agent, cargo agent, port logistics and port equipment rental
services in Yichang Port.

Expansion of Yichang Port is in progress to fulffill the growing
demand on logistics and transportation services along the
middle and upper reaches of the Yangtze. Yunchi Port Terminal
started phase two construction in early 2011 and is expected

to commence operation by the end of 2012. Upon completion,
the terminal will consist of 17 berths with total annual throughput
capacity of 10 million tonnes and 400,000 TEUs. The 200-acres
Linjiangping Logistics Park will comprise of six service zones.
The coal blending center at Zhicheng Port is in the stage of trial
operation with annual gross capacity reaches 20 million tonnes.

The annual cargo throughput of Yichang Port reached about 7.6
million tonnes with annual container throughput grew by 19% to
62,000 TEUs in this financial year.
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Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal

IEHRERERER

2)

Jiangyin Sunan Container Terminal operates the container terminal IREHEERATREEIRB ERATR - 2B
in Jiangyin Port. The terminal owns a land area of 0.49 sq km, a SA(E0.49F F A E - A 2 RE8IKER - £ B3
shoreline of 589 m long with 3 berths of 50,000 tonnes maximum SARL  BASEHAE HiESEW : BHEA1,00KkE 28 E

capacity and a secondary shoreline of 1,090 m long with 8 berths & . T g{E R 5, 000ME 5 58 48 1 K SEAT At B B A o

for barges of 5,000 tonnes capacity each.

TRHFERIRE -—NERKMEER  FHUHENESE
BREM FTRLLEORERMRE MF % B
FREERY -

Jiangyin Sunan is the only container terminal in Jiangyin,
with annual throughput capacity reaches 550,000 TEUSs. It is
principally engaged in containers loading and unloading, storage,

maintenance, washing and leasing of containers etc. 0114 + STIR B ¥ £ 4 4 B0t B 12485 0002 £ «

In 2011, the annual container throughput of the Jiangyin Sunan
reached 485,000 TEUSs.
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U"' Jiaxing International Feeder Port
18 EERTERREE

Jiaxing International Feeder Port situated at Nanhu District of
Jiaxing City. It houses a shoreline of 570 m and a land mass of
326,000 sg m. The port currently has 10 berths with total annual
throughput capacity of 100,000 TEUs. Phase two construction on
expansion of container yard is in progress and is expected to be
completed by late 2012. Upon completion, the port’s total annual
throughput capacity will increase to 200,000 TEUs. A customs
office is located in port area for efficient consignment, clearance
and declaration at one stop. The port also features a range of
integrated logistics supporting services such as examination,
steam sterilization facilities, storage and information services etc.

Jiaxing International Feeder Port multi-functional zone is a focal
infrastructure project in Zhejiang Province and one of the major
feeder ports in China planned by Ministry of Transport. Jiaxing
International Feeder Port is dedicated to become a major feeder
port that supports the Shanghai International Shipping Centre by
providing comprehensive customs and logistics services.

As the first container feeder port in the Yangtze Delta, the port
declared soft open in mid 2010 and is still in the stage of trial run.
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Minsheng Gas

Minsheng Gas owns and operates the largest liquefied petroleum
gas (LPG) river terminal and storage tank farm in mid-stream
Yangtze. It is poised to boost its leading position in the
infrastructure and logistics facilities for LPG, oil and liquid bulk
chemicals market in Central China.

Based in Wuhan, Minsheng Gas is a leading player in the Wuhan
LPG market for automotive consumption, and wholesale and
distribution of LPG products. It established a Vehicle Conversion
Research and Development Center to support the application of
its research and development on the construction of LPG fueling
stations, conversion of motor vehicles to LPG vehicles and gas
fueling. A retail brand “Good Luck” was launched to provide high
quality industrial, commercial and domestic LPG products serving
Wuhan and peripheral cities.
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PYI Property
IL? gepuz

PYI explores the revenue generating opportunities arising from
property development and investment.

Xiao Yangkou is located about 35 km west of Yangkou Port and
will become an infrastructure and resort development in support of
the Yangkou Port industrial zone.

Nantong International Trade Center is a commercial and office
development in the heart of CBD of Nantong City with a gross
floor area of some 80,000 sg m. The office tower and commercial
podium were completed in October 2010 and September 2011.
Around 66% of its total saleable area which is about 42,000 sgq m
has been sold or pre-sold.

Wanhua Zijin Garden is a completed residential property
development near Yangkou Port with a gross floor area of 65,000
sg m. Accumulative area of about 55,000 sg m has been sold or
pre-sold, representing about 93% of its total saleable area.

Pioneer Technology Building is an office building with gross floor
area of some 20,000 sq m situated in the Hangzhou Hi-Tech
Industry Development Zone of Bingjiang, Hangzhou City. The
puilding is held as an investment property to derive rental income.
Its occupancy reached about 97% by the end of this financial year.

The Group holds certain commercial properties near Yangtze River
in the main urban district of Yichang City of about 5,000 sg m
through Yichang Port Group.
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PAUL Y. Engineering
REER

i
//
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Headquartered in Hong Kong, Paul Y. Engineering is dedicated
to providing full-fledged engineering and property services with
operations in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland. For over 60
years, Paul Y. Engineering has played a significant role in shaping
Hong Kong’s skyline with its world-class infrastructure, including
major commercial and residential buildings, public housing,
institutional facilities, highways, railways, tunnels, port works,
water and sewage treatment facilities etc.

Construction industry in Hong Kong and Macau has continued to
develop vigorously. There are subsisting demands of construction
expertise in these two regions. The management contracting
division of Paul Y. Engineering successfully secured new
construction contracts with HK$8,891 million, increased by 90%
year-on-year. As at year end, the total value of contracts on hand
amounted to HK$15,106 million. Subsequent to the year end,
Paul Y. Engineering secured further contracts of HK$887 million.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BEER

MR LAU KO YUEN, TOM
geRRE

Chairman and Managing Director
FTERER

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 61, is the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.
He is a member of the Company’s Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Share Repurchase Committee, and a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr Lau has over 39 years’ international corporate development and management
experience in infrastructure developments as well as construction and engineering
services involving the road, rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining and resources
sectors in the Asia Pacific Region. He joined the Company as executive director in

1993 and was appointed as Deputy Chairman in 1995. Mr Lau was also appointed as
Managing Director of the Company in 2005 and has been responsible for the Group’s
corporate development strategy, and overall performance. He was changed from Deputy
Chairman to Chairman since 26 September 2011. Mr Lau is also the deputy chairman
and non-executive director of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (0577.HK) and
Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (0310.HK) and he was an independent
non-executive director of China National Building Material Company Limited (3323.HK)
until November 2011.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BEER

MR CHAN YIU LUN, ALAN
PR R Bk 5T £

Executive Director

HITEF

Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan, aged 28, was appointed as an executive director of the Company
in November 2011. Mr Chan is also the director of corporate finance of the Company
and an alternate director to his father, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, in the Company.
He graduated from Trinity College of Arts and Sciences of Duke University, United States
of America, with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Political Science — International Relations.
Mr Chan previously worked in the investment banking division of The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. He is currently an executive director of ITC Corporation Limited (0372.HK)
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed in the section headed
“Interests and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in the
Directors’ Report, an executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited (0199.HK), a
director of Burcon NutraScience Corporation (“Burcon”), the securities of which are
listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (BU.TSX) and the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(WKN 157793-FWB) and are also listed on the NASDAQ Global Market (BUR) since

27 October 2011. Mr Chan is also an advisor of Bisagni Environmental Enterprise

(BEE Inc.). He was an alternate director to Ms Chau Mei Wah, Rosanna in Burcon until
April 2010.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BEER

DR CHAN KWOK KEUNG, CHARLES
BR B 08 18 £

Non-Executive Director
FHITEE

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, aged 57, is a non-executive director of the Company.

He is a member of the Company’s Nomination Committee (alternate to Mr Lau Ko

Yuen, Tom). Dr Chan holds an Honorary degree of Doctor of Laws and a Bachelor’s
degree in Civil Engineering and has over 32 years’ international corporate management
and strategic investment experience in a diversified range of businesses including
construction, property, infrastructure, entertainment and media, hotel and related
business, information technology, pharmaceutical and health products. He joined the
Group in 1987 and was the Chairman of the Company until July 2005. Dr Chan is also
the chairman and executive director of ITC Corporation Limited (0372.HK) which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed in the section headed “Interests
and Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders/Other Persons” in the Directors’ Report ;
and a non-executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited (0511.HK). Dr Chan is also
the father of his alternate director, Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan who is an executive director of
the Company.
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MR CHAN SHU KIN
BRAGER & &

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUINTEE

Mr Chan Shu Kin, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company in September 2004. He is the Chairman of the Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
and Compliance Committee and Share Repurchase Committee. Mr Chan has over

35 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and financial management services. He
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of

both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, as well as an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr Chan is a partner of Messrs Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants. He is also an independent non-executive
director of PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited (0850.HK).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BEER

MR LEUNG PO WING, BOWEN JOSEPH ass, up
REEKE 6s P

Independent Non-Executive Director
BHUHHITEF

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph eas, up, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in August 2006. He is a member of the
Company'’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee and Share Repurchase Committee
(alternate to Mr Chan Shu Kin) and an independent non-executive director of a subsidiary
of the Company. Mr Leung previously served the Hong Kong Government for over 32
years until his retirement as the Director of the Office of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region in Beijing (“Beijing Office”) in November 2005. He
joined the Administrative Service in June 1973 and rose to the rank of Administrative
Officer Staff Grade A1 in June 1996. During his service in the Administrative Service,

Mr Leung had served in various policy bureaux and departments, including Deputy
Secretary for District Administration (later re-titled as Deputy Secretary for Home Affairs);
Deputy Secretary for Planning, Environment and Lands; Private Secretary, Government
House; Secretary for Planning, Environment and Lands; and Director of the Beijing Office.
Mr Leung has extensive experience in corporate leadership and public administration.
During his tenure as the Director of the Beijing Office, he had made commendable efforts
in promoting Hong Kong in the Mainland, as well as fostering better understanding,
establishing closer links and facilitating exchanges in various spheres between Hong
Kong and the Mainland. Mr Leung is also an independent non-executive director of
Paliburg Holdings Limited (0617.HK) and North Asia Resources Holdings Limited
(0061.HK) and a special advisor to the board of directors of Sands China Ltd. (1928.HK).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BEER

MR LI CHANG AN
FERRE

Independent Non-Executive Director
BUFHTEF

Mr Li Chang An, aged 77, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Company in January 2007. He is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.
Mr Li was the Vice Secretary of Shangdong Provincial Party Committee from 1983 to
1987. He was further appointed as the Governor of Shangdong Province in June 1985.
He was the Deputy Secretary-General of the State Council between 1987 and 1993,
and was elected as an alternate member of the Eleventh CPC Central Committee and
a member of Twelfth CPC Central Committee. Mr Li was the executive vice chairman
of China Poly Group Corporation from 1993 to 2001. He was also the chairman of the
board of China Orient Telecomm Satellite Company, Limited from 1995 to 2003.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EREEE

MS YANG YAN

EERLZE

Chief Representative — China
FREIRRFEEE— T

Ms Yang Yan, aged 44, joined the Group in 2003. She is the Chief Representative of the
Company in China and is responsible for originating and monitoring the performance

of the Group’s investments in the Mainland, and holds directorship in a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Yang has many years of experience in corporate
development and general administration and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration.
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MR WONG YIU HUNG
ERELE

Chief Financial Officer
BEEIBE

Mr Wong Yiu Hung, aged 47, joined the Group in 2004. He is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company and is responsible for all financial management and accounting matters
of the Group. Mr Wong holds directorship in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He has over 25 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management in
both international accounting firms and listed companies. Mr Wong holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Chinese Law from Peking University. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE SUPPORT TEAM
10 5% R 7 61 B

LEGAL & COMPANY SECRETARIAL

MR KO HIU FUNG
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary

MS MEI HONG

Legal Counsel, China

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS
MR CHAN DIK KEUNG, WILLIAM

Assistant Financial Controller

MR ZHU YONG MING
Corporate Finance Director, China

MS LI YEE PING, SARAH
Senior Finance Manager — Treasury and Investment

MR LEUNG HO MAN
Chief Accountant

INVESTMENT

MR SU ZHI JUN
Investment Consultant, China

INTERNAL CONTROL

MR CHEUNG KIN CHUEN
Senior Manager — Internal Control & Risk Management

INTERNAL AUDIT

MR CHU WAI YEUNG, WALLACE
Group Internal Audit Senior Manager

MR WANG BAO GUO
Director of Internal Audit, China

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

MS LAM LEE LEE
Corporate Communications Manager
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OPERATION TEAM
& E B X

MR WEI WEN KUI
Director and General Manager
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MR WANG WEI GUO
Director and General Manager
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR LIU HONG WEI
Investment Director
Property Division — China

MR CHEN FA YI
Chairman
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR WANG HONG
General Manager
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR CHEN BAO Xl
General Manager
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR ZHOU XIAO JUN
Director and General Manager
Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd.

MR WANG JUN JIN
General Manager
Hubei Minsheng Liquified Petroleum Gas Limited

MR LIU DONG
Financial Controller
Nantong Port Group Limited

MR WEI JIANG TAO
Financial Controller
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

MS TSANG SAU YING
Financial Controller
Yichang Port Group Limited

MR JIANG JIANG MIN
Financial Controller
Jiaxing International Container Feeder Port Limited

MR LI YONG
Financial Controller
Hubei Minsheng Liquefied Petroleum Gas Limited

Note: For details of the operation team of Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (stock code: 0577.HK), please refer to its 2012 annual

report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEER®RE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PYI Corporation Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) strives to attain and uphold high
standard of corporate governance and maintain well-established
corporate governance practices for the benefit of shareholders of
PYI and other stakeholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2012, PYI has applied the
principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (‘CG Code”) as set
out in the old Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), which were in effect until 31
March 2012, and, where appropriate, has adopted some of the
recommended best practices except for certain deviations which
are stated below:

(@) Code Provision A.2.1

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and
performed by different individuals. Following the retirement of
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph on 16 September 2011, Mr Lau
Ko Yuen, Tom, the Managing Director (equivalent to CEO) of
PYI1, has been appointed as chairman of PY! (“Chairman”) and
has performed the roles of Chairman and CEO with effect from
26 September 2011.

The Board believes that it is appropriate and in the interests of
PYI for Mr Lau to take up both roles at the present stage as

it helps to ensure consistent leadership within the Group and
enable more effective and efficient overall strategic planning

for the Group. The Board also believes that the balance of
power and authority for the present arrangement will not be
impaired and is adequately ensured by the current Board which
comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with half the
number thereof being independent non-executive directors.
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(b) Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules

The Audit Committee of the Company was comprised of at
least three independent non-executive directors except for the
period from 29 September 2011 to 20 November 2011.

Following the resignation of Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on
29 September 2011, the Audit Committee of the Company
was comprised of two members which number fell below
the minimum number of three as required under Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules. Upon the appointment of Mr Li Chang An
as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 21
November 2011, the Company was in strict compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

PYI has also adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules applicable to PYI's directors as
well as senior management of PYI. After having made specific
enquiries, all directors and senior management of PY| have
confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during this financial year.

Since the launch of PY| Code of Conduct in October 2009, all PYI’s
directors, senior management and staff have been under specific
obligations to comply with the ethics and principles by which our
business is conducted and have been allowed to report actual or
potential violations of the Code through stated procedure. Non-
compliance with the Code will result in disciplinary action. During
this financial year, we are not aware of any non-compliance with
the Code.

(b) (LR RI)E3.211#
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE TEEREE
The structure below shows the key parties involved in our AEBZOEERERREER  SRZEBREEBENT

corporate governance practices and policies within the Group.
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SHAREHOLDERS

As part of corporate governance, PYl is committed to safeguard
shareholders’ interests. To achieve this, PY| has established the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy setting out various channels
of communication with shareholders and investment community
for ensuring effective disclosure of Company’s performance and
business activities.

PYI regards its shareholders’ meetings as valuable forum for

PYI's shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board face to face. All our directors and senior management
and representative from external auditor will make effort to attend
shareholders’ meetings and address queries from shareholders.
Also, simultaneous translations in English and Cantonese are
arranged during the meetings to ensure that the shareholders
understand the content of the issues discussed during the conduct
of the meetings.

During the year 2011/12, PYI held two general meetings. Voting
on resolutions put forward at the general meetings has been taken
by way of poll and all poll results have been published and posted
on the website of PYl and the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited’s website (the “HKEx’s website”). Apart from a resolution
on adjournment of the special general meeting held on 17 October
2011, which was put forward at the request of a shareholder at
that meeting, all resolutions put to shareholders were passed at
the two general meetings. The resolutions and the percentage of
votes cast in favour of the resolutions are set out below:

PYI’'S GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR

EEAFEBTHRERRAS

IR R

EREEE RN —H0  RERARBRRFENHEE -
RTEBE-BR RECRUMREBMABE  BRil%
BREERRRREALER UERBEXEEARA

REGEABRRAERREBRRAEZRRLERLRE
EAN—EAEEFE - -MARENESE SAEEEM
SINERBMRARERERTHERRERE  NEERKER
BARF o MO EEABE RMERHEENERE
BB E R UWERBRRTBESRETHAN®
AR -

R2011/12F € (REBHAMABRERE - REAEH)
BREYUBRENFARR MAEBRENLERBERE
MURBEBZGREEMERAREY ([EEXFHE
uh ) EFIE - BRR2011F10A17TE 2R EFRIAE L5
—ERRBREERITZCHIREZRIN IERE
BREZHER IRBRRASLESAB FREZER
RERBBZRZZEHLE  J|&HET

Annual General Meeting on 16 September 2011
R201159 16 R BITHRRBFARE

v/ Approval of the 2011 audited accounts
BE0IFEMNKEEZRE

v/ Declaration of final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2011
FIREZ2011F3A31HIEFEZ KBRS

v/ Declaration of special dividend for the year ending 31 March 2012

TR 220123831 H IEFE 2RI 2

v/ Re-election of Mr Chan Shu Kin as director
ERRBBRELERES

v/ Re-election of Mr Li Chang An as director
EEFELREERES

v Approval of directors’ fees in aggregate amount of not exceeding HK$4,000,000

per annum for all directors
BBRTEBEFTEB I THBBETF4,000,000ETHEFHES

% of Votes Cast For
BREEMLE

100%

100%

100%

100%

99.70%

100%
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PYI’'S GENERAL MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR (continued)

EFAFEETHRERRAE (9

Annual General Meeting on 16 September 2011 (continued)
R2011F9R16 R BITHWRRBFKE (&)

v/ Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor and authorisation to Board

to fix its remuneration

BEZERY - HERSTSAMTARBMEEEEZRETAM

v/ Grant of general mandate to directors to issue shares
BTESEITROK —RITE

v/ Grant of general mandate to directors to repurchase shares
BT ESDERG K —RTE

v/ Extension of the share issue mandate to directors
BABTEEHTRMDZEN

v/ Approval of the refreshment of the 10% limit on grant of options under the share

option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited

HETHRBREEZZEEER AR BRE R EBREZ10%R A

Special General Meeting on 17 October 2011
R2011F1017TEBTHRREAKE

v/ Approval of the deemed very substantial disposal of majority interest in Paul .

Engineering Group Limited
HEREFREEAHERERESBARAA  ZE R

Apart from holding shareholders’ meetings, PYI also endeavours
to maintain effective communication with all shareholders through
other channels such as the publication of annual and interim
reports, announcements, circulars as well as news releases (all

in bilingual languages) so as to provide extensive information on
the Group’s activities, financial position, business strategies and
developments to enable them to make informed decision on
matters relating to their investment and the exercise of their rights
as shareholders of PYI. Such information is also available on PYI
website - www.pyicorp.com and the HKEX’s website.

Our website is an effective mean of communicating with
shareholders. Any shareholders who have questions or comments
on what we are doing are most welcome to contact us at any time
through the website. We will try our best to answer the questions
in a short time.

At pages 68 to 72 of this annual report, we have designated a
section called “PYI and Shareholders” which serves to provide
shareholders with more information such as the shareholding of
PYI and details of top shareholders as at the year end.
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Shareholders’ Rights

PYI recognises the importance of ensuring that shareholders’
rights are protected. In accordance with PYI’s bye-laws and the
applicable laws of Bermuda, all PYI’s shareholders are entitled to
attend or be represented by proxy and vote at general meetings.
PYI’s shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of PYI carrying the right of voting at general meetings have
the right to require a special general meeting to be called and
propose transaction of business.

All PYI's shareholders have the right to propose person for election
as director of PYI. The relevant procedure for proposing a person
for election as director of PYI is set out in the Letter of our Board
in the circular for re-election of directors and in our Shareholders’
Communication Policy.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES
Board’s Role and Delegation

The primary role of the board of directors of PYI (“Board”)

is to maximize long-term shareholder value. It assumes the
responsibility for providing effective and responsible leadership
and control of the Company, and directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board, led by the Chairman, approves and monitors group-
wide strategies and policies, evaluates the performance of the
Group and supervises the management.

To enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated the Managing
Director the day-to-day leadership and management of the
Group. The senior management of the Group, on the other hand,
is responsible for the management and administrative functions
and the day-to-day operations of the Group under the supervision
of the Managing Director. The corporate governance structure

of PYI as disclosed in this report at page 44 shows the detailed
relationship between the Board, the Managing Director and the
senior management as well as other stakeholders.

REEF

REBDBRERRENNEEZM - REREFZAFAR
FEREERED  AARERROARLFEXZ KA
FHFE YRBERRELERE -BEIMIRTDZ—R
FOARA AARBRRAGLEREZRERR B
ERAFBRENARE RIR2ZEH -
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Below is a summary of specific matters which are reserved for the UWTREZEREESHHHE
Board:

SUMMARY OF SPECIFIC MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD
EXREREEBENAEE

v/ Financial reporting and control
B 755 R SR AN B

v/ Equity fund raising
BARER

v/ Recommendation/declaration of dividend or other distributions
BESIEMDIENEZRKE IR

v/ Notifiable and connected transactions and price sensitive information under the Listing Rules
CETMMRADME AT R REER S RREGRER

v/ Capital reorganisation or other significant changes in the capital structure of the Group
BREEFAEEEREBNEMERNRE

Board’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial EFZREGEHBHREANEF
Statements

EXREREECRIAERRSTB®RE - UHRERE
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the EHAREERSAVHEREABIERETRAMAEER -
consolidated financial statements of the Group and for ensuring
that the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the KRB BLGHMR A SRR B REEREHER
Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable HETOEE  HINAERFEIORINE 2 B ZHE
standards. EER o

The statement of the auditor of the Company concerning its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 90 and 91 of this annual report.

48 PII:) PYI Corporation Limited 2012 Annual Report



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRS

As at the date of this report, there are 6 directors in our Board
consisting of 2 executive directors, 1 non-executive director and
3 independent non-executive directors. Accordingly, non-
executive directors account for a majority of the Board members
whereas independent non-executive directors represent half of the
Board members, thus exhibiting a strong independent element
which enhanced independent judgement. Mr Chan Shu Kin, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, has the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.

RARESEY BEBFRBAUEFAK ETBEML
WITES —[UFRATESR=ZUBIFATES - H
b FMTESHESRRBENARSE - MBI
EEHESERMEFE HMREBRUNBLTE - 18
WEHE  MARBBUFNTETRHELLAR
EHRAUMERNEENEXER - LG HAREOR
BEER -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS E£/
(as at the date of this report R AR E 2 H)

3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr Chan Shu Kin ] 82 % 4

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Non-Executive Director

FPTES

Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 & 4 5% 4 + ZmR &L PRES&TE L
Mr Li Chang An £ % 4 (Chairman & Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan R 2B 7t 4
Managing Director (Alternate to
TREREH) Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan BAEFEE%EL)

Each of the Board members is totally unrelated to each other

and the senior management in every aspect including financial,
business, or family except the father and son relationship between
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan.

There was no change of directors and committee members during
the year except that (i) Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph retired as

an independent non-executive director of the Company at the
conclusion of PYI's annual general meeting held on 16 September
2011, and ceased to be the Chairman of the Board, chairman and
member of the Company’s Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee and member of the Company’s Audit Committee

and Share Repurchase Committee (alternate to Mr Chan Shu

Kin) upon his retirement; (i) Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom was appointed
as Chairman of the Board with effect from 26 September 2011;

BRTMRERELERBBEERXTFIN EFRE—F
RERIEEARESREEELH E&FEBEH
B EBRREETEAOEERE -

FRN EFRZEENEREEEY KROIAAEBZ LR
2011FOAERITZRERRBAFERGHERKEEAR
RABMIFNTES  TREERTBLEAESRER
AARFHMEE S REZESRLEEARRERZE
BEREKKE URAQRAEZZESGRRHEEZE
T (BERBEBREE)KE ()R eR%EEA2011F9A
EHREZAEREZRER (PR ELEB2011EF
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(i) Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 29 September
2011, and also ceased to be a member of the Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee with effect
from 29 September 2011; (iv) Mr Chan Shu Kin ceased to act as
an alternate to Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest as member of the
Company’s Nomination Committee with effect from 29 September
2011; (v) Mr Li Chang An was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company with effect from 21 November 2011;
(vi) Mr Chan Shu Kin was appointed as the chairman and member
of the Company’s Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee; and the chairman of the Company’s Corporate
Governance and Compliance Committee with effect from 21
November 2011; (vii) Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph was
appointed as a member of the Company’s Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee; and an
alternate member to Mr Chan Shu Kin of the Share Repurchase
Committee of the Company with effect from 21 November 2011;
and (viii) Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan was appointed as an executive
director and Director of Corporate Finance of the Company with
effect from 23 November 2011. Brief biographical details of the
directors are set out on pages 34 to 38 of this annual report and
are also available on PYI website — www.pyicorp.com.

PYI has also maintained on its website and the HKEx’s Website
an updated list of its directors identifying their roles and functions
and whether they are independent non-executive directors.
Independent non-executive directors are also identified as such in
all corporate communications that disclose the names of directors
of the Company.

Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the Company
has received a written confirmation from each independent non-
executive director of his independence to the Company. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors
are independent.
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All Board members have complied with the requirement of
Securities and Futures Ordinance regarding disclosure of their
respective interests in PYI and its associated corporations during
the year. Interests and short positions of PYI’s directors in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of PYl and its associated
corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 80
and 81 of this annual report.

Board Meetings and Process

In order to ensure that the Board plays an effective role in steering
the Group to do businesses in the interest of shareholders,

a schedule of Board and Board committees meetings to be
conducted within the next financial year are issued well in advance
to all members, thus well-facilitating more participation by the
directors in every meetings. Within the year, 6 Board meetings
were held and most directors recorded over 75% attendance in,
and four directors recorded 100% attendance in, regular Board
and Board committees meetings.

The Board meets at least 4 times a year to review financial
performance, strategy and operations. Notice of not less than 14
days (or other reasonable period) will be given for each meeting
and agenda and board papers will be given 3 days (or other
reasonable period) prior to the meeting.

Senior management and professional advisers are invited to
attend Board meetings to brief the Board on issues considered
by the Board where appropriate. In the event where independent
professional advice is required, the seeking of such advice was
abided by pre-approved procedures.

The minutes for all of the Board meetings, which were recorded in
sufficient detail, were circulated to all directors within a reasonable
period after meetings for their comments and were kept in the
minutes book for inspection by directors.

Also, each director is required to make disclosure of his interests or
potential conflict of interests, if any, in any proposed transactions
or issues discussed by the directors at Board meetings. Any
director shall not vote on any resolution of the Board approving
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which he is
materially interested nor shall he be counted in the quorum present
at the meeting.

FRA MEEERKBRETESRREHRAIZEZNR
BRERESERFRENAABEIENNEG - REEER
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Board Tenure

As stipulated by PYI’s bye-laws, all directors (including non-
executive directors) are required to retire by rotation at least

once every three years and seek for re-election at annual general
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors
for the time being shall retire from office. Any new directors
appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board during the year by the Board following the recommendation
of the Nomination Committee are subject to re-election by
shareholders of PYI at the next following general meeting after their
appointment.

All directors (including non-executive directors) have entered into
letters of appointment with PY1 for a term of three years subject to
retirement from office by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting.

In the annual general meeting on 16 September 2011, Mr
Chan Shu Kin and Mr Li Chang An, being retired by rotation,
were successfully re-elected as directors of PYI for a term of
approximately three years until the conclusion of the annual
general meeting to be held in 2015.

In the forthcoming annual general meeting, Dr Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles and Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph will retire by
rotation. The retiring directors, being eligible, seek re-election and
their respective biographies are set out in the Letter of our Board
in the circular for re-election of directors.

Directors’ Commitments

All directors are committed to devote sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group. They have disclosed to PYI the identity
of public companies or organizations in which they have held
offices, and the number and nature of the offices, and are required
to notify PYI of any changes of such information in a timely manner.
Directors are also required to confirm details of biographies and
their time commitments to the affairs of PYI as well as the time
committed to other public companies or organizations on an
annual basis.
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Training and Professional Development

For all newly appointed directors, a comprehensive and tailored
induction programme is administered to ensure full awareness

of responsibilities under statute and common law, PYI Code of
Conduct, the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements and
the business and governance policies of the Group.

PYI continued to keep abreast of any updates on the governing
laws and regulations of the jurisdictions where it operates
businesses and applicable guidelines and rules issued by
regulatory authorities. PYI believes that it is effective to enhance
corporate governance through regular trainings within the Group.
This year, our directors and senior management have attended
seminars and/or been briefed on the updates of the CG Code. In
addition to regular attendance at Board and Board committees
meetings and in order to have a better understanding of our
business operations, directors including all independent non-
executive directors have participated field trips to Nantong, Jiaxing
and Xiao Yangkou in April 2011 and May 2012 respectively.

PYI recognises the importance of continuing professional training
for directors and senior management. Apart from monthly
management updates since April 2012, on an ongoing and regular
basis, directors are encouraged to keep up to date on all matters
relevant to the Group and attend briefings and seminars as
appropriate. The training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management will be reviewed by the
Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee on an annual
basis.

Since June 2012, we have set up a training centre in Hangzhou
office that is responsible for organising regular internal trainings for
the staff of the Group.

Board Committees

Constantly striving to achieve greater transparency and
accountability to PYI's shareholders, the Board has established five
Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance and
Compliance Committee, and Share Repurchase Committee; each
having specific roles, authority and functions as detailed in the
respective written terms of reference which are available on PYl’s
website — www.pyicorp.com. A majority of members of all Board
committees are independent non-executive directors.

The Board may also establish committees (including independent
board committee) on an ad hoc basis to approve projects as it
deems necessary.
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All Board committees have adopted, to a large extent, the same
principles, procedures, and arrangements as those of the Board

and are provided with sufficient resources to perform their duties.

The Board committees will make recommendations to the Board
on a regular basis unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions
on their ability to do so.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

EERZBEAELEMEEERMARNRA - BFM
ZH LR RGEARERUNBETERAE -EZREZ8E
BRAEERETHEREER KRIEERZTEEXER
K EEE R AEE HEER ©

BRLFELE
Board Committees EZRZE €
Corporate
Governance
and Share
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination ~ Compliance  Repurchase  Shareholders
E2R E311 ¥ R’% LEERRER ROEEE RR

Number of meetings held during the year
FRETEERY 6 3 3 1 3 0 2
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFYFES
Mr Chan Shu Kin B2 % & 6/6 3/3 11 0/0 3/3 0/0 2/2
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2E 5% & 6/6 3/3 3/3 0/0 2/2 0/2
MrLi Chang An 28 %% & 4/6 22 0/2
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph B+ 2/3 0/ 1/2 0N 0/1 11

(retired on 16 September 201152011495 16 H & ()
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 3538 % £ 4/4 0/1 2/2 11 11 11

(resigned on 29 September 201152011E9429A &1F)
Executive Directors
BTES
Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom ZIg R %4 6/6 3/3 11 0/0 2/2
Mr Chan Yiu Kun, Alan 28 % & 1/2 0/0

(appointed on 23 November 201172011 115234

BEf)
Non-Executive Director
FHTES
Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles BBl 18+ 5/6 2/2

(with Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate)

(BEBALRELEE)
Group Legal Counsel and Company Secretary
EELEAERNANE
Mr Ko Hiu Fung BEE L4 3/3 22
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The following tables show the composition of the Board

committees, their respective roles and functions and a summary HACHBERATEREZR SRS
and/or report of the works performed by them during the financial

year 2011/12:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

ATHRBERR2011 120 BEEEEREE AR -

FMZEES
Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director
# BYFHTES HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin B 8 % 4 (chairman¥ &) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 213 R % 4

(appointed as chairman and member on 21 November 2011
RO FENA21BRELRERERKE)
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 28 & %t 4
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph /&8 # &+
(ceased to be chairman and member on 16 September 2011
R2011F9F16ATHATERMAE)
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest 5438 5t 4
(resigned as member with effect from 29 September 2011
R2011F9A29B B F AR E)

Role & Function

AGERBE

Reviews the remuneration policy of the Company

NN 26

Makes recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration

of directors and senior management and on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for developing a policy on such remuneration
HRAMEEFHSAERENTMBRRER URAFEZEHEBE RE—EERMASE
RENREX REFRELEEBER

Determines or makes recommendation to the Board the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment

ARELMEZREZZERNNTESNEREEBNERETH  aFEWHE  BRSEFRE
BEeR(BERARBRIRIEEBRBEREZEMENNEIAMES)

Makes recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive directors

REEREHIFNTEENIHMH

Summary of work
performed

ITHRE

Recommended the aggregate amount of directors’ fees for shareholders’ approval at 2011
annual general meeting

BRREEETAER  HERRE20NFRAEABFRS L4tE

Reviewed the remuneration packages of senior management
B =R EIEE N T3

Reviewed the reward strategy for the implementation of the approved corporate strategy

At B R - AT R DX B

Reviewed and determined the remuneration packages of the directors on their appointments
B RETEETET2HBEB

Pld guesmaraz 20126%
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Performance-Based Remuneration Policy

The director’s fee was determined with reference to factors
including the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by
comparable companies, the duties and responsibilities of
the director, employment conditions elsewhere and the time
committed by the director.

A performance-based element was considered instrumental in
aligning the interests of individuals with those of the Group and has
been built into top-management compensation.

PYI has adopted its own reward strategy which forms an integral
part of its remuneration policy and the basis for future awards to
employees. The key aspects of such reward strategy include:

v to attract and retain talents, base pay and benefits will be
market competitive;

v to support the growth strategy of the Group, short-term and
long-term performance-based rewards will be emphasized;

v to align employee interest with shareholders, the performance-
based rewards will either be equity-based and/or cash-based;
and

v equity-based and/or cash reward will be considered in the
light of an employee’s level of responsibility and influence on
the Group’s performance and share price.

PYI effectively deployed the appropriate mix of its existing equity-
based reward vehicles, including the share option scheme, share
award scheme and share financing plan as well as cash bonus.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
REZEE

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors Executive Director

AR BUFHTES HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin B 8 % & (chairman® &) Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 213 R % 4
(ceased to be alternate to Mr Kwok Shiu Keung Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles B2+

on 29 September 2011 and appointed as chairman and (Alternate to Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
member on 21 November 2011 BEHSEEL)
ROOMEIR29B T BRI L B A L2 BEHEME -
RR2011E11A21AEZARERERKE)
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 28 & %t 4
(appointed as member on 21 November 2011
Ro011FE11A21 AEZ LB B)
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph & B+
(ceased to be chairman and member on 16 September 2011
R2011F9F16ATHATERAE)
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung 38 3 5¢ &
(resigned as member on 29 September 2011

R2011F9A29AFHE A S)
Role & Function v Reviews the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
AR Board at least annually and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes
ELEERIEZROERE  AZMRAK (BERE AERERTE)  YHEMNREZSRE
ERRNES
v Identifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select, or make

recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships

NEABREERNABARERES MUBANEZRRAEBABALTHEES

v Assesses the independence of independent non-executive directors

B FMITERRB M

v Makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in particular, the Chairman and
Managing Director

AEERREEEEZFAAENZME URES (LERIFEER) BEFSERNER

Summary of work v Nominated the retiring directors for re-election by shareholders at 2011 annual general meeting
performed RERFEFE20NFRRBFAG LEEET
THERE

v Considered and recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom as the
Chairman of the Company

ZRYMNEERRHEZEINEREEREIDALE

v Considered and recommended to the Board the appointment of Mr Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as an
Executive Director of the Company

ERAMNEEZRRHZEIRBBEEALIRBANTES

v Reviewed and assessed individual independent non-executive director’s annual confirmation of
independence declared pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

EH R ZBIUFATESRRCEMARR) F3.1316FT B8 2 F B HER K
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Nomination Procedures, Process and Criteria

RBEEF BEURER

Nomination Committee

makes recommendations

to the Board regarding
any proposed changes
REZ B G EMEHE
BPnERRRLESR

Nomination Committee

The Board makes formal
invitation to selected
persons for appointment
to the Board
ESERMEEATED
ZESENERNEF K

selects or makes
recommendations to the
Board on the selection
of persons nominated
for directorships
RELZEGHENMES
RBEEEALTHEES

Nomination Committee
identifies individuals
suitably qualified to
become directors
RELZEGYEBAESHES
B EAESHAL

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE TEERREREZERS

(Formerly known as Compliance Committee) (FIBEREESR)
Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors 1 Company Secretary
#H B BUFHTES AEWE

Mr Chan Shu Kin B 8 % & (chairman® &) + Mr Ko Hiu Fung BEEI& %L £

(appointed as chairman on 21 November 2011
R2011F11A21 B EZTBER)

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 25 & % 4
(appointed as member on 21 November 2011
Ro011E11 A2t HEZ EARE)

Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph & #1E+
(ceased to be chairman and member on 16 September 2011
R2011F9F16ATBRTERKE)

Mr Kwok Shiu Keung %843 %t &

(resigned as member on 29 September 2011

Ro0114F9H298 BT A S)

Role & Function

AeERE

Develops and reviews the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board

HERBEARRANEEERRRRER LNEERREESR

Reviews and monitors the training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management

BAREEEERESAEEENBIRFEEXREE

Reviews and monitors the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and to meet regularly with the management of the Company to assess
the Company’s compliance policies, programs and procedures

B RERARAEETEEREERTAANBELTR, TERARFTNEEETHRTER -
ARHE AR BB SFRIEK - TEKRER

Develops, reviews, monitors and approves any code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)

applicable to employees and directors of the Company

HE - RE ERIMEARRREREETNEMTAAER - &RFM(WE)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE TEERREIREESR
(Formerly known as Compliance Committee) (continued) (AIBERZEEE) ®)

v

Investigates or causes to be investigated any significant instances of non-compliance or
potential compliance violations that are reported to the Corporate Governance and Compliance
Committee

HEEBERARNERZBEGRERNENERERIECERBRAMNBEXLRERE

Reviews the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as contained in the
Listing Rules and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report
BEARRFEFCETRADAZ BEEBERTFRINBERRAE(REERRSE) NKE

Summary of work
performed

THRBE

Reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2011

EREE201MF3ANHEFE2(REERBE)

Reviewed the compliance reports on the Code of Conduct of PYI
EHRETATANERER RS

Reviewed updated compliance reports of the Company and its major PRC subsidiaries
EHARAREFHAFTZNBARNEN SR ERRS

SHARE REPURCHASE COMMITTEE

BROEBZEES
Composition 1 Independent Non-Executive Director Executive Director
# BUFHTES HITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin BR 1 B 55 & (chairmanZ /&) + Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 213 & % 4

Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 & &8 % 4
(appointed as alternate to Mr Chan Shu Kin
on 21 November 2011
R2011E11A21REZ FRGHB A £ 2 EFRE)
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph & B #tE+
(ceased to be alternate to Mr Chan Shu Kin
on 16 September 2011
R20114E9F 168 TBRRHEL 42 EHEKE)

Role & Function v Exercises the general mandate granted by shareholders to the Board to repurchase shares of PYI
AR in accordance with the Listing Rules, PYI's bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda

BBE(ETRAD) REAAMUNURBREZEREZE TERREESEREBRERN 2END
Summary of work Ve During the year, no meeting was held by the Share Repurchase Committee

performed

ITHRE

REN - BHORBZESURARE S

ch) REEMERLT 2012F% 59



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRS

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BERZEg

Composition Independent Non-Executive Directors
R BYFHITES
Mr Chan Shu Kin B € 5% & * (chairman % &)
Mr Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 25 & % 4
Mr Li Chang An ZE & L4
(appointed as member on 21 November 2011
Ro0114E11 A21 AEZ L AME)
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph & #£1E+
(ceased to be member on 16 September 2011
R20114€9F 16T HAEMKE)
Mr Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest %5438 4 4
(resigned as member on 29 September 2011
R2011F9F29B B AR E)

*

Mr Chan Shu Kin currently is a certified public accountant with extensive experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management services.

[REIEEL T R —FHEET AN EGE - B ROBEERE S HABEZE5R -

Role & Function v Appoints external auditor
AR ZAEHNEEAZ EAD

v Reviews the Group's financial information

EZHAKEMEEHR

v Oversees the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures

EEAEEMBRRHEMABEZERF

v Reviews the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval

ERRGEZRMEZABHAEETHMRBRSE

Ve Meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal control matters and to this end has
unrestricted access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors
THRSEMNMBRBMANELEEE ZEGA AL B & EEMRARRINE KA ZE

A HR 15 55t B2
Report on work v Reviewed unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and audited annual consolidated
performed financial statements of the Group with a recommendation to the Board for approval
THEHE EHAEERLERNF PGS BRERNCERN 2 EFEGAVBRR  TEZEFREB

v Reviewed internal control and risk management framework of the Group

E AL AR M AR EAER

v Received and reviewed progress reports on internal control, risk management and internal audit
actions implemented/planned by the Group

RREEMARNES  RREERASEMEGKTENABES TENERRS

v Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the audit of the Group’s
2011 final results
HENEZEMRE R AR E20MFRAEEMERNZHE

Ve Approved audit fee proposal of external auditor in connection with the review of the Group’s
2012 interim results

BN R ENAEE2012F T MEEMEZENREE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

EREEE W)
v Approved the engagement of external auditor to provide non-audit services with service fee over
HK$500,000
BEZTINERBENIEHIEZBRT  MAFRBEEBT T8ET
v Reviewed the connected transactions of the Group
ERAEEHERH
v Recommended the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Group's external auditor
at 2011 AGM
BBERNONERRBFAG FEHEMEEY  MERS AT AREBINEZEAD
v Met with external auditor in the absence of executives of the Group
EREAEEEREASESZNERLT - & LIMNSEZEED
INTERNAL CONTROL R B BE 4
Responsibility =F

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control to ensure that PY| shareholders’ investment and PYI’s
assets are safeguarded. Such system of internal control was
developed by making reference to the Internal Control Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in the United States in 1992
and the Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Management is responsible for the design and implementation of
the internal control system of the Group to achieve the following
business objectives:

v/ Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
v/ Reliability of financial reporting
v Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Such system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and aims to provide a
reasonable, as opposed to an absolute, assurance in this respect.

The Audit Committee performs review of the effectiveness

of the Group’s system of internal control and reports to the
Board regularly. This review covers areas of material control
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management systems.

EERBARHEHUASENBEERGHNRE #HER
SHHEKBMENET URERERTENRE RRE
BENRZ D - WA EE ZGE 2 E EBECommittee of
Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission
(COSO)M9RFHilz NBMERGAIERRBE S
NREHNE T ERRERESI TR -

BEEBEARTEVUTASENAMEERG  UER
THEHEE:

vV BRBRBEREREE
/o AEENTRER
v ETERERIRA

RS EEEREMPEREBREZEEBKRENER -
Hit - iR ERIRH—EEEMIFBE N IRE o

ERZESEHHASENNEERS 2 BRI EL R

MYRNEERER - RN REEBENEETE B
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Risk Management and Internal Control

To cope with the risks associated with the achievement of its
business objectives in a continually changing environment, the
Group has recognized the importance of risk management and
has performed risk assessment to evaluate the nature and extent
of the risks to which it is exposed. During the risk assessment
process, the Group was able to identify the key risks facing the
Group. The risks are prioritized according to the likelihood of their
occurrence and the significance of their impact on the businesses
of the Group and risk management measures are in place to
manage the risks to an acceptance level.

To support management in responding to risks arising from the
complex and changing business environment, regular trainings
are provided to our management to strengthen their awareness

of risk and capability to manage risks. The trainings provided this
year mainly included topics such as connected transactions under
Listing Rules and China laws and regulations, ports operating risks
and using insurance to mitigate these risks, latest development on
bank financing in China, corporate code of conduct and corporate
change management. In the second quarter of 2012, the Group
has set up a training center in its Hangzhou Supporting Center

to co-ordinate and organise the Group’s trainings across the
Mainland region and archive training materials.

The Hangzhou Supporting Center has completed the annual
reassessment of ISO9001: 2008 — Quality Management System
certification obtained last year and has set up a data center to
provide remote off-site storage of the financial backup data of PYl’s
subsidiaries in Zhejiang and Hubei regions so as to further mitigate
the risk of data loss that may result from information system failure.
This service will be extended to PYI’s other subsidiaries in Nantong
region in the second half of 2012.

Moreover, the Group has established an Enquiry and Complaint
Center and has developed policy to allow employees of the
Group to raise concerns about potential improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters. The implementation
procedure of this policy will be released and implemented in the
second half of 2012.

Review of Internal Control System

Management is required to perform control self assessments
annually to assess the effectiveness of their systems of internal
control at business units level. The control self assessment is in the
form of questionnaire that sets out key factors in each of the five
components of the COSO Internal Control Integrated framework.
These five interrelated components are Control Environment, Risk
Assessment, Control Activities, Information and Communication
and Monitoring. In order to extend the scope of the review, the
control self assessment conducted in this year has been extended
to cover controls at business processes level.
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The control self assessment has not only facilitated the
identification of control deficiencies, it has also enhanced
management’s awareness of risk and control. In addition to the
control self assessment, management has also conducted an
annual review of the policies and procedures of PYI to ensure that
they are still effective and adequate.

Internal audit department of PYI has carried out independent
audits to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control according to the approved three-year internal audit
plan for the Group. This audit plan was determined using a risk-
based approach and is re-assessed annually to ensure adequate
audit resources are deployed and the objectives of the plan are
met.

Management has formulated remedial action plan for gaps and
weaknesses identified during the control self assessments,
independent internal control review performed by external
consultant and internal audit. The internal audit department has
conducted follow-up review periodically to ensure remedial actions
are implemented on a timely basis and has reported the results of
the review to the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Board was not aware of
any significant issues that would have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system of the
Group.

Review of Accounting and Financial Reporting Function

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff

of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget, and was satisfied with the
results of the review.

Update of Policy on Disclosure

In view of proposed amendment to the Securities and Future

Ordinance, the Group has reviewed and recently updated its policy

on disclosure and public relations.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit department of PYI set up in November 2007 is
headed by the Group Internal Audit Senior Manager who reports
directly to the Audit Committee of PYI. It plays an important role
in the internal governance of the Group. With the assistance from
external internal audit consultant, the internal audit department

is primarily responsible for conducting review and audit on the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control periodically.

The internal audit department is independent from operational
management and is fully empowered to access to data required in
performing the internal audit review. Moreover, the department is
comprised of well qualified and capable staff and is provided with
adequate resources to perform its duties.

During the year 2011/2012, the internal audit department has
completed internal audit works for the first year of its second
three-year internal audit strategic plan including a compliance
review on the ISO9001:2008 certification of Hangzhou Supporting
Center in order to ensure the continuity of the certification. The
plan was developed by adopting risk-based approach and was
approved by the Audit Committee to guide and direct the internal
audit assignments over the period. During the process of internal
audits, the department identified internal control weakness, made
recommendations for improvement, obtained remedial action
plan of management and followed up remedial status of the
management action plan and its timeliness.

64 PII:) PYI Corporation Limited 2012 Annual Report

M AP

R2007F 11 AL MR E R AR ERT B8P Th i AR B A 28
B EAEEETE NERAREEZZE2ER A
HMEABAIRAEEANLEAREERZAS BRI
BOABETERIZAEHAEB RN REaME T
EHMELERLESE -

NHBTHFIBUNEEEE WETEREERFIER
HEAEZNEN  RAAERRENNBEITARKEA
RABREBITHBE -

72011/2012F F - A EH ML TK T EZFH=
FRMEA BT EFORBETTE - BIELHTM
BN TT ISO9001 : 20084 R EZ - UHERHEKE
EERF -ZiT2RERERAER  YEEZZES
oA - AUAESI R EBBHMAANBET TE - ERIF
BEF  ZBPIMA ARG REKEER B
BHEEENTHREFIE THEEBNARONKE
500 R L R B M4 R o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

EXTERNAL AUDITOR SNEE A% BY B

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has been re-appointed as EHemER T AT ([EY]) ER2011FRRRBF
the Company’s external auditor at 2011 annual general meeting Ke FWEHETAAATINEZYM 23 T—EBE
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The Audit HEFAREHERAIL - EHREZTE@N2012F6A21H 2
Committee in its meeting on 21 June 2012 recommended the % EEE0ERFREFEAS FEFEITEH AR
re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor at NENEEEE MEERTEEKEEe 58— -
2012 annual general meeting and the Board has adopted the

same view as that of the Audit Committee. BTREBEBYM EYETZEERLAEEHLEAUBHR

REHREZBRYE UERT@BEEBIMHETEL I

In order to maintain independence, Deloitte is primarily responsible 0 E B B B 3E T BR
AT %2z B JE R % 7 °

for providing audit services in connection with the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, and only provides non-audit
services that do not impair their independence or objectivity and
are approved by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION PAID OR PAYABLE TO DELOITTE FOR AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES
ENFENTFESNRBRILBREME

2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

Services Rendered 1= 6t 19 BR % FET FHET

Audit services ZH R 7,584 7,554
Non-audit services B RS

Taxation advisory BIs 403 315

Special engagements FE LR 6,874 4,120

Total Fb- 14,861 11,989
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In 2011/2012, the Group continued to discharge its corporate
social responsibility in many areas, both internally and towards to
the community.

Our most notable contribution in 2011 is the participation of

our employees in the fund raising campaign in Hong Kong - the
Artistes 311 Love Beyond Borders for the victims of the tsunami
along the east coast of Japan. We witnessed the destruction
caused by the disaster and our hearts are with those who suffered
the loss of their homes and their families. To contribute to the
rebuilding of their lives, PYI encouraged and supported our
executive and staff’s efforts to participate and to contribute their
professional skills to the success of the campaign. Their efforts,
combined with those of the Hong Kong citizens, raised the much-
needed funds for the victims. We sincerely support the culture

of volunteering amongst our staff and will continue to support
their efforts in the years to come. In addition, we also donated
HK$1,000,000 to Friends of Hope Education Fund of Hong Kong
in December 2011 with the hope to support education works in
both Hong Kong and the Mainland China which include sponsoring
tuition fees for AIDS infected children in Wuhan, building and
repairing schools in Guizhou and helping ethnic minority in Hong
Kong to cope with the community.

In January 2012, PYI is honored to have sponsored a study tour
to Hong Kong for 30 outstanding secondary school students

from Wuhan for the fourth year and organized trips to Housing
Authority, secondary school, universities and the Stock Exchange
in Hong Kong aiming at educating the students on the educational
and commercial operations in Hong Kong with the continual belief
in growing the potential of the next generation. Currently, PYl is
organising a study tour to Hong Kong in July 2012 for outstanding
secondary school students from Nantong for the sixth year. We
are delighted to witness an impressive percentage of the students,
who are among the top students in their home towns, chose to
pursue their tertiary education in Hong Kong.

At PYI, our businesses are intricately connected to the
environment. With a sense of social responsibility towards the
environment, we supported the global “Earth Hour” campaigned
by World Wide Fund ( “WWF”) by turning off the non-essential
lights in our office for an hour at 8:30 p.m. on 31 March 2012.
We also encouraged our staff to support “Earth Hour” through
our internal communications. In appreciation of our efforts, PYl is
pleased to have received thanks from WWF.
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While PYI remains committed to the good of the society, both
locally and regionally, we are also focused on caring for our staff’s
well being. We encourage our staff to maintain a healthy work-life
balance and continue to support their efforts towards voluntary
work. In addition, PY! is proud to be accredited, for the fourth
year running, with the Caring Company Award by The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service.

As we progress into the new fiscal year, PY|l would like to maintain
our focus to be a responsible and caring corporate citizen,
contributing to the community while driving profitability for our
shareholders.

By Order of the Board

Ko Hiu Fung
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 22 June 2012
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The Board is committed to enhancing value for our shareholders
through sustainable growth. This section serves to provide
information relating to our shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HKO0.5 cent per share for the year ended 31 March
2012 (2011: HK1 cent) to shareholders whose names appear

on PYI’s register of members as at the close of business on
Wednesday, 10 October 2012. Subject to the approval of PYI’s
shareholders in the 2012 Annual General Meeting to be held on
Monday, 10 September 2012, the final dividend is expected to be
paid to shareholders by post on or around Friday, 9 November
2012.

The final dividend will be paid in cash, with PYI’s shareholders
being offered an opportunity to re-invest in PY! by receiving shares
of PYlin lieu of cash in respect of part or all of such dividend. The
market value of the shares to be issued under the scrip dividend
proposal will be fixed by reference to the average of the closing
prices of PY!I’s shares for the three consecutive trading days
ending Wednesday, 10 October 2012 less a discount of five per
cent of such average price or the par value of shares, whichever
is the higher. The proposed scrip dividend is conditional upon The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting listing of, and
permission to deal in, the new shares to be issued.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of PY!| will be closed during the period
from Monday, 8 October 2012 to Wednesday, 10 October 2012,
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of share(s)
of PYI will be effected. In order to qualify for both of the final
dividend, all transfer of share(s), accompanied by the relevant
share certificate(s) with the completed transfer form(s) with overleaf
or separately, must be lodged with PYI’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre,

28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 5 October 2012.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholdings as recorded in the PYI register of members as at

31 March 2012

IR R

R2012F3 AT H B RER R LM 2B REFRE

% of % of issued
No. of shareholders share capital
Size of registered shareholdings shareholders HRREE No. of shares HEBRTRA
BERERERE BEREH Batk BHEE BAL
500 or below A T~ 331 57.17% 43,008 0.00%
501 - 1,000 31 5.35% 22,848 0.00%
1,001 - 10,000 116 20.04% 405,005 0.01%
10,001 - 100,000 68 11.74% 2,350,519 0.05%
100,001 - 1,000,000 22 3.80% 5,468,302 0.12%
1,000,001 - 10,000,000 7 1.21% 25,649,218 0.56%
10,000,001 - 100,000,000 - - - -
Above 100,000,000 sk LA £ 4% 0.69% 4,524,554,675 99.26%
Total #& 5t 579 100.00% 4,558,493,575 100.00%
*  The four shareholders were: ZUAL R DR A
1 HKSCC Nominees Limited BEPREE (REANBRAQ
DCP,/GCP EEgE cEEELESE 2,599,409,149 57.02%
Custodians B 550,155,702 12.07%
Investors wEE 26,128,045 0.57%
Others HAft 544 0.00%
3,175,693,440" 69.66%
Hollyfield Group Limited 995,039,069 21.83%
Jadeview Limited 200,781,000 4.40%
Rich Concept Investments Limited 153,016,185 3.36%
4,524,529,694 99.25%

The breakdown of the shareholding in the name of HKSCC Nominees

Limited was obtained from the record shown in the CCASS Participants
Shareholding Report (‘PSH Report”). The number of shares registered

in HKSCC Nominees Limited as shown in the PSH Report is different
from that shown on the PY!’s register of members because some shares
withdrawn from or deposited into the CCASS depository had not yet been

re-registered.

A BEBPREE(REA)BRARLATREMENERNER
CCAsSZ2 @ E R MM ([2HERNER]) - 28EH
BRBEATRAEEPREE (RBA)BRLALEERL
M BB BRERRAMATEFER - &E{LCCASS
EHFFERRERLF ACCASSE FFE R D I m &

BHER-
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Top five shareholders according to disclosure of interest under the

R201263A318  BE(EHFMNAEKI BEFET

Securities and Futures Ordinance as at 31 March 2012 Z A RB KR
% of issued
share capital
Name of shareholders No. of shares HEBITRA
KREZHE kB Bok
1 Hollyfield Group Limited 1,213,537,695 26.62%
2 Third Avenue Management LLC 475,758,107 10.44%
3 0Z Management L.P. 358,030,467 7.85%
4 Hof Hoorneman Bankiers N.V. 272,120,893 5.97%
5 CIM Investment Management Limited 228,000,000 5.00%
Total &5t 2,547,447,162 55.88%

FINANCIAL CALENDAR BB

Event Date
-8} H &

2011 final results, final dividend of HK1 cent/share and
2012 special cash dividend of HK2 cents/share announced

EM0ERBMES  SFRUBILRERER2012F8B2B SRS RS

24/06/2011

2011 PYI AGM
201MRERRBF RS

16/09/2011

2011 final dividend of HK1 cent/share and
2012 special cash dividend of HK2 cents/share paid
2011 FEFRIBI KRR S R2012FFR2BIWFRIR SR E

28/10/2011

2012 interim results announced

25/11/2011

EM2012F P HIREE

2012 final results and final dividend of HK0.5 cent/share announced 22/06/2012
EM2012F REAZEE R ERO.SEIIREARE

2012 PYI AGM 10/09/2012
202RERRBEFAE

2012 final dividend of HKO.5 cent/share payable
k#2012 B 180.58 Il R HA AR 2

Around#J5209/11/2012
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SHARE INFORMATION

Share Listing

PYI shares were first listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on

21 September 1993.

Stock Code

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
American Depository Receipt
Frankfurt Stock Exchange

Board lot

Securities In Issue

Shares

As at 31 March 2012
As at 22 June 2012

Outstanding share options*

As at 31 March 2012
As at 22 June 2012

*

report.

Share Price
RE

HK$
AT

1.0
0.8
0.6
0.4

0.2

Full details can be found in the Directors’

498
PYIFY
PYW

2,000 shares

4,558,493,575 shares
4,558,493,575 shares

62,276,668 options
62,276,668 options

Report at pages 75 to 77 of this

B L

RERMDPI9BFIAI R B REB BRI H LT »

) &/t
BERBM
EHTEFEES
ERRRER S

BEEEM(FF)

1T i %

(u
e

K173
H201243A31H
H2012967822H

8 7K 7712 fE IR #E*
H2012%3A31H
H2012%F6H22H

498
PYIFY
PYW

2,0008%

4,558,493,575%
4,558,493,575/%

62,276,66817
62,276,66817

FE2HRFERETGRTTAZEERWES -

— Share price (cum dividend)
AR E GEL)

= Share price (ex dividend)
BB (B 2)

0.0

04-2011

05-2011

06-2011

07-2011
08-2011
09-2011
10-2011

11-2011
12-2011

01-2012

02-2012

03-2012
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MARKET CAPITALISATION mE

Total Market Capitalisation e

As at 31 March 2012 HK$953 million 201243 A31H 9.53{EE T
As at 22 June 2012 HK$770 million R201266 2218 7. 7088 T
Public float capitalisation* N FF R (B

As at 31 March 2012 HK$557 million R2012F3A31H 557EBTT
As at 22 June 2012 HK$451 million 201246 A22H 4515 T
*  Public excludes all connected persons (including substantial shareholders O RARUTABEREMEEEAT (BEETERERESE) -

and directors) of PYI.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of PY| Corporation
Limited (“PYI” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities as at 31 March 2012 are set out in note 56 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 92 of this annual report and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

A special cash dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of
HK2 cents per share amounting to a total sum of approximately
HK$90,583,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The directors recommended for shareholders’ approval the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 of
HKO.5 cent per share in cash with a scrip option to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on 10 October
2012. The estimated total sum payable in respect of this final
dividend is approximately HK$22,792,000.

Details of the distribution are set out in note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the five largest customers
and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 44% and 15% of the turnover of the Group
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group during the year were less than 30%
of the purchases of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the directors are aware, none
of the directors and their associates within the meaning of the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), or those shareholders

which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, have an interest in any of the five largest

customers of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012.

EERMARZRELSEERAB([RE]H[EA2F])
REMBAR (HBIAEE]) HZE2012F3A31H IEF
EZFRBIEERREVHERE -

ETEXRK
ARBR-FREEBRAE -

RABRZSEEMB LT  BEQE RAREHEER
2012F3 A31 0 2 G &S N 4R & B 15 MR MY 5156 ©

XBERANBDIK

B ZE201263A31B L FEREB 2 EE LR DA Z A
BORBIREAFRBVCEZHRABERREFT RS
IS RER MR -

FERRETFREEE2012F3A31B ILFE 2B RIR
SR EFR2EN - 4 ££4790,583,000/ 7T °

EEREREMAEREEH Z201263A31BLFE Z K
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201210108 B3 IRER B 2 IR - Fh L REAR S
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet
its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s
total borrowings amounted to approximately HK$2,653,007,000
with approximately HK$1,715,307,000 repayable within one year,
approximately HK$937,700,000 repayable after one year. Cash,
bank balances and deposits as at 31 March 2012 amounted

to approximately HK$1,740,461,000. The Group’s current

ratio (calculated as total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) was 1.24 and the debt to equity ratio (calculated as
total borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was 0.58 as at 31 March 2012.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$213,887,000
on property, plant and equipment, mainly for construction of ports.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group transferred approximately
HK$14,772,000 from project under development to investment
properties. All investment properties were revalued at the year end
date.

Details of these and other movements in the investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES RHRESE
1. Share Option Scheme 1. BRAESTE

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme adopted
on 27 August 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are set out in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2012, an aggregate of 62,276,668 shares are

issuable for options granted under the Share Option Scheme,

representing 1.37% of the then existing issued share capital of
the Company (i.e. 4,558,493,575 shares).

As at the date of this report, the above share options granted
under the Share Option Scheme remain outstanding.

Details of movements in the share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows:

AANRTR2002F8 27 B M 2 BT 2] ([88
RRHEETE ) 2 FBHINRERE W RERM 7545 o

201293 A31H  RIFEBRETIE R LEHETR
862,276,668 X (2 ML ARITE 2 BEARIE - 0 kAR
MEARR R E BB BT A (814,558,493,5750% Ak 17)
791.37% ©

RS B+ bh 18 R0 AR A 5T B9 11 2 B IR D 8
CESET

RER  REBREFIROZBREZZBFBEN
T

Number of shares issuable under the options granted

BERLBRESTRTNRAGEAE
Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
price as at during as at Exercise
Grantee Date of grant  per share 1.4.2011 the year 31.3.2012 period
71.4.2011 7381.3.2012
ARA RUEBH SBRITEE I8 R AT FREH ie AR 4T B TS
HK$
BT
Directors
B2
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 28.12.2004 0.43762 18,416,666 - 18,416,666 28.12.2004 -
ZmR 26.8.2012
28.12.2004 0.52940 18,416,666 - 18,416,666 28.12.2004 -
26.8.2012
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 0.43762 1,841,666 - 1,841,666 28.12.2004 -
[ 26.8.2012
28.12.2004 0.52940 1,841,666 - 1,841,666 28.12.2004 -
26.8.2012
Leung Po Wing, Bowen 8.9.2006 0.85762 3,683,334 - 3,683,334 8.9.2006 -
Joseph 26.8.2012
Li Chang An 6.2.2007 1.05881 3,683,334 - 3,683,334 6.2.2007 -
FE% 26.8.2012
Sub-total /gt : 47,883,332 - 47,883,332
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EERHmEE
SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES — continued RipEEE — &
1. Share Option Scheme — continued 1. BREE — &
Number of shares issuable under the options granted
BERLBRESTRTNRAGEAE
Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
price as at during as at Exercise
Grantee Date of grant  per share 1.4.2011 the year 31.3.2012 period
#1.4.2011 #31.3.2012
AEERA RERE SBROTEE te K AT 66 FREH ted K 47 66 g
HK$
BT
Employees
E&8
Hong Kong 3.6.2008 0.70584 5,666,666 (5,666,666) - 1.10.2008 -
E 2.6.2011
3.6.2008 0.70584 5,666,666 (5,666,666) - 1.10.2009 -
2.6.2011
3.6.2008 0.70584 2,833,334 (2,833,334) - 1.4.2010 -
2.6.2011
3.6.2008 0.70584 2,833,334 (2,833,334) - 1.10.2010 -
2.6.2011
3.6.2008 0.88232 5,666,666 (5,666,666) - 3.6.2009 -
2.6.2011
3.6.2008 1.05881 7,083,331 (7,083,331) - 3.6.2010 -
2.6.2011
Sub-total /Mgt : 29,749,997 (29,749,997) -
The Mainland 3.6.2008 0.70584 12,142,857 (12,142,857) - 1.10.2008 -
At 2.6.2011
3.6.2008 0.70584 12,142,857 (12,142,857) - 1.10.2009 -
2.6.2011
3.6.2008 0.70584 6,071,429 (6,071,429) - 1.4.2010 -
2.6.2011
3.6.2008 0.70584 6,071,429 (6,071,429) - 1.10.2010 -
2.6.2011
Sub-total /Mgt : 36,428,572 (36,428,572) -
Advisors 28.12.2004 0.43762 1,841,668 - 1,841,668 28.12.2004 -
s 26.8.2012
28.12.2004 0.52940 12,551,668 - 12,551,668 28.12.2004 -
26.8.2012
Sub-total /M5t : 14,393,336 - 14,393,336
Grand total #&5t : 128,455,237 (66,178,569) 62,276,668
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES — continued
1. Share Option Scheme — continued

BRIDRETE — &
1. BREE — &

Notes:

1. All the above outstanding share options of PYI were vested in the
relevant grantees upon the first date of their respective exercise
periods.

2. No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Share Option Scheme during the year.

Particulars of share option scheme of Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited (“PYE”), a subsidiary of the Company, are set
out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2012, there were no outstanding options

granted under the share option scheme of PYE. Also, no share

options of PYE were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year.

. Share Award Scheme

This scheme adopted by the Company on 23 February 2006
allows the Company to make bonus payments to eligible
persons (including employees, directors, consultants, advisers
and agents of the Group) by way of the Company’s shares
acquired by and held through an independent trustee until
fulfillment of specified conditions before vesting.

During the year, no shares of PYI were awarded under this
scheme.

A share award scheme was also adopted by PYE on 6
September 2006. This incentive scheme allows PYE to make
bonus payments to eligible persons (including employees,
directors, consultants, advisers and agents of PYE and its
subsidiaries (the “PYE Group”)) by way of shares of PYE
acquired by and held through an independent trustee until
fulfillment of specified conditions before vesting.

During the year, no shares of PYE were awarded under this
scheme.

. Share Financing Plan

This plan, adopted by the Company on 14 February 2006,
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) to borrow
funds from the Company to acquire new or old shares of the
Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject shares
pledged to the Company as security, subject always to
connected transaction and other relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules.

i -

1. NEMBERERNRITECBRESEES B 2TTERHN
BEH BETEBARA-

2. R REEREFSBMEBREREDL - ITERKE

ARRIMBRARRERZEEEERAR ([REZE])
BB 2B RN A M MARM 45 -

P2012F3A31H  MERBREZEBRETEE
HmMEATEZEBRE TR MEREZFEERE
WM 1718« GRS AK -

. RO EBEE

BRI AR B R20065F2 A23B R 25t & - AR FE A
MEERAT (BEAEEZEE BF FEHA-
BEREREA) ARG ROOFENIREFLL  F
BB —2BIXTEABARREE  BEEETHHE
BIEHERRIL -

FA - BEREILE S RRERERD

SN - PRI TR R20065F O A6 R £ T — B )
RE:TE - Bl REZETRNEGEBAL(BER
ZREXREMBAR ((RERZXEEDZEE &
= BRAA BRARRBANRIREEZEZRNE
TEM - ZERNEHE —BBLXTABARTE B
ERENBBRMTERRL -

TR BERBULG B BRREZERD ©

. RO BERE

RIBEAR DA R2006F2 A 148 M 2518 - GERA
T (ERAEEZER EF HFHAA ERRRE
N AERFERNERT  MARBERABEAR
REFMRERD - MBEEROEREADFHERR
oW ANECETRADEHBER S EMBIAR
B2 IRE
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES — continued
3. Share Financing Plan — continued

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was provided
by the Group under this plan.

A share financing plan was also adopted by PYE on 6
September 2006. This incentive plan allows eligible persons
(including employees, directors, consultants, advisers and
agents of the PYE Group) to borrow funds from PYE or from a
company within the PYE Group on a non-recourse basis, for
the purpose of acquiring new or old shares of PYE with the
subject shares pledged to PYE as security, subject always to
connected transaction and other relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules.

During the year, no financing to eligible persons was provided
under this plan by PYE.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share incentive schemes disclosed above, at no
time during the year or at the end of the year was Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2012 amounted to approximately HK$747,516,000
(2011: HK$1,020,755,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Independent non-executive directors

Chan Shu Kin

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph cas, s

Li Chang An

Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph ot s (retired on 16 September 2011)
Kwok Shiu Keung, Ernest (resigned on 29 September 2011)

Executive directors

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Chairman and Managing Director)
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan (appointed on 23 November 2011)

Non-executive director

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
(with Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate)

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles and Mr Leung Po Wing,
Bowen Joseph retire by rotation and, being eligible, will stand for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
requirements under the Company’s bye-laws, and they are
appointed for a specific term of approximately three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

£
FRRBEARE ML ARAZEEMT

BIUFHTES

PR 1 22

RBE L ces, 0P

TER

JEIBRHE ose wp (FR20114F9F 16 HE(T)
Aok (R2011469H29H BHT)
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AmR(EEFAE)
PR (R20114F11 H23H EZE )

FHUTES

R B o
(BREBRETEE)

BEADNEZ ATMEIEST()ERS7(2)1E - FREJEL
MRELERERBRTZRRAFAS Lt ERA -
WHEERBEREL -

FRTEFARBARRAMUGFERET EREZMEEE
EHRO=FELE -

EE2BRBEN

BRI ETCRRBFAG LEESEESY HA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2012, the interests/short positions of each of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) or as notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix

10 of the Listing Rules, are set out below:

Name of Director/
chief executive

i £ V8
TRAREHR

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
=R

Chan Kwok Keung,
Charles

RE %

Chan Shu Kin
B B

Leung Po Wing,

Bowen Joseph

Li Chang An
FEX
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Capacity

&t

Beneficial owner, Family interest
& Interest of controlled
corporation

ESBAA  RkER
X EEEES

Beneficial owner & Interest of
controlled corporation

BB ARREERER

Beneficial owner

BEA

=
L

E/ |<

Beneficial owner

ExEAA

Beneficial owner

ExnkEAA

EEREETRAERRG HERORES
ZEBERKE

M201263A31H ARREERERTHABERAR
Az RBEBRODFPHEELNEINABBE(ESRRBAE
B B2 FUFEZARRI B RMAEBIE(ED
HADKE0MC EM AR ESETEF X HWIZETA])
([CREFADBBRARARBEABRARIMBRA
A B2 PR R 2 e A B #HFINT

Number of shares/underlying shares held

BERR/ RBERGHE
(Note fif&t 1)
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate Other % of issued
Interests Interests Interests Interests Total share capital
RE BT
BRARH L
EAARE REER ATER Hit s ay Aok
(Note fif&t 2)
51,070,807 153,016,185 153,016,185 - 204,086,992 4.48
(Note fif7t 3) (Note fif7t 4) (Note {7t 4) (Note fift 5)
35,936,031 - 1,213,537,695 - 1,249,473,726 27.41
(Note ff7% 6)
3,683,332 - - - 3,683,332 0.08
(Note fi&% 7)
3,683,334 - - - 3,683,334 0.08
(Note ffzt 7)
3'683’3,34 - - - 3,683,334 0.08
(Note fif7t 7)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES — continued

Notes:

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
were long positions. None of the directors and chief executive of the
Company held any short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2012.

2. Based on the Company'’s issued share capital of 4,558,493,575 shares as
at 31 March 2012.

3. Such interests held by Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom comprised:
() 14,237,475 shares; and

(i) 36,833,332 underlying shares in respect of share options granted to
him on 28 December 2004 pursuant to the share option scheme of
the Company, further details of which are set out in the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” above.

4. The two references to 153,016,185 shares relate to the same block of
shares in the Company. Such interests are indirectly held by a company
which is equally owned by Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and his spouse in the
proportion of 50% and 50%.

5. This figure refers to an aggregate of the 51,070,807 shares/underlying
shares under personal interests and the 153,016,185 shares under family
and corporate interests.

6. Such interests were held by Hollyfield Group Limited (“Hollyfield”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ITC Investment Holdings Limited (“ITC Investment”
which was, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Corporation Limited
(“ITC”)). Galaxyway Investments Limited (“Galaxyway”), an indirect wholly-
owned company of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles, owned approximately
26.89% of the issued share capital of ITC. Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
also personally held approximately 6.76% of the issued share capital of
ITC. By virtue of his aggregate interest of approximately 33.65% in ITC, Dr
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Hollyfield.

7. All these interests held by such directors were underlying shares in respect
of share options granted to them on 28 December 2004, 8 September
2006 or 6 February 2007 pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the Company had any

interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ZEHRIAERAEREZERBE
(i) 14,237,475 /%1% &

(i) BEA R FEIE B HR2004F 128288 % F 21 % &
B B8 B HE P75 K 2 36,833,332 i BA IR (5 - BRI IBEE
IR EXBEAERETE]—& -

B A2 ] 153,016,185 AR B f& 15 » BRI — HL AR 10
*onzéﬂé SiE B — %E%\Jmﬁﬁi&ﬁ@%ﬁ 3 RIIAY S L
Pl50%M50%FT A < ARl EEFE °

It 81 5 5 B N B HE 25 #951,070,807 B AL 19, AR B R 1D - A
FEBRRIEMA B EZER153,016,1850% i 5 KA FI -

% % # z AITC Investment Holdings Limited ([1TC
MEFEtcXEBERAR ([BERED 2
2EMELRA) 22 &M E 2 AHollyfield Group Limited
([Hollyfield]) %56 - MRERE T+ HMEZ2EHEB 2R A
Galaxyway Investments Limited ([ Galaxyway ) # B @2 # 1
FEBTRALN2689% - REBELTUNBAALEFHE
#ﬁé%ﬁ?‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁi%?ﬁ% HRRERIE T HEEELE

H#933.65% # 2 - W R B K Hollyfield# B 2 IR D P A

3¢,
fm

Investment | -

-
i

HZSEEMHAEZ LSRRI DREARFBRESER
2004412 428H - 20069 A8H 52007F2A6H X F %2 &
EENBREMY L2 HERG - FEFBEEEHIN EXE
RIEREE ] —8 -

R2012F3A31H » AR AISEF K

RE{TRABBERRRRSEEABEER (EE R (E

FREEGH)E TR 2B

CHEERORESTHE

BEFAANARBCGE S RPE GO EI2G6ATHER

RARBNELRMALRIERE

SADMARTAE

NE MR FTE R RAR

ch) REEEERAT 2012F% 81

~




/

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBESE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2012, none of the directors of the Company is
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s businesses)
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly and
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those as disclosed under the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below, there are no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 29 April 2010 and 28 October 2011, Paul Y. Construction &
Engineering Co. Limited (“PYCECL”) and Paul Y. Builders Limited
(“PYBL”), both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of PYE which, in
turn, was an indirect 61.92% owned subsidiary of PYI, entered into
respective agreements with Archiplus International (HK) Limited
(“Archiplus”) which acted on behalf of Castle Win International
Limited (“Castle Win”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Properties Group Limited (“ITC Properties”), pursuant to which
PYCECL and PYBL agreed to undertake and perform certain
construction works; and Archiplus on behalf of Castle Win agreed
to pay HK$18,580,000 and HK$83,400,000 to PYCECL and
PYBL respectively.

On 16 January 2012, Paul Y. Foundation Limited (“PYFL”),

an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of PYE, entered into an
agreement with Keen Step Corporation Limited (“Keen Step”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Properties, pursuant to
which PYFL agreed to undertake and perform certain construction
works; and Keen Step agreed to pay HK$42,800,000 (with a cap
of HK$50,000,000) to PYFL, which was subsequently revised to
HK$47,988,000.

Following a repurchase offer completed by ITC Properties on 10
February 2012, ITC Properties and its subsidiaries (“ITC Properties
Group”) has become an associate of [TC Corporation Limited,

a substantial shareholder of PYI, and thus a connected person
of PYI pursuant to Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules from 10
February 2012. The transactions under the agreements begun
to constitute continuing connected transactions of PYI under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules from 10 February 2012, with
the maximum aggregate values of HK$11 million, HK$85 million
and HK$28 million for the period from 10 February 2012 to 31
March 2012 and the financial years ending 31 March 2013 and
2014 respectively. Details of the transactions were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 April 2012.
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EERHmEE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BEBEXRS — &

— continued R AEEREHBESET VA TR ERSE
During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions BER S WABT(FTHIDNER AEREEE

with ITC Properties Group which constituted continuing connected BT RES ST HENT
transactions and were subject to reporting, announcement and

annual review requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of such

transactions are as follows:

Name of party Nature of transactions Amount
REHER REME £
HK$’000
FAT
Castle Win, an indirect wholly-owned Construction works charged by the Group 10,851
subsidiary of ITC Properties NEFWERETREER
YRE - R E EEEEME AR
Keen Step, an indirect wholly-owned Construction works charged by the Group Nil
subsidiary of ITC Properties ANEFWERETRRER i
IR EEMEZ AR BB AR
10,851
The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s RARZEMEBZREREBSHMASEMBZES
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong BB w kO 8| 30008 [EERAENBENKER Y
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance ERTE] T2BREHHBAE4ORBARES LD %E
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial B P BRSSO | - A EE Y BB
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s B 5 e R o B BUET B AR I L 45 B E14A 380K ﬁ

Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong

Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified ARAERRELBAAGMEXARE SRR

Public Accountants. The auditor has issued to the board of HZMEERLEwZBRETR AN - AHARITZE
directors of the Company its unqualified letter containing its AT 2RMIF -

findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected

transactions disclosed above with a copy provided to the Stock RARZBMENEEREREHEUN LEFZEELE
Exchange in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. RRARBUFNTESCEHNRBR XM FERE

2 RNIA T IER T ETAL
The auditor of the Company has reported its factual findings on 2P PR TRR T I3

the above procedures to the board of directors of the Company.
The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected

() HEARAQRFIBEXEKBREFRFIL

; i e s g s —
transactions as set out above have been entered into: (i) HERE % RRXTBRERAEBLE=TH
1§ ZIRRATL + ]2
()  inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company; (iii) WJF*E BAmEREATEEB 2GR - BFEAR
BERE M -

(i)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available from
independent third parties; and

(i in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FERR HttALZREEZRKXR
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS
As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of

the substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and FRETIUNFEZEEMAZESERAR
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(1) Substantial shareholders 1) EERR

Approximate

Long position/ Number of shares/ % of the issued

Name of shareholder Capacity short position underlying shares held share capital
HE BT
BERGR R 7 B9 BE 4
BREREE 14 ¥R/ %R HEROHE BAk
(Note fifzt 1)
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles Beneficial owner Long position 35,936,031 0.79%
CEE BaBAA 8
Interest of controlled Long position 1,213,537,695 26.62%
corporation -y
SR
(Note 5t 2)
Ng Yuen Lan, Macy Interest of spouse Long position 1,249,473,726 27.41%
o f s e
(Note Hf&# 3)
ITC Interest of controlled Long position 1,213,537,695 26.62%
BELE corporation we
XEEEER
(Note fif&F 2)
ITC Investment Interest of controlled Long position 1,213,537,695 26.62%
corporation HE
XEEEER
(Note Kt&F 2)
Hollyfield Beneficial owner Long position 1,213,5637,695 26.62%
ERBEAA e
(Note ff&F 2)
Third Avenue Management LLC Investment manager Long position 485,314,668 10.65%
(“Third Avenue LLC”) RELE HE (Note fif#t 5)
(Note fif&t 4)
Third Avenue Small Cap Value Fund  Beneficial owner Long position 485,270,668 10.65%
(“Third Avenue Fund”) EmEAA HE (Note fifit 6)
(Note fizt 4)
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EERHmEE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FTERR HttALZEBRKXR — &
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS
— continued
(2) Other persons (2 Hft At
Approximate
Long position/ Number of shares/ % of the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity short position underlying shares held share capital
EE BT
BE/ KR BERGR R 2 B9 #E 4
BRERAE 514 HERGOHE Bk
(Note fifzt 1)
Daniel Saul Och Interest of controlled Long position 358,030,467 7.85%
corporation 5}
XEEEER
(Note ff&F 7)
Och-Ziff Capital Management Interest of controlled Long position 358,030,467 7.85%
Group LLC (“Och-Ziff Capital”) corporation we
REEE#ER
(Note fifzt 7)
Och-Ziff Holding Corporation Interest of controlled Long position 358,030,467 7.85%
(“Och-Ziff Holding”) corporation e
REEEER
(Note fizt 7)
0OZ Management L.P. Investment manager Long position 358,030,467 7.85%
(*0Z Management”) REKE HE
(Note fizt 7)
Hof Hoorneman Bankiers N.V. Investment manager Long position 272,120,893 5.97%
REKE HE
CIM Investment Management Limited  Investment manager Long position 228,000,000 5.00%
REKE e

Notes: it o -

1. Based on the Company’s issued share capital of 4,558,493,575 shares 1. BA201243A31H A1t A B 8 17 i 7°4,558,493,575 % ik
as at 31 March 2012, MRELE-

2. Hollyfield, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment (which was, in 2. ITC Investment (BMEH X 2EMBAR) 22 &N
turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC), owned 1,213,537,695 shares B A AHollyfield # 51,213,537,695 & A A AIEE 15 © &
in the Company. Accordingly, ITC Investment and ITC were deemed It ITC Investment R 72 # 1 2 # 1% 73 FAHollyfield¥§ &
to be interested in the said 1,213,537,695 shares held by Hollyfield. > Fili1,213,537,695 B RE 1D R A fEzs o M AP H s
Galaxyway, an indirect wholly-owned company of Dr Chan Kwok BtREE2EHEE Y A fGaaxywayBl EHEELED
Keung, Charles, owned approximately 26.89% of the issued share B ITRE R 4926.80% - B H LB+ A EAA LS B 5=
capital of ITC. Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles also personally held R R B BTIRALIB.76% o B R B & T g E
approximately 6.76% of the issued share capital of ITC. By virtue of 184 H4933.65% 18 3 + B B R Holyfield# A 2 %
his aggregate interest of approximately 33.65% in ITC, Dr Chan Kwok ZRG R 2
Keung, Charles was deemed to be interested in these shares held by )

Hollyfield.
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EERBESE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS

— continued
(2) Other persons — continued

Notes: — continued

3.

Ms Ng Yuen Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles,
was deemed to be interested in the said 1,213,537,695 shares held
by Hollyfield and 35,936,031 shares held directly by Dr Chan Kwok
Keung, Charles.

Third Avenue LLC, through its controlled entities (including Third
Avenue Fund) held interests in 485,314,668 shares/underlying shares
of the Company. As such, Third Avenue LLC was deemed to be having
the same interests in the said 485,314,668 shares/underlying shares
as Third Avenue Fund and another entity controlled by Third Avenue
LLC.

Such interests comprised 475,758,107 shares of the Company and
9,656,561 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the
Company entitling holders thereof to subscribe for new shares of the
Company.

So far as is known to the directors and chief executive of the Company,
the warrants issued by the Company expired after 4:00 p.m. on 25
September 2009. With the exclusion of those 9,556,561 underlying
shares, the interests in the said 475,758,107 shares represent
approximately 10.44% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 March 2012.

Such interests comprised 475,714,107 shares of the Company and
9,656,561 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the
Company entitling holders thereof to subscribe for new shares of the
Company.

So far as is known to the directors and chief executive of the Company,
the warrants issued by the Company expired after 4:00 p.m. on 25
September 2009. With the exclusion of those 9,556,561 underlying
shares, the interests in the said 475,714,107 shares represent
approximately 10.44% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 March 2012.

0OZ Management, an entity controlled by Och-Ziff Holding which was,
in turn, solely owned by Och-Ziff Capital (approximately 66.30% of the
voting power at general meeting of which was controlled by Mr Daniel
Saul Och), held, through its affiliated funds, 358,030,467 shares of
the Company. As such, Mr Daniel Saul Och, Och-Ziff Capital, Och-Ziff
Holding and OZ Management were deemed to be having the same
interests in the shares of the Company as the affiliated funds of OZ
Management.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, the Company had
not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBESE

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

Including the directors of the Group, as at 31 March 2012, the
Group employed a total of 3,121 full time employees (2011:
3,296). Remuneration packages consisted of salary as well as
performance-based and equity-based bonuses. In appreciation
of our employees’ continuing support, a bonus payment to
employees was made during the year.

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualification and competence.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to factors including
the prevailing market conditions, salary paid by comparable
companies, the duties and responsibilities of the director,
employment conditions elsewhere and the time committed by the
director.

Further, the Company has implemented three share-related
incentive schemes to provide alternative means to motivate
employees and promote their loyalty in line with the Group’s
strategy. Such schemes benefited the Group’s staff both in Hong
Kong and the Mainland.

Details of remuneration policy of the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on page 56 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

BYUFHTES 2B UM
ARAREEEBILFNTERBE(ETRE)$3.13
BN FEBIMRRL - AORRAERELH
BITEFUBBIAL -

EEHBERFMBER

M2012563A31H » AEEERE £XN3 1212 2B EE
(BEAEBEES) (2011 :3,206%) - FHALABAF S
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EERBESE

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to 67 of
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the directors acknowledge that
approximately 58% of the issued share capital of the Company are
held by the public.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
Details of the material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries are
set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

(1) Advances to entities

As at 31 March 2012, advances to entities did not individually
exceed 8% under the assets ratio as defined under Rule
14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

(2) Financial assistance and guarantees given to affiliated
companies

As at 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of the financial
assistance provided by the Group to its associated companies
and jointly controlled entities (collectively the “Affiliated
Companies” within the meaning under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules) and the guarantees given by the Group for facilities
granted to the Affiliated Companies did not exceed 8% under
the assets ratio as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing
Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$1,125,000 (2011: HK$642,000).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBESE

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor
of the Company and to authorise the directors of the Company
to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBMBRES

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF PYI CORPORATION LIMITED
REEEHRAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of

PYI Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 235,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated income statement,

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit

in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBAREE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2012 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 June 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

— A L&a_c
IQE =] ﬁi%zz
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE2012F3A31BILFE

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
k3 FHERT FHT
Turnover e
The Company and its subsidiaries RARREKT B AR 6 5,207,922 5,357,200
Share of associates and jointly controlled BEAGE N R R Ak R
entities HEHE 1,132,412 667,198
6,340,334 6,024,398
Group turnover EEEXETE 6 5,207,922 5,357,200
Cost of sales SHE A (4,769,041) (4,916,287)
Gross profit il 438,881 440,913
Other income HAapug A 8 82,064 52,408
Administrative expenses THEA (311,657) (295,415)
Distribution and selling expenses DERIEEER (85,268) (91,014)
Other expenses Hi &R 10 (22,527) (14,172)
Finance costs BB KA 11 (77,660) (86,282)
Gain on fair value changes of investment REMENTFEEE
properties 2 WE 19 83,680 316,214
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE B ARz W 46(c) 389,061 -
Other gains and losses H bWz kB 18 9 5,603 3,682
Share of results of associates BhEE 2N R ER 45,379 136,814
Share of results of jointly controlled entities BE R HME A 13,056 2,892
Profit before taxation B 7% B A 13 560,612 466,040
Taxation 18 14 (191,595) (166,852)
Profit for the year FREHF 369,017 299,188
Profit for the year attributable to: ITALTEEFEERT
Owners of the Company RATRHEB A 334,072 200,104
Non-controlling interests JEFERR RS 34,945 99,084
369,017 299,188
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Basic and diluted earnings per share BRERREERT 16 0.074 0.044
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2 A AW
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE2012F3A31BILFE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Profit for the year EEHM 369,017 299,188
Other comprehensive (expense) income Htt2m (BAZ) s
Exchange differences arising from translation BREGINEBMEE
of foreign operations 2 = 163,581 233,282
Reclassification adjustment of translation HE—RHMBARRELFE
reserve upon disposal of a subsidiary 7 B (230,797) =
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of AEHEREZATEEEE
available-for-sale investments 2z (&) 12 (177)
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of HEMHEERE
available-for-sale investments 2 EFHE (365) (66)
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHMEER (FAX) W=
for the year (67,569) 233,039
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEKR=ELEE 301,448 532,227
Total comprehensive income for the year UMTATEAEEEZ2EKS
attributable to: R
Owners of the Company NRRIHER A 236,528 367,450
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 64,920 164,777
301,448 532,227

D reemeraa

20125 93




/

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRR
At 31 March 2012
M201243H31H

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE FET FHTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R 18 1,561,175 1,369,085
Investment properties WEYHE 19 855,244 727,811
Project under development ERHPIEE 20 493,267 490,121
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE 22 314,329 312,864
Goodwill (EES 23 61,646 61,646
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 24 155,620 171,990
Interests in associates A/ b 25 1,189,262 1,132,027
Interests in jointly controlled entities HE RIS 26 31,314 4,065
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 27 363,726 1,270
Loans receivable - due after one year —FREHZ EBER 28 16,020 -
Other debtors - non-current portion EMERER R — IEmBE 32 628,467 196,319
5,670,070 4,467,198
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Stock of properties MERE 21 1,087,769 1,098,800
Prepaid lease payments FEHEERE 22 4,197 4,229
Inventories of finished goods AT E 22,880 29,240
Loans receivable - due within one year —FRE Rz ERER 28 86,616 113,147
Amounts due from associates JE B 2 R KO8 29 35,819 42,929
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities FE U [R5 %‘M@é% 2IE 30 52,921 22,956
Amount due from a non-controlling interest FEURFEIE R A 25 A 30 1,233 1,188
Amounts due from customers R EA 4 TR%E
for contract works 31 376,446 258,350
Trade and other debtors, deposits and 2 5 T H b FE UL BE 2K
prepayments 4 RFEMZIE 32 2,688,836 1,651,066
Investments held for trading HIEBEERE 38 60,439 46,942
Available-for-sale investments AHEHERE 27 75 91
Taxation recoverable AR EH R - 2
Pledged bank deposits BEEBIRITIER 34 732,226 83,532
Short term bank deposits RHRITIER 34 450,579 371,277
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 34 557,656 657,799
6,157,692 4,381,548
Assets classified as held for sale DEARFELEZEE 17 - 6,046,209
6,157,692 10,427,757
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEPBRR R

At 31 March 2012
M201243A31H

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FET FAT
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Amounts due to customers ERNEFEHTIENRIA
for contract works 31 716,288 947,938
Trade and other creditors and accrued B 5 REMBEMRRREFFX
expenses 35 2,249,521 1,230,931
Deposits received for pre-sale of properties BEMEZEWT2 41,950 237,048
Amounts due to associates FE T HE & A R FRIA 36 108,059 66,268
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities FEAS H[RE %‘%% 37 95,401 45,000
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FE T IE TR AR 2 RR 38 7,583 24,276
Amount due to a related company FE — R R B 5RIA 39 - 233
Taxation payable FERTRIR 16,030 20,213
Bank and other borrowings —F NI 2 RITREME K
— due within one year 40 1,714,567 1,255,304
4,949,399 3,827,211
Liabilities associated with assets classified HAOMARIELECEE
as held for sale HEZB8E 17 - 3,301,463
4,949,399 7,128,674
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 1,208,293 3,299,083
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERABAERE 6,878,363 7,766,281
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Bank and other borrowings —FRAMZRITREMER
— due after one year 40 920,437 738,585
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEAS FE4E AR b 2 SR IR 38 33,144 19,002
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIE B E 42 537,021 484,377
Deferred income EEUA 43 40,349 25,181
Other payables H A FEF R 35 59,154 173,576
1,590,105 1,440,721
5,288,258 6,325,560
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRE
Share capital %N 44 455,849 452,913
Reserves 1 4,154,090 4,047,700
Equity attributable to owners of the Company  ARAAHEA A Z FEh s 4,609,939 4,500,613
Non-controlling interests FEERRRE RS 678,319 1,824,947
TOTAL EQUITY R 5,288,258 6,325,560
The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 235 were HREFE35H Y AT BBRED N2012F6 8228
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 BREERPRARERETZ YHTHNESAREEER
June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by: %=
Tom Lau E5 & Alan Chan BB
Chairman and Managing Director ¥ & 3484 Executive Director ${17&%F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SEREREER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE2012F3A31BILFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
FMAFRAELER
Share-
Investment Convertible based Non-
Share Share  Special  Capital revaluation Other ~ Translation notes  payment  Retained controlling Total
captl  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserves  reserve  reserve resenve profits ~ Sub-ofal interests equity
R ek ARfsA

Bx  BREEE GHRE  EARE  EMEE  RHGR  EXEBR  REER  FUER  REEA 0t kEhER  EREE

HKPO00  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HKG000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKG000  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO00

Tin  Thr  TAn  Thr  TEn  fERr Thr T TR fEn Th T TR
At 1 Aprl 2010 H201054A1A 2013 489421 124695 (343.326) 571 62461 340,330 8482 116 290016 4120679 1527811 5667490
Bchangedifeences  RAERNEE
aisngfom frendafion~~ EXZEREE
Offoreign operations = = = = = - 167574 = = - loror4 66,708 233282
Loss on fai value THEERE
changes ofavellale- 22 FEE
forsde mvestments ~ EHEE - - - - (187) - - - - - (187) 10 {17
Reclasication mENfHERE
adjustment on K ENAE
dsposal of avelable-
for-salg investments - - - - @) - - - - - ) ) (66)
Proft fortheyear FREH - - - - - - - - - A0f A0de w8 29188
Tocomprehensie.  £E2H(ER)
loense)incomefor— E£E
theyear : : : : ) - 1675m - T N A/
Share of oherreserves  EEEEAE
of asocles b iifa - - - - - M - - - - -
Recogntonof equity- 2 BEREE
setledsharetased  RERHFE
payment expense LER - - - - - - - - gl - 21 - 21
Rekassuponlapseof R EBERE
Vested options b3 GENT - - - - - - - - Ul 48 - - -
Release upon maturtyof - A ARER
converble notes il - - - - - - - (3482 - 8482 = = =
Tansterofreseniesofa~ ER-FHEAA
subsicary LR = = - = - 2030 - - - 20%) - - -
Diidend drbutedbya  —ERBRFAR
subsidary s - - - - - - - - - - - 3883 (3683
Contrbuton fomnon- ~~ $ARER 1A
confroling nterests = = = = = = = = = = - 1450 154990
Serip diidends - RNBRTRE
dstibuted bya LARAE
subsiciary - - - - - - - - - - - 560 560
Pepament o BEEERE
contrbuton to non- AR
controling inerests - - - - - - - - - - - (19508 (1950
At 31 March 2011 011£3A31H 02013 48941 124695 (343.326) R T T ) - 9551 3101308 4500613 1824947 6,325,560

'
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE201263A31ALFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
KAREARLRR
Share-
Investment Convertible hased Non-
Share Share  Special  Capital revaluation Other  Translation notes  payment  Retained controlling Total
captl  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserves  reserve  reserve resenve profits ~ Sub-total  interests equity
R TER  WRHRH

Re  BOEE %HRE  EABE  EMRRE  EGRE  ENRE  ZERR  MEEE  REN 0t kEhER  EREE

HKPO00  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HKG000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKG000  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO00

Thr  TAr  Thr  TEr  TAr  TEr  TAr  TAr  TEr Thr  TEr TEr TAT
At 1 Apr 2011 H01154R 18 02018 48941 124605 (343309) M3 e 5070 - 9951 3191308 4500613 1824947  6325,560
Bohangedffeences  RAEENEH
aisngfom transiafon A7 EREE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 1385% - - - 13859% 2095 163581
Ganfosgonfarvale  AEAEREL
changes of aalable-  ATEEEE
forsdeinestments Wi () - - - - 7/ - - - - - 2 (1) 1
Reclassficaion HETHTERE
adustment on PRI
disposal of avaialle-
for-sale investments - - - - (369) - - - - - (365) - (365)
Recissfication fHE-EREA
adjustment of EESRE,
frangifon resene RS
Upon disposal of a
subsiciary - - - - - - (230790) - - - (28079 - (28079
Proft for the year EEET - - - - - - - - - 02 B0 s 39017
Todcomprehensie ~ £E2F(BF)
[oensg)noomefor - i35t E
the year - - - - (343) - oo - - 302 8658 640 01448
Disposal ofasubsidary 4 E—FEHE R
(note 46(6) (Hrita0)) - - - MR - - - - - (e - (1252559 (1252559)
Acouistion of acdtonal ~ SEEIE L R
interests in (Hit4ap)
subsilaries
note 46(0) - - - - - - - - - 14 148 (1149 (7,000
Distiouton fofe 15~~~ & (H&#15) - - - - - - - - - (%8 (135874 - (%81
Shareofohereseves  EREENFZ
of assocates EfhaE - - - - - 1515 - - - - 1515 - 1515
lseofshaesunder  RENEREHE
scip dvidend scheme — E7R13 29% 4013 - - - - - - - - 7009 - 7009
Rekassuponlepseol B EEERERN
ested options kEE - - - - - - - - 7w - - -
Tanslerofresenesofa B -RHEAA
subsidiary LEE - - - - - 7% - - - (75 - - -
Diidend disouied by ~ FIBAFAR
subsidiaries At} - - - - - - - - - - - (2331) 2331)
Controuton fiomnen- AR iER L &
controling inerests - - - - - - - - - - - 5049% 504%
At 31 March 2012 H012£3A31H 465849 493494 12469 (96,368 - 0% 410708 - Q49 3148130 4609939 678319 5,268,268
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital and share premium of

the subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the
Group and the nominal amount of the share capital issued as
consideration for the acquisition.

The capital reserve represents the difference between the fair value
and the carrying amount of the underlying assets and liabilities that
are attributable to the additional interests in subsidiaries acquired
by the Group. The amount would be charged to retained profits
upon disposal of interests in the subsidiary or the relevant assets,
whichever is earlier.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HE2012F3A31BILFE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before taxation W %51 B i 560,612 466,040
Adjustments for: FTRFEE #EITHE
Finance costs A A 77,660 86,282
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - KRR
and equipment 2 (a) BB (483) 257
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments & TR A0 & I R AR
and related other intangible assets HinfE & E 2 Wi (505) (4,104)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B ARz WE (389,061) -
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—HEE2A R zHE (5,565) =
Share of results of associates BIEHENTER (45,379) (136,814)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities BIRAEREHRERS (13,056) (2,892)
Release of prepaid lease payments AEBEMNEERE 4,239 4,124
Amortisation of intangible assets BREE®E 13,376 12,787
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BRRREE 58,812 89,907
Loss on fair value changes of investments REEBERECATEEED
held for trading 2 &R 22,023 2,581
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REBERZRERE
goodwill - 74
Exchange gain arising from deferred & — R E AR 2 BUGRIE
consideration receivable from sale REMEEZEL KR
of a subsidiary (25,578) -
Gain on fair value changes of investment REMERTEEEZH 2 W
properties (83,680) (316,214)
Share-based payment expense R RIB 2 &R - 261
Interest income F2HA (74,873) (8,997)
Dividend income from investments held for RBEEBERE ZREWA
trading (262) (245)
Impairment loss recognised (recovered) on FEN IR TR (R E) R E R
receivables 4,870 (2,443)
Write-back of aged payables 1 [0 380 HA B 19 SRR - (7,804)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEMHEERE 2 K (365) (47)
Operating cash flows before movements in RTBEBESCRYF 2 CEEY
working capital REnE 102,785 182,753
Changes in amounts due from (to) customers for fEl (R BFPEHNITIERIELS
contract works (344,946) (67,810)
Decrease in stock of properties MEBRERD 68,071 138,866
Decrease in loans receivable JE U B SR A 10,511 153,983
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERL (L) 6,360 (17,155)

D reemeraa
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & TET THT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES — continued meEK — &
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B2 RAMBYER [T
debtors, deposits and prepayments R IERFRIE (3L ) 5 (579,857) 437,789
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from FE B & R R OB R A (BB h0)
associates 12,687 (16,796)
Increase in amounts due from jointly JRE i ) 28 I 44 1 SR IEE A0
controlled entities (29,965) (22,956)
Increase in investments held for trading HEBEREL M (35,520) (5,472)
Decrease in deposits received for pre-sale HREEMEEIIZE D
of properties (204,159) (54,304)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other B 5 B A B A AR SX  PE R XX
creditors and accrued expenses Ok 2) 490,959 (339,240)
Increase in amounts due to associates JRE 1< B 2 1 B SRR 4 0 41,459 55,603
Decrease in amount due to a related company e — BB A R RIE R L (233) (1,491)
Increase in amounts due to jointly controlled entities JRE 158 S [R] 422 1 44 8 SR IA 42 A0 901 -
Cash (used in) generated from operations (AR)REREEK 2R S (460,947) 443,770
Overseas tax paid BB (35,292) (25,842)
Overseas tax refunded 2R EEINFIR - 41,953
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded BEREFENEH 2 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBMNEH - )
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING (AR REREEBE 2R FE
ACTIVITIES (496,237) 459,877
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Additions to pledged bank deposits B AR T FHIE M (732,226) (83,532)
Additions to property, plant and equipment WIE -~ B R R A N (185,323) (306,603)
Refundable deposits paid for potential projects BEEB ZENATREZS (50,000) (50,000)
Increase in project under development ERERPIEAEM (43,655) (157,685)
Additions to prepaid lease payments BT & FIR L (6,797) (8,175)
Additions to interests in associates N RN e s Bill (2,594) (160,696)
Contribution to jointly controlled entities ) 4k R I R E B (2,050) (4,600)
Additions in investment properties REWEEM (68) (38,356)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE-—RHBARRZRS
RABE 46(c) 706,193 —
Repayment of deferred consideration BREUCELERE
receivable 184,909 -
Release of pledged bank deposits HBEECERRITER 83,532 33,582
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — & AR TS RE 34,360 -
Interest received BUYFE 15,889 7,762
Government grants received B W R AT 438 B 14,205 7,010
Dividend received from jointly controlled entities B AR AR R LR 6,787 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - B RZEMEHIE
plant and equipment 5,186 4,120
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HERHINEREMERIE
investments 365 436
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & TET THT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES — continued REEK — &
Dividend received from investments held BUHEEERERE

for trading 262 245
Dividend received from associates Bl ERRIRE - 55,599
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYEMSHRIA

properties - 30,279
Refundable deposits refunded for potential BEHEBEEREZATREZS

projects - 25,000
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease i 65 B R B OB AR R A

payments and related other intangible assets BV EEMBREA - 6,361
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net WEENTE AR - 46(a) - 234
Increase in available-for-sale investments At EREE M - (632)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES RE(AR)REXERSFHE 28,975 (639,651)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
New bank and other borrowings raised MERRTREMER 2,798,515 1,982,550
Contribution from non-controlling interests REFEERESZHE 50,496 154,990
Advances from jointly controlled entities HREGIRE 22K 49,500 45,000
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRBITREMER (2,320,321) (1,629,245)
Dividends paid B E (128,865) -
Interest paid ERFE (126,903) (153,123
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries W B QR BIMER (7,000) -
Repayment of amounts due to non-controlling B8 B FEIE R i 2 2 BB

interests (4,203) (28,469)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BASH B R AR 2 RS

of subsidiaries (2,337) (3,123)
Repayment of contribution to non-controlling interest EBEFERER 2 HEHRE - (19,508)
Repayment of loan from a related company ERKE —HEBRRZEX - (18,000
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REMETH 2B FHE 308,882 331,072
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRALSERAE (HD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 (158,380) 151,298
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES HIEERHBHE 9,198 7,087
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT BeRERLEEEAAAM

FORWARD 1,157,417 999,032
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED BeRRASEEEELE

FORWARD 48 1,008,235 1,157,417
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH BeREBSEEEALROM

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Short term bank deposits RERITTE R 450,579 371,277
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRES 557,656 786,140

1,008,235 1,157,417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBEHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HZE2012F3A31HILEE

1. GENERAL 1.
The Company is an exempted company incorporated in ARREBREFMALASREER AR HiF
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The AEEBBMARSMARLAR ([BEEBIAT]) L
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong W RRBIZHAMPERAREFEZLSE M RN
Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and KERIATER | —EELHE -

the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual report. MBEMEABTEN  BLTARRE ZWEE

RE
g

WU 4\}

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of KA
B

\

Gl %—Fﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ cHIEZMBEARF

the Company. DTV FE M4 7 2T 518 B 5 R B 56 o

The Company is an investment holding company. The

activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly 2. ERAHITRLENEBUBEREEAN(H
controlled entities are set out in note 56. B EREER])

RER RAEBEROTESAMAS ([EAEF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 6T A |) A TR ST A e B RS R

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

» AR
(“HKFRSs”)
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new F BB SRR RO010E BB RE SR
and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of (52T A b
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”). E k@ LR A E04% W E
Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs (20007 £ %)
issued in 2010 % (BERZEZES) BENREELEX
HKAS 24 (Revised in 2009)  Related Party Disclosures ~RERURZET
Amendments to HK(IFRIC)  Prepayments of a Minimum BB (ERRBZEE) DEARTAERERAR
—Int 14 Funding Requirement —REE19%
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised in 2009)

The Group has applied HKAS 24 (Revised in 2009) Related
Party Disclosures for the first time in the current year. HKAS
24 (Revised in 2009) has changed the definition of a related
party. HKAS 24 (Revised in 2009) requires retrospective
application. The related party disclosures as set out in note
54 to the consolidated financial statements have been
changed to reflect the application of HKAS 24 (Revised in
2009).

The associates of ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC”), which is a
substantial shareholder of, and has significant influence over,
the Company, previously considered to be related parties are
no longer considered as related parties of the Group under
the new definition of a related party in accordance with HKAS
24 (Revised in 2009) and transactions with these companies
are not disclosed accordingly.

As at 31 March 2011, the amounts due from associates

of ITC were not previously presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Therefore, the
comparative figures in the consolidated financial statements
have not been restated.

Other than described above, the application of these new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

ERHAIRKEXNERMBEREER (&
BUMBREER]) — &
ERESHERE24KEE 5 HE (2009F &
&)
AEBRAFEERERAE B ST ER £245
(20095 & {5 2h) BB 77 #5258 - BB G £ R 224
5 (2009F i) BE XA L ZEE - &
R E R 2455 (2000F I8 MTEBPER -
BEVBRRMI4MHB 2 EBALHEECHES
M AR R FE A BB g s A 8245 (2009F £ &
%) e

BHOEEEERATN(BRER) BAATZ
TERRRUARAAEEALE  ABERAR
BEREABBAL REEE GRS
(2009 EEH) HRBBAL 2 HESR 7B
WRAAEEZEBAL Bl LERBRLS
NARITZRS

R2011E3A31H » R AT L ER AR A B EAOR
REB2JEERBHELCEZBERB ZRE At
VEEINGEHBHRERAZLBEF -

BRAEPAEIN  RAFERAM REEREE
MBEREENAHANEBARAEFERBEFEZLY
BRARMAR,EAZEEAHBERRAE 2K
BERYESATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle?

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters'

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loans?

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets!

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of

(Amendments) HKFRS 9 and Transition

Disclosures?®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive
Income*

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011) Employee Benefits?

HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011) Separate Financial
Statements?

HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011) Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®
HK(FRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the

Production Phase of
a Surface Mine?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27
(Revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011).

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements
are classified as joint operations or joint ventures,

depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the
arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three
types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations.

FEAFITREEREEUBHREEN(F
BUMBHRELEL]) — &

! B0 E7TATH A ERE 2 2 FHBA K -
2 H2013F1ATH A RHAR Z 2 FHEAR -
s H2016F 1 A1H A RHRZ 2 FHEAE N -
¢ M2012F 7 A1H A BRI 2 2 FHBA R -
o H2012F 1 A1H A RHERZ 2 FHBAEN -

6 H2014F1 1B BRI 2 2 F BB -

BREERE S8R BELARKE
Z A R E A

R2011G6R HEHET—ERBEBMGEAEER -4
B BMERRARERECEN  RESEHBR
SHRNE10% - BAVBRELERE NS - FAH
BomEENE129% BEA LR FE275 (20115
KB R BB G ERIE285% (2011F &8 K) -

BRMBREENFI0FRR BB G LR FE27
BIEERENTEBRINEREAMBRERZ
#o o UERBE(FREBZES) -REF12% 4R
E-RHHRENER] BFEVMBRSENFZI0%RE
Rt zESR  HPEE=ETE B #E
HRESER OHL2EREHUREEMBZ I
Oz EERER - RogEMERRBREHR
BANFEREEQHRSHE  TEVBEREEASE
105 SR B R 2 RIBTEMAFAES

EEMBRMEERFNRIMARE L 5 2R F31
HIREEPEHERZIUNRERE (ERRBEE
Q) -RBEIRIHAAZHEE-SETZHFER
JEE | - BRI E ERANF15E T 8 b R AE 3R
tERBAAEARAENEZAELHRNMFAOE - R
BEEVBRERMNENR  SELHARTLH
FETZRNRET  D"BEREEEBRELED
X-HEME  REBFEGMENSIR  XA=
BARMAZE R ARAEHNEE KRAZHEE
R ALREHI T -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and revised standards on consolidation,

joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

— continued

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to
be accounted for using the equity method of accounting,
whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting or
proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is
permitted provided that all of these five standards are applied
early at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 April
2013. The application of these five standards may have
significant impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements. The application of HKFRS 10 might
result in the Group no longer consolidating some of its
investees, and consolidating investees that were not
previously consolidated. In addition, the application of
HKFRS 11 might result in changes in the classification of the
Group’s joint arrangements, depending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the joint arrangement. However,
the directors of the Company have not yet performed a
detailed analysis of the impact of the application of these
standards and hence have not yet quantified the extent of
the impact.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the
general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of
an asset. Specifically, under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model

in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted
in certain circumstances.

Currently, the directors of the Company have made a best
estimate that half of the property interests may be realised
through sale in the long term. If the presumption that the
investment properties to be realised through sale is not
rebutted, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 12 may increase
the deferred tax liability as the changes in fair value of
investment properties would be subject to both The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)
and Enterprise Income Tax. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

Other than described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties which are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date

when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, with any
resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
profits as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value

of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum

of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),

the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share

of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts

of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwiill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset

in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwiill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwiill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale

is highly probable and the non-current asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

IREHBE — &

[k

WREEBMEL ZEE  HIRKAR R ERR
(B FR - XRERE B BEMRR K EERZT -

BOREREMNE  WBFEMELZEE RO
AEEHARAHZHAMERTREZAIREM
AR BELAR -

EERABNEZAREUEFAETRBTRLE
fﬁﬁ‘ﬁ]ﬁétﬂEﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%i&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@iﬁ@iﬂw%ﬁ ° BLER
—REMEAUBEL.HEMS CEIEFEZ

B3R AL A 5% S HI B A R A mma B - = A
BBz W ESRERZEL ZREE - BEIE
BHEEAHIEZAREAHEZREE  H&RIN
BENAE-EERERRLIINREEZEMZ
HpEE BEZAMBEBREERFEAKER
BR-WmEBZEAREBENERYHAFHED -

HeEPEHEEAREN  BEZEESBENTALE
T & F sk E 18 o

FFHEZHRDEE
WERETIEZABLERSMFRBIFERER
i  RISERBEEXHEAR G BAFEL
o REMTEREBRREERBE M ERBEE (X
tHEZH%J)TE"L@Z%TEDE—?&%H—W’?%H%opﬂi
BUAHHEFELAR MEERHEARSER
Eﬁtﬁ*iﬂqééﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁmﬁﬂj%

Pld guesmaras oFs 111




/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Non-current assets held for sale — continued

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or

for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include

land held for undetermined future use, which is regarded

as held for capital appreciation purpose, and land under
development for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Investment properties under development

Land under development for future use as investment
properties are recognised and classified as investment
properties upon the commencement of land leveling
process. Construction costs incurred for development are
capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the land under
development. Land under development is measured at

fair value at the end of the reporting period. Any difference
between the fair value of the land under development and its
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Project under development

Project under development are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of project under development includes, where
appropriate, relevant development costs and borrowing cost
capitalised. No depreciation is provided for project under
development.

Project under development are transferred at the carrying
value to stock of properties for sale or property, plant and
equipment or investment properties, as appropriate, when
the intended purpose of the land development can be
determined upon commencement of land leveling process.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to sale proceeds received after the end of the
reporting period less selling expenses, or, if not yet sold
after the end of the reporting period, by management
estimates based on prevailing market condition. The relevant
costs include acquisition costs, development expenditure,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs
attributable to such properties.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are initially recognised

in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share

of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of

the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Interests in associates — continued

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

of an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,

any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any retained
investment is measured at fair value at that date and the

fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition

as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the previous carrying amount of the
associate attributable to the retained interest and its fair
value is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed

of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or

loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant influence
over that associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Interests in associates — continued

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates

On acquisition of additional interest in an existing associate
whereby the Group continues to have significant influence
but not gaining control, the cost of acquiring the additional
interest is added to the carrying value of the associate.
Goodwill or gain arising on the purchase of the additional
interest is calculated as the difference between the cost of
the additional interest acquired and the share of the net fair
value of all identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
attributable to the additional interest acquired.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over
the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the jointly controlled entities. When the Group’s
share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes

any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Interests in jointly controlled entities — continued

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a
jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled
entity. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,
any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results in the
Group losing joint control over that jointly controlled entity,
any retained investment is measured at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS
39. The difference between the previous carrying amount
of the jointly controlled entity attributable to the retained
interest and its fair value is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly controlled entity.

In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that jointly controlled entity on the same basis as would be
required if that jointly controlled entity had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
jointly controlled entity would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when it loses joint control over
that jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Interests in jointly controlled entities — continued

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to
the Group.

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequently
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effective of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset
is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period. Variations in
contract work and claims are included to the extent that

the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,

the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for
contract works. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to
customers for contract works. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances
received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid
by the customer are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position under trade and other debtors, deposits
and prepayments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Inventories

Inventories, including liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) for
sales, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for the
inventory less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets

or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

U it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, loans receivable, trade and other debtors and
deposits and amount(s) due from a non-controlling interest/
associates/jointly controlled entities) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets

at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments or loans and
receivables. Available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to

be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there

is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on

a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for

a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, loans receivable and amount(s)
due from associates/jointly controlled entities/a non-
controlling interest, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
carried at fair value will not be reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss

is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a

group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected

life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors,
amount(s) due to a related company/associates/jointly
controlled entities/non-controlling interests, other payables
and bank and other borrowings) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises

an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and

the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that
lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Leasing — continued
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,

the Group assesses the classification of each element as

a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have

been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted

for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is released over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

For those release of prepaid lease payments that relate to
leasehold interest in land and are directly attributable to
the construction of project under development and stock
of properties, the amounts released are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such release
of prepaid lease payments ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other release of prepaid lease payments are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to
the value of work certified during the year.

Revenue from distribution of LPG is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Development management, project management and facilities
and asset management services income are recognised
when services are provided.

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised
upon the execution of binding sales agreements and delivery
of the properties. Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to this stage are included in the current
liabilities.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Income from port, port logistics and supporting services are
recognised when the respective services are rendered.

Service income from provision of consultancy services is
recognised at the time when the services are rendered.
When the service contract involves a long period to deliver
the services, the revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract service, as measured by
the proportion that the value of the service rendered to the
customer up to date bear to the estimated total value of the
service under the contract with the customer.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Revenue recognition — continued

The income from contract involving only the use by customer
of the Group’s infrastructure facilities is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the usage granted to the
customer.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when

it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on

a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
over the useful lives of the related assets. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as

an expense or capitalised in contracts in progress, where
appropriate, when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised

for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised

to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Taxation — continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the

fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

/

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Foreign currencies — continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit

or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a
partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Foreign currencies — continued

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed arising on an acquisition of
a foreign operation on or after 1 April 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.

Share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date

is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period/
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised

in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve. When the share options

are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after vesting date

or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Share-based payment transactions — continued
Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options granted. The
fair values of the goods or services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-
based payment reserve), when the Group obtains the goods
or when the counterparties render services, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated

in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) — continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

— continued (@)

(@)

Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the percentage of completion of construction works.
Notwithstanding that the management reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and
costs for the construction contract as the contract
progresses, the actual outcome of the contract in terms (b)
of its total revenue and costs may be higher or lower
than the estimates and this will affect the revenue and
profit recognised.

Deferred tax asset

At 31 March 2012, no deferred tax asset in relation

to unused tax losses of HK$903 million (2011:

HK$835 million) has been recognised in the Group’s

consolidated statement of financial position due

to unpredictability of future profit streams of those (©)
subsidiaries. In cases where the actual future profits

generated by those subsidiaries are more than

expected, a material deferred tax credit would be

recognised in the consolidated income statement in the

period in which the tax losses are utilised.

Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment properties,
project under development and stock of
properties

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities shall reflect
the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover the carrying amount of its
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

(c) Deferred tax liability recognised in respect of
fair value adjustments on investment properties,
project under development and stock of
properties — continued

As at 31 March 2012, the deferred tax liability in
respect of the fair value adjustment on project
under development and stock of properties
amounted to approximately HK$196,002,000
(2011: HK$195,906,000), of which an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$143,882,000 (2011:
HK$143,509,000) was in relation to the PRC LAT.
For those classified as liabilities associated with
assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March
2011, the deferred tax liability in respect of the fair
value adjustment on project under development
and stock of properties amounted to approximately
HK$648,027,000, of which an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$470,212,000 was in relation to
the PRC LAT. In making the estimation, the directors
have considered that the land development may

be recovered through future sale in the long term.
Upon the completion of the development and,
depending on the market condition by that time, the
directors will re-assess the use of property interests
and make appropriate adjustments to reflect the tax
consequences of the related assets.

As described in note 19, the directors of the Company
have made a best estimate on deferred tax liability in
considering the manner in which the Group expects
to recover the carrying amount of the investment

properties. In making the estimation, the directors made

reference to the use of the property interests nearby
and assumptions are made based on the likely usage
of the properties in that location. The directors had
made a best estimate that half of the property interests
may be realised through sale in the long term. The
relevant amount of potential LAT had been recognised
as a deferred tax liability based on the above estimate.
The amount of such related deferred tax liability as at
31 March 2012 is approximately HK$158,136,000
(2011: HK$127,570,000, excluding deferred tax
liability reclassified as held for sale of approximately
HK$582,837,000).

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued
(d) Other debtors

As disclosed in note 32(c), there are advances and
accrued interest of aggregate sum of approximately
HK$262,865,000 and HK$16,394,000 (2011:
HK$253,211,000 and HK$16,394,000) due from

an independent third party and its related company,
respectively as at 31 March 2012. A subsidiary of

the Company has taken legal action in Hong Kong

to recover the amount. However, under same legal
proceedings, a third party claim for damages in a total
sum of approximately Renminbi (“RMB”) 780 million for
breach of an alleged oral master agreement (which is
denied) has been lodged against Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited (“PYE”) and two of its subsidiaries. Taken
into consideration of a legal opinion, PYE is of the view
that PYE and two of its subsidiaries would put up a
respectable defence against the alleged claim and that
it is probable that there would not be material adverse
impact on the financial position of the Group.

Management has assessed the uncertainties
surrounding the above dispute together with the value
of the underlying properties under presale contracts in
relation to the above balances and is of the view that
the amounts can be recovered in full (see note 32(c)).

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 40 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and their associated risks thereto. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

6. TURNOVER EER
Turnover is analysed as follows: EEB OO
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Revenue from construction contracts BEADHWA 4,246,510 4,345,426
Sale of properties HEME 363,744 368,884
Sale of LPG product HERCABRER 274,905 329,079
Income from port related services 7 O AR R B 4 A 209,306 209,212
Income from usage of infrastructure facilities FREERBIA 9,090 65,223
Revenue from development management, BREE  EEBEENKLREBER
project management and facilities and asset EEBRRBHBA
management services 33,605 20,164
Property rental, consultancy and MEMRS - B REREKA
related income 61,614 10,351
Interest income from loans receivable FE W B 52 LB WA 9,148 8,861
5,207,922 5,357,200
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION o355 B

The operating segments of the Group is determined based
on information reported to the Group’s chief operating
decision maker (the Managing Director of the Company)
for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

The information focuses more specifically on the strategic
operation and development of each business unit and its
performance is evaluated through organising similar business
units into an operating segment. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments are as follows:

PYE and its subsidiaries (“Paul Y. Engineering Group”) —
The Group’s subsidiary listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and principally engaged in building construction,
civil engineering, development management, project
management, facilities and asset management services and
investment in properties

Ports development —  Development of ports facilities and
ports related properties

Ports and logistics -  Operation of ports, LPG and
logistics businesses

Property — Development, sale and leasing of
real estate properties and formed
land and provision of project
consultancy service

AEEZRENE > DARAEEERZLEREE
(RRRIHEE) EHURETERDERRBRFME
ZERBEEMETE -

ENBABETREXBEN  RBEERER
MEXRRDBESRABEXBEMARLED L
ARG - AREZRERABED AT ¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued

Treasury — Provision of credit services and
securities trading

The Managing Director of the Company assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a measure
of earnings before interest expense and tax (‘EBIT”) and
earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”).

Inter-segment revenue is charged at market price or, where
no market price is available, at terms determined and agreed
by both parties.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segment:

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group development logistics

RERXEE BARE  BORUR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
TR TR TR

DEER — &

EE 7% - RECERBLELFEE
ARRBEERYRAFNERAI LB BT
(TEBIT)) BRTFIEHEY - HE TEREHNE
F (TEBITDA]) 2t F BB LEH B2 RE -

S A E TR T B W ER S (M AT 2 E 2 T (E)
RETT 1 E R F B Z R -

Dl EREE
AT RREED I RARE 2 Was REE

B Z2012563A31HLEE

Segment
Property Treasury total  Eliminations  Consolidated
h% B ARE He &a

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThEn Thn ThEn TER

TURNOVER EXE
External revenue Uik 4,280,115 9090 484,211 425,358 0148 5207,022 - 5,207,022
Inter-segment revenue PHENE 24,132 - - 208 - 24,340 (24,340) -
Total o 4,304,247 9,090 484,211 425,566 9148 5,232,262 (24340) 5207922
EBITDA EBITDA 71,354 390,941 102,205 157,028 74,628 796,156 (8,523) 787,633
Depreciation and TEREHE

amortisation™ (23,577) (1,212) (45,930) (1,466) @) (72,188) - (72,188)
Segment result - EBIT* ~ $4%4 - EBIT* 4,1m 389,729 56,275 155,562 74,625 723,968 (8,523) 715,445
Corporate and Nl REMRT™

other expenses’™ (17,173)
Finance costs BEKA (77,660)
Profit before taxation BRAEF 560,612
Taxation T (191,595)
Profit for the year FEET 369,017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBMRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. DHER — &
Segment revenues and results — continued WU ERFE — &
For the year ended 31 March 2011 B ZE2011F3A31BLEFE
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and Segment
Group  development logistics Property Treasury total  Eliminations  Consolidated
RERZEH BRER  BORUR ¥ 7 A Faf Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr TEr TEx T T T i ThL
TURNOVER X%
External revenue 5k 4,365,590 65,208 538,291 379,235 8,861 5357,200 - 535700
Inter-segment revenue PHE%RE (31,799) - - 237 - (31,562) 31,562 -
Total &% 4,333,791 66,223 538,291 379,472 8,861 5,325,638 31,662 5,367,200
EBITDA EBITDA 68,064 367,502 212,682 86,903 5,976 731,121 (9,846) 721,281
Depreciation and nERESE"
amortisation™ (16,330) (28,131) (67,728) (502) &) (102,694) - (102,694)
Segment result - EBIT* 2§ %%~ EBIT* 51,734 329,371 154,954 86,401 5973 628,433 (9,846) 618,587
Corporate and NAREME T
other expenses™ (66,265)
Finance costs BENK (86,282)
Profit before taxation BRAEF 466,040
Taxation B (166,852)
Profit for the year EREN 299,188
* During the year ended 31 March 2012, segment result of ports * REFE012F3A3IBILEE  BOREDPLLE
development included the gain on disposal of a subsidiary of B4 Y E—BWEBA T2 % 9389,061,0000 T
approximately HK$389,061,000 (2011: Nil) (note 46(c)). (2011 : 48) (Wi 146(0)) °
x Including depreciation of property, plant and equipment and . B BB ETE R BT EER
amortisation of other intangible assets. o
e )R BB AR BA 2 X AR 418,455,000 7T (2011 ¢

Including acquisition — related costs of approximately

) o
HK$18,455,000 (2011: HK$14,172,000). 14,172,000% 70)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segment:

At 31 March 2012

THER — &
PHEERAME
ATREZEEESBHRAEBEERBEZ DI :

R201263A31H

Paul Y.
Engineering Ports Ports and Segment
Group  development logistics Property Treasury total  Eliminations  Consolidated
REEXEE BOER EORMR E# AR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TR TR T Thn TEn TEn
ASSETS BE
Segment assets HHEE 3,328,640 719,013 3,142,875 2,792,697 1,945,067 11,928,292 (127,086) 11,801,206
Unallocated assets APREE 26,556
Consolidated total assets i ABEE 11,827,762
LIABILITIES Bf
Segment liabilities k=L 2,687,589 316,378 1,209,433 1,346,223 1,054,803 6,614,426 (96,345) 6,518,081
Unallocated labilties AARARE 21,423
Consolidated total GAERE
liabilities 6,539,504
At 31 March 2011 M2011463H31H
Paul Y.
Engineering Ports Ports and Segment
.. Groy development _ logistics Propert Treasur # total ~ Eliminations Consohda ed
RERZSE AOER B0 R pchy 3 A
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$‘00_0 HK$000 HK§'000
T T BT T T AT T T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEE 2,171,648 276,131 3,002,888 2,617,633 164,352 8,832,662 (148,764) 8,683,888
Assets classified asheld A AR ﬂ/’?ﬂiﬁz
for sale (note 17) BE(Wi#17) = 4,950,579 - 1,095,630 - 6,046,209 = 6,046,209
Unallocated assets AOREE 164,858
Consolidated total assets A ZEE 14,894,955
LIABILITIES Bf
Segment liabilities PHEE 2,167,327 146,320 1,332,870 1,179,544 84,003 4,910,064 (111,184) 4,798,880
Liabilties associated with ~ EHBABEHE
assefs classifiedasheld  EEHEZEE
for sale (note 17) (Wi17) = 3,003,302 = 208,161 = 3,301,463 = 3,301,463
Unallocated liabties APEAE 469,052
Consolidated total RABEE
liabilities 8,569,395

Segment assets and liabilities comprise assets and liabilities

of the operating subsidiaries that are engaged in different

businesses. Accordingly, segment assets exclude corporate

assets which are mainly bank balances and cash and

other receivables, and segment liabilities exclude corporate

liabilities which are mainly other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR MEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE201263A31 AL EE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. DHER — &
Other information Hiy & #
The following is an analysis of the Group’s other information TREEBEGEDHINTAEEHMER Z 94T :
by operating segment:
For the year ended 31 March 2012 HE201293A31ALFE
Paul Y. Ports
Engineering Ports and

Group  development logistics Property Treasury  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
RERXEE  BOEE  EORUR ' ‘A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén Tén TEn TR TR TEn

Amounts included in the measure TAHERHEELSH

of segment results or segment BE/ER:

assets:
Addftions to non-current assets REFRBAE( épﬂlﬂ&

other than financial instruments BENE/ AREHEI

and interests in associates/ jointly BERIN)

controlled entities 52,319 52,314 151,319 8,395 - - 264,407
Release of prepaid lease payments ~ EAERTAEHE 575 - 3,664 - - - 4,239
Impairment loss recognised on ERHERRNEER

recelvables - - 2,21 - 2,649 - 4,870
(Gain on disposal of an associate HE-ERERE E - - 5,565 - - - 5,565
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HERMNRERERER

payments and related other AhEVEE WA

intangible assets - - 505 - - - 505
Gain on disposal of available-for- HETHLERE 2 B

sale investments - - - - 365 - 365
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BRRREL

plant and equipment Wi 2 - 461 - - - 483
Interest income HEMA 1,996 293 4525 2,252 65,513 - 74,579
Unallocated interest income AABHEHA 204

74,873

Finance costs BERA 13,254 5,263 40,176 5,283 20,868 (1,184) 77,660
Interests in associates BENFER 27,018 - 1,162,244 - - - 1,189,262
Interests injointly controled entites R HEEER 12,384 - - 18,930 - - 31,314
Share of resuls of associates NG (552) - 45,931 - - - 45319
Share of results of jointly controlled ~ B{EERERIKERE

entities 13,056 - - - - - 13,056
Change n fair value of investments ~ H{EREREZAFER

held for trading g - - - - (22,023) - (22,023)
Amounts reqularly provided to the THREREEARERY

chief operating decision maker BRFATES BEESL

but not included in the measure of PPEEZHE

Segment results or segment assets:
Taxation ik 1,527 126,832 (228) 51,756 5,708 - 191,595
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued
Other information — continued
For the year ended 31 March 2011

AHEN —
HAER — &

BZ2011F3A3MBLEE

PaulY. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group  development logistics Property Treasury  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
RERESE BORR  BORDR ] BB Faj 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr Fhr Tin TEn T T
Amounts included in the measure ~ FF AR E A HEERS
of segment results or segment BECEH:
assefs:
Addifions tonon-current assets  EEFRHEE (SBIAR
other than fnancialinstruments ~ BERF/£REHER
and interests in associates/ jointly kR4
controlled entities 99,158 301,410 103,168 32,009 - - 535,745
Release of prepaid lease payments &R FHE5E 575 - 3,549 - - - 4124
Share-based payment expense MR (TFE - 162 - - 1 - 163
Unallocated amount AEAR TR 9%
261
Impairment loss recovered on BRFEREARENE
receivables - - 1,871 572 - - 2,443
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease ~ HEBRNEETERAE
payments and related other EhaVEE NS
intangiole assets = = 4,104 = = = 4,104
Gain on disposal of avallable-for- ~ HIETEHEERE 2 &
sale investments 47 - - - - - 47
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, &% - BRRREL
plant and equipment BiE &) 1 267 (146) 70 - - 192
Unallocated amount AR HE 65
257
Interest income FEHA 12,889 1,185 2976 1,826 = (10,075) 8,801
Unallocated interest income RAEFISHA 196
8,997
Finance costs RENA 10,076 41,582 31,015 3,547 4,545 (4,483) 86,262
Interests in associates d-UNGI) 3 24,976 - 1,107,051 - - - 1132007
Interests in jointly controlled entities £ E%H B &R 4,085 - - - - - 4,065
Share of results of associates NG (5,253) - 142,067 - - - 136,814
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued 7. DHER — &
Other information — continued HtpER — &
For the year ended 31 March 2011 — continued BZ2011F3A3MBLEE — &
PaulY. Ports
Engineering Ports and
Group  development logistics Property Treasury  Eliminations ~ Consolidated

RERXEE  BOER  RORUR ES E# HH A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx T T TR TEn TER TEn

Share of results of jointly controlled B £R2FKES &
entities 2,892 - - - - - 2,892

Impaiment loss recognised in HEERA HERR
respect of goodwil 74 = = = - - 74

Change in fair valug of investments  #EEER A2 ATEE
held for trading g - - - - (2.581) - (2,581)

Amounts regularly provided to the  EER AR AR ERE
chief operating decision maker ~ BRFH A ERFEES
butnotincluded in the measure ~~ ABEEZFE
of segment results or segment

assets:
Taxation fiE ) 128,821 5819 24,998 (681) - 166,852
Geographical information HwEER
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, REFBZEBIBMAREE BEAERFR(AEHE
Macau and the PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau. FEHENBFY) o
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover by TEBEHEET RS (REFHFEHE  ThE
geographical market based on location of customers, 2 /BRI );_E (K £ [ 2 S AT a
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services: -
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
THER FET
Hong Kong e 3,354,435 4,094,304
The PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau PR BB KRN 1,296,710 1,149,299
Macau and others BP R H A 556,777 113,597
5,207,922 5,357,200
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION — continued
Geographical information — continued
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets excluding financial instruments and interests
in associates/jointly controlled entities, analysed by the
geographical location of assets:

DEER — &

WwEER — &

INTAREEEZMEWES D - HIERHEE (T
BRESHMIARBENR]/ ERIEHI#EEZ) K
HEZ D

Non-current assets excluding
financial instruments
and interests in associates/
jointly controlled entities
RBEE (FTEESHIAR
BE QT HERGSEER)

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHETT

Hong Kong 5 262,578 238,610
The PRC other than Hong Kong and Macau R BREE R 3,176,726 2,894,554
Macau and others SR R E A 1,977 353
3,441,281 3,133,517

Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from Paul Y. Engineering Group
segment is revenue of approximately HK$783 million (2011:
HK$1,140 million) and HK$645 million (2011: HK$691
million), respectively, which arose from revenue from the
Group’s two (2011: two) largest customers, which individually
contributed more than 10% of total turnover of the Group.

FEEFZ2EH
REZESEIBAEE 2 WEF  FHHIH
783,000,000 7t (2011 : 1,140,000,0007% Jt) &
645,000,000/ 7T (2011 : 691,000,000 JT) Jh 2k
BAEEME (2011 : WEB) ZEAEP 2 W= - @
AMEAREE S EFERIBI0%

8. OTHER INCOME Rl A
Other income includes: At AR :

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT

Interest income from deferred consideration JE WOBE FE X A8 2 A B UA
receivable (note 32(d)) (K1:E32(d) 54,451 -
Other interest income H M F 2 A 20,422 8,997

Rental income from short term leasing of REHEEMEFEZHS
stock of properties WA 4,855 30,417
Write-back of aged payables 18 3 380 HA & < 7R0H - 7,804
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HtthzmREE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Change in fair value of investments held FIEBEBEREZATEEEY
for trading (22,023) (2,581)
Exchange gain arising from deferred FEWURE R B ATE 4 2 [E H e
consideration receivable 25,578 =
Gain on disposal of an associate HE — B E AR W 5,565 =
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant HEWE - MW KR W
and equipment (E8) 483 (257)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments HERNEEREREEEM
and related other intangible assets EREEZ & 505 4,104
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEERE 2 a
investments 365 47
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEEMRZREER
goodwiill - (74)
Impairment loss (recognised) recovered FEWBR R 2 REEE (FER) &1
on receivables (4,870) 2,443
5,603 3,682
10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Htt&EA
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Acquisition-related costs HLW SR B 2 AR 18,455 14,172
Others HAb 4,072 -
22,527 14172
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BMERK
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Borrowing costs on: BB
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within BARAFRNEHER ZRITER
five years 102,057 132,280
Bank borrowings not wholly repayable within -~ H#AR L6 A 2 BUE & Z IRITE K
five years 19,454 16,513
Amounts due to non-controlling interests ARAFA ’i\%l BEZEMNIEER
wholly repayable within five years 2R 3,243 571
Amounts due to non-controlling interests not ~ HZAR R i NEEEEZ BN
wholly repayable within five years FEFE IR = 2 TR 215 224
Imputed interest expense on other payables Hh EATBR R 2 HEE RS 2,310 2,678
Effective interest on convertible notes wholly — BRI F A 2 81EE 2 Al
repayable within five years ZBZABMAE - 549
Other borrowings wholly repayable within ARDFRREEEZ EMWER
five years 5,728 15,106
133,007 167,921
Less: Amount capitalised in respect W BIEERENIREARZ
of contracts in progress bge (2,045) (207)
Amount capitalised in respect BEBRPERERNZHHE
of project under development (9,095) (38,221)
Amount capitalised in respect BIERERWE - W&
of construction in progress (included BEAZERIRER
in property, plant and equipment) Pl ¢ (31,569) (21,286)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEHRLEERMEELRZ
properties under development L]
for sale (12,638) (21,925)
77,660 86,282
The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing BABAZEERAREBNEERBRZEE

costs incurred by the entities on borrowings whose funds

were specifically invested in the project and properties during

the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

12. EEREEMS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a EE=Me
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight EAASEM NG (2011 : NZ)ESEAZH
(2011: eight) directors are as follows: 2T :
None of the directors has waived any emoluments AT B B R A4 (2011 : 48) -
during the year (2011: Nil).
Salaries Retirement
and benefit
other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonus contribution Total
HMR RHEA
e AR Bgfa FHEIRE &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'0000 HK$'000
Name of directors B4R THET TRL TARL TERL TERT
(note)
(Hizt)
2012
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 8RR 360 4,300 24,850 336 29,846
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan RIZH 267 427 - 5 699
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles FRE%R 160 - - - 160
Chan Shu Kin BRI &2 446 - - - 446
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ~ RE % 362 - - - 362
Li Chang An FER 307 - - - 307
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph* Bl 350 - - - 350
Kwok Shiu Keung, Emest* HIDE Y 189 - - - 189
2,441 4,727 24,850 341 32,359
2011
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom AR 360 4,300 15,282 319 20,261
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles RE% 208 - - - 208
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan FRi2 %
(as alternate to Chan Kwok (RIREI®
Keung, Charles) LETESR) 112 - - - 112
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph [ 760 - - - 760
Kwok Shiu Keung, Emest EIE 380 - - - 380
Chan Shu Kin R 2 420 - - - 420
Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph 2 EX 340 - - - 340
Li Chang An ZE% 300 - - - 300
2,880 4,300 15,282 319 22,781
* Retired/resigned during the year * RAFERE BT
Remark: With effect from 1 April 2012, there is a 30% increase in ) - B2012F4A 1R TR UFHNTES ((BUF

each of the directors’ fee to independent non-executive
director (“INED”), the fee to INED who acts as chairman
of each and all of the Board committees and the fee to
INED who acts as member of each and all of the Board
committees.

WTES]) EEREERZESIFEZBIIEN
TEEUAREEREZRZBENE 2B IFNTT
BE 2% FH30% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
— continued
(b) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the
year included one director (2011: one director) of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 12(a) above.

The aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2011:
four) highest paid individuals, who are employees of the
Group, are as follows:

12. EEREEME — %

b) EEM=E
AEBRAFERRNESHEAERENER
A—REE(2011: —REE)  HMSHE
1m0 ST EE12(a) BT ©

EHpEAKBERE 2M% (2011 MA) &=
HABz@MEmMT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

THExT FHT

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMER 8,520 7,943
Discretionary bonus (note) BB TEAL (B 37 ) 40,660 12,092
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3B K& F 5 &l £ 3% 216 156
Share-based payment expense AR AD 2 5K 2 B A - 252
49,396 20,443

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

REMSBAMT -

Number of employees

EBEAH
2012 2011
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T - 2,500,0007% 75 - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T - 3,500,000 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T - 5,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,001 7T - 11,000,0007% T - 1
HK$16,500,001 to HK$17,000,000 16,500,001 7T — 17,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$23,500,001 to HK$24,000,000 283,500,001 7T — 24,000,000/ 7T 1 -
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FA
to the five highest paid individuals and directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

Ff it

Note: The discretionary bonus is incentive payment based on
individual performance for the two years ended 31 March
2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBLATEF

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation has been arrived R AR MBI
at after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHE
(included in distribution and selling (BERDHEKR
expenses) HEBRN) 13,376 12,787
Auditor’s remuneration % 25 B B 7,584 7,554
Cost of inventories recognised as R/ HZHFERAE
an expense 516,651 565,480
Cost of construction works recognised BRRXHZBETREAR
as an expense 4,115,362 4,173,286
Depreciation of property, plant and ME R ERERETE
equipment (note (a) below) (R ftiE(a) 58,812 89,907
Operating lease rentals in respect of: KERANMES
Premises BF 22,485 22,662
Plant and machinery R J 3% 1 5,641 8,834
Release of prepaid lease payments AREANEEFIA 4,239 4,124
Staff costs (note (b) below) BT (FXHiaEb) 326,259 241,486
and after crediting: WEFTA :
Dividend income from investments held FIEEEKREZREKA
for trading 262 245
Rental income under operating leases in KERAZHSBA -
respect of:
Investment properties, net of BEME  BMKR X H
outgoings of HK$3,462,000 3,462,000 7T
(2011: HK$3,326,000) (2011 : 3,326,000 7T ) 9,372 7,025
Total interest income (included in BAMBWA(BEREERER
turnover and other income) HEUAR) 84,021 17,858
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE2012F3A31BIEFE
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION — continued 13. BRBIANER — &
Notes: Hiat -
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
(@)  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:  (a)  ¥1¥ - HWRREZIFTE
Amount provided for the year FEEER 64,997 94,804
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts W BIFEREHNIRER
in progress & (2,755) (1,414)
Amount capitalised in respect of project BIEERPIBEER
under development ZHE 2 (449)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEBERME - HBW
construction in progress (included RRHEAZERELIRE
in property, plant and equipment) BARZHEE (1,027) (509)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIEHEEEEMEELRZ
properties under development for sale 5 (2,401) (2,525)
58,812 89,907
(o)  Staff costs: ) BIX:
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(a)) BEEWE (MaF12(2) 32,359 22,781
Other staff costs: HMETXH -
Salaries and other benefits N 2 H A AR 595,741 486,789
Retirement benefit scheme contributions, RIRAE R G IR R
net of forfeited contributions of SR U £ 383,000/ T
HK$83,000 (2011: HK$16,000) (2011 : 16,000/ 7T) 17,681 15,956
Share-based payment expense IRt AREZER - 261
645,781 525,787
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts W BIEERSNIRER
in progress ¢} (308,372) (270,227)
Amount capitalised in respect of project BIEERTBEEER
under development ok & (156) (2,125)
Amount capitalised in respect of BIER SR - HW
construction in progress (included in EREAZERIRE
property, plant and equipment) B2 85 (6,659) (6,387)
Amount capitalised in respect of BERLEERMEELRZ
properties under development for sale £ (4,335) (6,562)
326,259 241,486
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KRR MET
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE201263A31 AL EE
14. TAXATION 14, Bi1E
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FETT
The charge comprises: PIE S HBE
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EBNE
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEREEBDTRE - 2
Taxation arising in jurisdictions outside BRUINEDEREREE
Hong Kong: ZHiIA
Current year KEFEE 160,213 44,341
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAFEREE(RZ) TR (2,372) 6,313
157,841 50,654
Deferred taxation (note 42) BRI (HfaE42)
LAT T IEE 20,352 55,793
Others Htb 13,402 60,403
33,754 116,196
Taxation attributable to the Company RAT REME R R
and its subsidiaries I8 191,595 166,852
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the EEMNGERIBEMFE 2 A ERT S FIRH
estimated assessable profit for both years. #16.5%5 H o
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BETECEFER L ((CEFERE]) R
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax AR E AR h200841 B1HE - AEER

rate for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards. Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, a PRC subsidiary of the Group was
exempted from PRC income tax for two years starting from
its first profit making year, followed by a 50% reduction for
the next three years which expired in 2010.

hE 2B R R 2 B ER25% - RIBET RIEEER
ER G AEEZ —RRENE SRR EENFE
HA2FEBRBATEMGSH  RNERIFRREY
B WER2010F & °

Pld resmaras 0Fm 155



/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

14. TAXATION — continued 14.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The current year taxation arising in jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong includes an income tax charge of approximately
HK$126,832,000 (2011: Nil), which represents the PRC
income tax charged on the gain on disposal of 50.1%
equity interest in Jiangsu YangKou Port Development and
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou Port Co”) (see note 46(c)
for details). According to the EIT Law effective from 1
January 2008 and its Implementation Regulation, the capital
gain derived from equity rights transfer by a non-resident
enterprise, representing the difference between the transfer
price and the cost of equity rights, is subject to a tax rate of
10%.

According to the requirements of the Provisional

Regulations of the PRC on LAT (FF2E A R B + i

AT E1TIEM) effective from 1 January 1994, and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT (FEARAME L I ERE 1 TIRGIE
HEARAl) effective from 27 January 1995 as well, all income
from the sale or transfer of land use rights, buildings and their
attached facilities in the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value as
calculated according to the Provisional Regulations of the
PRC on LAT and its Detailed Implementation Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

14. TAXATION — continued 14. BLE — &
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the REFE 2 B X H 8RS W e &SI BOATE 7
profit before taxation per the consolidated income statement ZHEEWT
as follows:
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Profit before taxation B B A ) 560,612 466,040
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% REBFEHHE16.5%H 2
I8 92,501 76,898
Tax effect of share of results of BEERRRRESSE R
associates/jointly controlled entities ZRBHE (9,641) (23,051)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR 5 S A HUR B 2 2 B
tax purpose TE 24,466 13,838
Tax effect of income not taxable for ERBHEBERRBA 2 BB
tax purpose B (26,632) (6,888)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised NMEBRBBBEEZRETE 19,329 14,447
Tax effect of other deductible temporary RIEBRANAE R EZE BB
difference not recognised 2 107 158
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously ) 5t Bl R #E3R Z B 75 5 18 2 B %5
not recognised 4 (7,460) (10,210)
Tax effect of utilisation of other deductible BALAMAERZ MRS REE
temporary difference previously not ZHBEE
recognised (94) (13)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ﬁt AEERKEEEB 2B
operating in other jurisdictions RRIZ TR E 2 BBz 8 16,382 53,553
Tax effect of capital gain on disposal of a B — BB R R R R R B R
subsidiary at applicable tax rate of 16.5% 16.5%=1 8 2 B RN 2 B
g (64,195) -
Tax on capital gain on disposal of a subsidiary H& —RINERF 2 & Az 2
F1a 126,832 -
Effect of recognising LAT in respect of the HIEEMELNTEBZ B HER
fair value changes in investment properties T IREN 2 & 20,352 55,793
Effect of recognising LAT for stock of HELEMEFTERR L MILE
properties sold - 9,478 -
Effect of tax holiday granted to a PRC BTHBENBRARMBEEZTE
subsidiary - (40)
Tax effect of LAT THIEER R E (7,458) (13,948)
(Over)underprovision in prior years MAFERE(RZ) TR (2,372) 6,315
Taxation charge for the year RNEEHERZ 191,595 166,852

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 42.

ERERIR 2 718 R sE42 -
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RE MR MEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE201263A31 AL EE
15. DISTRIBUTION 15. 7K
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET FAET
Dividends recognised as distribution REAFERRBR/DIEZRE
during the year:
Final dividend declared for the year ended HZE2011F3F31B I FEEZE
31 March 2011 — HK1 cent (2011: Nil) TR AR H R BT RRAB L
per share (2011 : ) 45,291 -
Special cash dividend declared for the year RAEFZEERFHNRERE
— HK2 cents (2011: Nil) per share - Rk2/E (2011 : &) 90,583 =
135,874 =
Dividends proposed in respect of REZERRE
current year:
Final dividend proposed for the year ended B E2012F3HA31BILFE 2
31 March 2012 — HKO0.5 cent R R H IR B -F 1R0.575 11l
(2011: HK1 cent) per share (2011 + 134L) 22,792 45,291
The amount of the final dividend proposed for the year B E2012F3 A AL FERK AR E (LR &
ended 31 March 2012, which will be in the form of cash R ABEEURKRS)BED2ERNRKRE B
with a scrip option, has been calculated by reference to the H4,558,493,575RE EH1TRMDEE -

4,558,493,575 issued shares as at the date of this report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

16. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. BREXREERER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RRABER ARGERERRESRF TR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the TEESE

following data:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Profit for the year attributable to owners of AEERERAREERRN 2 AAQA
the Company for the purposes of basic BAEAREFER RN
and diluted earnings per share 334,072 200,104
2012 2011
Number Number
of shares of shares
RHEE &8
Weighted average number of ordinary shares s ESREARARBEFRF 2 LBR
for the purposes of basic and diluted hnRE T £ 85
earnings per share 4,541,642,831 4,529,125,134
The computation of diluted earnings per share does not RZMEFE @ ;T EERE S IT EERRITE
assume the exercise of the Company’s options because the RABIZERE BARAZEBRREZITEEINA
exercise price of those options was higher than the average RAEIRD 2 FIETE -

market price for Company’s shares for both years.
HZE201MFIANAULFE - R HAXAF WK

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the computation of AR ERZEe SR ER Y TR AT 1
diluted earnings per share did not assume the conversion of M0 B A E SR S A R B ]
the Company’s outstanding convertible loan notes since their MR RS EE T T RRERE RO RS

exercise would result in an increase in earnings per share for
that year. The convertible loan notes were redeemed during
the year ended 31 March 2011.

20113 A31HILFEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

17. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 17. 2ERBELHEZEE
On 31 January 2011, a subsidiary of the Company which R20114F1A318 » AR E A F0BAF (1
held 60% equity interest in Yangkou Port Co, which was EABBORMAEERER) 0RREZHE A A
engaged in the business of development in port and related ¥ OBAT —ZIETRBEITI—BAEBKHER
infrastructures, entered into a conditional agreement with a = U ARK5.07E T (R2011F3831HEE
non-controlling shareholder of Yangkou Port Co to dispose RA1790BAT) EBEEEOE R T 250.1%0%
of 50.1% of its equity interest in Yangkou Port Co for a e HEEEDN011ESA268 25 - EOE A
consideration of approximately RMB1,507 million (equivalent AREAEAATIMEAT - ¥ D TR 1E
to approximately HK$1,790 million as at 31 March 2011). ¥ OB AR R011E3A31BY T EMREERA
The disposal was completed on 26 May 2011 and Yangkou EmT
Port Co ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The
major classes of assets and liabilities of Yangkou Port Co
after elimination of inter-company balances as at 31 March
2011 were as follows:

HK$’000
FHE T
Property, plant and equipment R Y 1,076,274
Investment properties EYHE 2,393,872
Project under development ERFPIER 1,131,691
Stock of properties MEFE 1,095,629
Trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments & 5 & Bt IR « 5T & RIAF FIAE 220,402
Bank balances and cash RITEGFERES 128,341
Assets classified as held for sale DEARFELREZEE 6,046,209
Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses B REMENEREIRETHAX 291,610
Amount due to an associate FEAS — 8 & A R 5RIE 34,074
Amount due to a related company JE - — [ B Bk & R R IE 7,380
Taxation payable JRE 1~ 753 TH 74,107
Bank and other borrowings RIT R H A E K 1,282,660
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 1,611,632
Liabilities associated with assets classified as HABARIEHECEEMRB AR
held for sale 3,301,463

/
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REMBMRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE201243A31BILFE
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - MW ERRE
Port LPG Furniture,
infrastructure  logistics and Motor ~ fixtures and
Plant and Port  andrelated distribution vehicles computer ~ Construction
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment faciities facilies  andvessels  equipment i progress Total
iy
AOERR il RS
BT BARRG RO LB MK RERER  REERE ERIR ait
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tn Tén Tén Tin Tén Tén Tn Tén Tn
0osT LS
At1 Apr 2010 Ho01054A18 17483 113504 3,216 1,066,341 490,567 116,280 100,390 337,315 2424509
Exchange realignment EiHE 69% 39 1,661 16,149 21,598 4463 %1 19426 101,572
Addions FE 25 89,571 3061 84} 1742 17,642 11,759 2074% 31,529
Transfers 4 - - 1843 5160 - 1984 1113 (10,100) -
Reclassled as held for BN EARE
sale (note 17) L& (Hit17) (16313 - - (1034408 - (5,087) (5,331) (3399 [(1,12453%)
Disposal ik (691) (909) (118 (16,540) 13 (5,999) (5,109) - (29370)
At 31 March 2011 H011E£3A81A 105,062 2519 41,663 56,730 513,804 129,284 103,757 560,798 1,708,702
Exchange realignment EiHE 3999 33 1627 2187 19,636 4305 9 2415 55,21
Addions FE 181 47,05 2,151 218 184 18,981 5817 139,299 213,887
Transfers g 1% = 1632 1,460 - 5414 1,069 (9,769) -
Disposal ik (1,349) (3452 (662 - (8%2) (4544) (18,099) - 28973
At 31 March 2012 H201223A318 108,081 246,456 46,31 60,600 532,862 163,440 93,264 102,743 1,943,837
DEPRECIATION &
At1 Apr 2010 R01054R18 20749 5094 1318 7683 88211 3,176 80575 - 268,29
Exchange realignment EHBE 1,106 106 12 874 453 100 408 - 8177
Provided for the year RERHE 8209 12789 2811 28,603 21,506 11,993 7843 - 94,804
Rechssfiedasheldfor  EHHEAEEE
sale (note 17) LE (W 7) (12073) - - @9774) - (3.151) (3,266) - (48.264)
Eiminated on dlsposal HERHH - (667) - - 9 (3823 (3677) - 8,39%)
At 31 March 2011 H01153A31A 18,040 66,932 4254 2386 120,300 40822 81,883 - 17
Exchange realignment ERA% 122 189 195 116 4710 1083 7R - 7318
Provided for the year RERHR 33% 2082 2926 1814 15,721 13,000 7318 - 64,997
Eiminated on disposal HEEHH (259 (3390 - - (300 ) (17,910 - 24.210)
At31 March 2012 H012£3A81A 21,899 84,503 7375 4316 140,491 52,464 71,614 - 382,662
CARRYING VALUES B
At31 March 2012 H01253R31A 8,182 161,963 39,016 56,284 39,371 100,976 21,650 702,743 1,561,175
At31 March 2011 R011E3A81A 87,012 135,587 37,409 54,349 393,594 88,462 21,874 560,798 1,369,080
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — continued 18.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

ME - BERRRE — 4
LM ERRRE (ERIRBN) LERE

wE  FXMT:

¥ HEEER SR
Buildings Over the remaining period of the HFAE
relevant leases or fifty years, (LA 8555 2 5 )
whichever is shorter e T 50 109 '
Plant and machinery 10% 5 01201 6%
. / A (o]
Port equipment 6% BORRRAWEE 2% -20%
Port infrastructure and 2% - 20% . D
BRAL B RIIR R 4% - 10%
related facilities PR
LPG logistics and 4% -10% L m ) .
distribution facilties /ﬁ&f’z A 2.6% - 20%
£ i oL _ 0,
Motor vehicles and vessels 2.6% - 20% E«( ?“E 8% - 20%
Furniture and fixtures 8% - 20% SRS 20% - 33'/s%
Computer equipment 20% - 33'/3%
The carrying amounts of buildings are analysed as follows: BFEREEITOT :
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
Buildings erected on long-term leasehold land s ERHEHEE b FAEET
in the PRC 5,511 1,423
Buildings erected on medium-term leasehold — d Bt H7H & + #h Fr g =
land in the PRC 80,671 85,589
86,182 87,012
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWE
HK$’000
FHET
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 April 2010 201064 H18 2,577,880
Exchange realignment PE 3 AR 123,923
Transferred from project under development wEaERPIER (MiFakb)

(notes a and b) 111,691
Additions NE 38,356
Disposal HE (30,279)
Transferred to stock of properties HEEYERS (16,102)
Reclassified as held for sale (note 17) EFHEABELE (HE17) (2,398,872)
Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated REARFRRNERZ A BEE M

income statement 316,214
At 31 March 2011 R201143A31H 727,811
Exchange realignment [E 5 28,913
Transferred from project under development BREERPIER (MiFakb)

(notes a and b) 14,772
Additions NE 68
Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated — Wiz& WHERANER Z A FBEE N

income statement 83,680
At 31 March 2012 M201243A31H 855,244

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET
Leasehold land and buildings HELTHRET 280,497 259,736
Formed land (note a) 2B+ 4 (B 5ta) 485,968 2,509,215
Land under development (note b) R it (B athb) 88,779 352,732
855,244 3,121,683
Less: classified as held for sale (hote 17) W D EABELE (K17) - (2,393,872)
855,244 727,811
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued

Notes:

a.

The balance represents formed land held for future development
as investment property amounting to HK$485,968,000 (2011:
HK$2,509,215,000) as at 31 March 2012. During the year

ended 31 March 2011, the Group completed the reclamation

of certain sea area and obtained the certificate of completion

of land reclamation (the “Certificate”) issued by qualified project
engineering and construction manager in respect of certain

land area (the “Formed Land”) in Jiangsu Province, the PRC.
Upon obtaining the Certificate, such Formed Land had been
recognised as land held under operating lease and classified

and accounted for as investment properties as the Formed Land
is held for capital appreciation purpose. The relevant costs,

which included the development expenditure, borrowing costs
capitalised and other directly attributable expenses, amounting to
approximately HK$16,732,000, had been transferred from project
under development to investment properties. No land reclamation
process was completed in 2012.

As at 31 March 2012, in connection with the reclamation of certain
area in Jiangsu Province, the PRC, the Group commenced, but
not yet completed, the land leveling process (mainly representing
the sand filling work to achieve leveling of the area) (the “Land
Being Formed”). Upon the commencement of land leveling
process, such Land Being Formed has been recognised as

land being developed for future use as investment property

and classified and accounted for as investment properties. The
relevant costs, which include the development expenditure,
borrowing costs capitalised and other directly attributable
expenses, amounting to approximately HK$14,772,000 (2011:
HK$94,959,000), have been transferred from project under
development to investment properties.
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19. REWXE — &

ftat -

M2012F3A31H - ZB&EH A AR B RFAEIE
HE Y B F B+ 11485,968,0005 7T (2011 :
2,509,215,000% 7T) ° R & Z201143A318 IE5F
B ARBRTRARBEIIGEE T EETIR
VHEFT T HEERSHAEREEIRREEL
BEHZTERBES I (BEFELM]) 2FE ([
FE])  ZECTFBIHAMEBEZEERERABIE
wEHEREz L VAR TR ARBIEER
BEMBESBRARIBERENSE - HEKAE
BEBRIL  BRERNZEERARE M & ES
F - 8 #16,732,0008 T  ENRERPIEE &
BREME -MEBESIHIFR2012FTMK -

M201243A31H iR BEIHE S TR 2 H
BIRME ASECEHATMTEIRE(EEHE
BASPUTFEEERS) ([FEHR L) - EE
KRR - REAA T PR ITRE  ZFEFLHE
HHEARNBRABEREYEZERT L I
DERARIRRENE - HEKNEBEEREX
H BREAEERAREMEZERERZ L
14,772,000/ 7t (2011 : 94,959,000/ 7T) + B #
ERPIHEBAREME -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2012 and 31 March 2011 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out as at those dates by Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. In determining the

fair value of leasehold land and buildings and Formed Land
held for future development as investment property, the
comparison method is adopted under which comparison
based on information of recent transacted prices of
comparable property is made. Comparable property of
similar size, character and location are analysed in order to
arrive at a fair comparison of capital values. The valuation

as at 31 March 2011 regarding the investment properties
classified as held for sale also took into account the further
increment arising from the approval obtained from the
respective government authority during the prior period for
certain portion of the Formed Land to be used for specified
purposes. In determining the fair value of land under
development, the same comparison method is adopted and
valuation has been allowed for further costs to be expended
for the development of the Land Being Formed into Formed
Land. During the year, the total gain on fair value changes of
Land Being Formed of approximately HK$73,032,000 (2011:
HK$241,396,000), and during the year ended 31 March
2011, the total gain on fair value changes of Formed Land
where land leveling process was completed as at 31 March
2011 of approximately HK$45,611,000 (2012: Nil), have
been recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Deferred tax consequences in respect of the revalued
investment properties are assessed on the basis that reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects to recover the carrying amounts

of the property at the end of the reporting period. For
Formed Land and Land Being Formed located in the PRC,
management of the Company, for the purpose of deferred tax
calculation, has made a best estimate that half of the Formed
Land and Land Being Formed will be realised through sale

in the long term. The temporary difference of the relevant
portion between the tax base of the revalued investment
properties and their carrying amounts therefore would be
subject to PRC LAT in addition to enterprise income tax.

As at 31 March 2012, the balance of investment properties
included Formed Land of approximately HK$485,968,000
(2011: HK$2,509,215,000). The Group has to obtain certain
appropriate certificates for the disposal of the Formed Land.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
consider that there is no material impediment to obtain these
certificates for the Group.

19.

REWMHE — &

NEER2012F3A31H R2011F3A31H 2 &
MEZATEERKERREASEELEEE Y
BUGERBEEMEMI EETEEREGRAR]
BAIZHESE REIGERELHREFREAE
RERFABEERENEZEFELIMZ AT EE
K- RAANTELBRYEZHRIRIEBEREN R
HEZHESK - HEE MHERMEBEZAIEL
BMELTHNT  URERNBEEBRATFLR - R
2011E3A3IBE D EARBELHE 2 REYEELT
T MEHRETHHEFTELHER B
MEE S EEBTHE e EREREMEEZ
HE—HEREGE ETERP LM ATEER
ERAF—LEE  SHECREFER LIMEE
RETFELHRESEE 2E—PRARELHRE -
RAFEE  FEFLHMAFEBEZHRELEOR
73,032,000 7T (2011 : 241,396,000/ 7T) * i A
B Z2011538A31H IEFE - EM201143A31H
TRTHFEIRZEF BRI AFEBER

U 35 8 %8 49 245,611,000 7T (2012« &) » B F8
SHEERNGERERATER -

FEEEHRENEZELERARRE  HEER
J M 7S 2 (B 0 # 5 B A SRS Bt Wl W) S BR T B
EHRAB 2 T AFEEZHBRR - HURNPEZ
EFBLMR PP LM E - RAERTEHRE
ARBRERECIEHEKEM  BRREH TR
THRFER LR A FBUHETAER -
It REHEREMEZHERERRERMBRBLES
MEREERHRPE MR ERINCERER -

M201263A31H KREWMEZHEHKBED
485,968,000/ 7T (2011 : 2,509,215,000/% Jt) Z
BEYELH AREFTHFAEEENHEZE T
Bii  RENELR ARRAEERALEER
NSZEEERLEEKNER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

20. PROJECT UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. HEHIEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT T
Project development costs T8 HBEKA 493,267 1,621,812
Less: classified as held for sale (note 17) B DEARFIELE (Ma17) - (1,131,691)
493,267 490,121

As at 31 March 2012, the balance mainly relates to a
property development project located in Jiangsu Province,
the PRC. The Group is undergoing the land reclamation and
the construction of public facilities. Upon commencement

of land leveling process, the intended purpose of the land
development can be determined and relevant project
development costs will be transferred at the carrying value to
stock of properties for sale or property, plant and equipment
or investment properties, as appropriate.

20126 3A31H  £HFEHMRFETIEHSE 2
MERREEEH ASEEETIHFERER
NAEME e NI FRERTEMGE  AJEFE L
BrEHRARZ YHEFEBEZEERRAKEEOES
BEGEWMETERWE BN RZHL (WER)
BEME -

21. STOCK OF PROPERTIES 21. YEEFLE

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Properties under development for sale BRPEEME 324,353 946,951
Properties held for sale BEHEmE 763,416 1,247,478
1,087,769 2,194,429
Less: classified as held for sale (note 17) B DEARFIELE (Ma17) - (1,095,629)
1,087,769 1,098,800

Land Being Formed which are developed for future sale are
recognised as properties under development for sale in stock
of properties upon the commencement of the land leveling
process.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

21.

22.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES — continued 21.

At 31 March 2012, the balance of properties held for sale
included Formed Land of approximately HK$404,460,000
(2011: HK$1,079,158,000) and the balance of properties
under development for sale included Land Being Formed of
approximately HK$410,620,000 as at 31 March 2011 (2012:
Nil). The Group has to obtain certain appropriate certificates
before it can dispose of the Formed Land. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company consider that there
is no material impediment to obtain these certificates for the
Group.

At 31 March 2012, stock of properties includes an amount
of approximately HK$208,628,000 (2011: HK$189,328,000)
which is expected to be realised after more than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 22.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent land in the
PRC and Hong Kong held under medium-term and long
leases and are analysed for reporting purposes as follows:

NERFE — &
201249 3A31E  HIEHEMEZERBERN
404,460,000 7T (2011 : 1,079,158,0008 7T) 2 &
FELH - MAR2011FIAIAERFHEEMEL
#HaP RS FES 410,620, ooo,%nz(zmz
) AEEFENLERCFRELI WA RESE T
MEE - IBENALR  AQ Ti%m%ﬁélﬁé
BMEZEEENTEEARER -

MR2012F3A31H VEGFEBRBREHBERA
HEHEEERBT _MAKRERZEEY
208,628,0005 7T (2011 : 189,328,000/ 7T.) °

BENHEERIR
AEBZANAERREARTEREARES
HERHEERE 2L BOMERSAEWT

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Leasehold land in Hong Kong BEZHEE L
Medium-term lease FREFE 20,262 20,837
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong BBEAIME 2 HE T
Long lease REHEE 14,983 23,720
Medium-term lease FHEE 283,281 272,536
318,526 317,093
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RAOMVERE B -
Current assets mENEE 4,197 4,229
Non-current assets FEREEE 314,329 312,864
318,526 317,093
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BE201263A31ALFE
23. GOODWILL 23. &
HK$000
FHET
COST oA
At 1 April 2010 M20105F4 18 64,338
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 46(a)) U BE BT B 8 ) B E AR (P A 46(a)) 74
At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 M2011%E3H31H %201243H31H 64,412
IMPAIRMENT W AE
At 1 April 2010 M2010F4 A1H 2,692
Impairment loss recognised in the year RAFERRREEE 74
At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 M2011F3A31H K2012F3A31H 2,766
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2012 M2012%3A31H 61,646
At 31 March 2011 MR2011E3A31H 61,646

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount
of goodwill has been allocated to the cash generating unit

(“CGU”) representing the management contracting business

of Paul Y. Engineering Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of approximately HK$74,000 in relation
to goodwiill arising on acquisition of certain subsidiaries in
view of the continuous operating losses incurred by those
subsidiaries engaged in property development management

of Paul Y. Engineering Group.

The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been

determined based on value in use calculations. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next two

REZE2011F3ANBIEFE  ERETHREDE
BREBZREZEESEN B AR FERS

years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five years
with a steady growth rate of 5% (2011: 5%). The rate used
to discount the forecast cash flows is 9% (2011: 9%). The
value in use calculations is calculated based on the budgeted

gross margin, which is determined using the unit’s past

performance and management’s expectations for the market

development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBMRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HE201243A31BILFE
24. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 24. HthEBEE
Motor
vehicles Club  Premium on
registration  membership leasehold Rights of Customer Know- Rent-free
marks in Hong Kong [and operation base how benefits Total
RE#Z BELH
FEBENE  GFEE  2ME ¥R SFEE MR REAN B3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn Tikn
(Note a) (Note g) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note ) (Note)
(Wita) (Wita) (i) (Witc) (Hiitd) (Hite) (Witr)
COST HA
At 1 April 2010 R201054A1A 1,398 7,062 111,183 41,481 2,347 2,428 18,863 184,727
Disposal & = - (1,240) - - - - (1,240)
Exchange realignment i #% - - 4,855 1,823 103 107 829 1,17
At 31 March 2011 R201153A31H 1,398 7,062 114,768 43,304 2480 2,53 19,692 191,204
Disposal e = - (9,262) - - - - (9,262)
Exchange redlignment  ER A% = = 4,284 1,698 93 97 753 6,882
At 31 March 2012 R201253A31H 1,398 7,062 109,790 44959 2,543 2,632 20,445 188,824
AMORTISATION ]
At 1 April 2010 201054418 = - 1,659 2,903 822 506 - 5890
Provided forthe year ~ AEE 3R = = 2,082 846 239 248 9422 12,787
Eliminated on disposal &6 43 - - (25) - - - - (25)
Exchange realignment  E B - - 121 148 42 28 223 562
At 31 March 2011 R2011%£3A31H = = 3,787 3,897 1,108 8 9,645 19,214
Providedforthe year ~ AEF:H R - - 2,07 889 251 260 9,905 13,376
Eliminated on disposal &8 H5H - - (266) - - - - (266)
Exchange redlignment  ER A% = = 168 189 45 33 478 880
At 31 March 2012 R201243A31A = = 5,757 4945 1,399 1,075 20,028 33,204

CARRYNGVALUES ~ EEfE
At 31 March 2012 12012534317 1,393 7,062 104,033 40,014 1,144 1,057 a7 185,620

At 31 March 2011 R2011£3A317 1,393 7,062 110981 39407 1,347 1,753 10,047 171,990
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

24. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS — continued

Notes:

(@)

The assets have indefinite useful lives. The directors are of the
opinion that the club membership and motor vehicles registration
marks are worth at least their carrying values.

The amount represents the premium on leasehold land in Wuhan
and Yichang, the PRC, upon acquisition by the Group through
the acquisition of the relevant business and the amount is to

be amortised on the same basis as the related prepaid lease
payments over 33 to 70 years.

Rights of operation represent the fair value of rights to operate
LPG business in Wuhan, the PRC. The rights of operation are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the operation licence
period of 50 years.

Customer base represents the fair value of customers relationship
acquired for LPG business through acquisition of business. The
amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

Know-how represents fair value of technology know-how for
motor vehicles to use LPG as fuel. The amortisation is provided
on a straight-line basis over 10 years.

Rental-free benefits represent the fair value of the benefits in
relation to certain land and property, plant and equipment used
rent-free by Yichang Port Group Limited. The amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over the rent-free period of
three years. The remaining lease term of 17 years is subject to
negotiation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

25.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

25. BENTER

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT THT

Cost of unlisted investments in associates, REFLETHE AR ZKA
less impairment (note) EREAE (M at) 619,520 646,009

Share of post-acquisition profits and reserves, — # {5 Ug B 18 % 7| R &

net of dividends received kB W B 569,742 486,018
1,189,262 1,132,027

Note:

At 31 March 2012, the unlisted investments include the Group’s 40%
equity interest in Jiangyin Sunan International Container Terminal Co.,
Ltd. (“Jiangyin Sunan”). Jiangyin Sunan is a sino-foreign joint venture
enterprise registered in the PRC and operates the container terminal in
Jiangyin Port, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Apart from the investment in Jiangyin Sunan, as at 31 March 2012, the
unlisted investments include the Group’s 45% equity interest in Nantong
Port Group Limited (“Nantong Port Group”), which is a sino-foreign

joint venture enterprise registered in the PRC. Nantong Port Group is
principally engaged in providing cargo loading and off loading, storage,
shipping agent, cargo agent, ship anchoring, ship repairing, port
machinery, shipping logistics and ship piloting services in Nantong Port,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

The financial year end date of Nantong Port Group and Jiangyin Sunan
is 31 December and their latest financial information that is available to
the Group is in respect of their financial year ended 31 December 2011.
Accordingly, the Group’s share of results and interests in these principal
associates at 31 March 2012 and 2011 are determined based on the
financial information of the associates for the year ended and as at 31
December 2011 and 2010 respectively. No significant transaction or
event is noted between the year end dates of the associates and of the
Group.

i

M201243A318 L MREBEASERN IR E
BREEBBEER AR (DIEREM]) A Z40%M0 A 1#
woIRHBARPEEMR I ZFINEGERE  EF
Bl #R & TR B S R KEIHEE -

BRI & ZIEEIN - R20124F3R318 » IELTIRE
BEAEEREABOEERRAR ((MABOEER])
ZA45% M - mBANSREAE—RNPEEMZFRIEE
TR -BREOEETERPEIHGEEBBRERM
EMEE - fEF - BERE  BEES BOMMARE -
s BB E  MMEERE  SIMEES -

MESODEERIRHFRZVRFELE R A12R318 -
REBUFE2H&MMEENARSHZE2011F12A31RH
b2 B BFE o B - AN B R20124F K201143A31
FBUZETERE AR ZESE DD IIRZHE A AR
2011F R2010F12AB A Z B AR T H - £ SH 2
RAZFHAZAEE 2 FAPPHULESEAMEX
RHKFEHE -

Pld guesmaras 0Fs 171




/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

Summarised financial information in respect of those principal

associates is set out below:

25. BENTER — &

ERZEIBMERRZBAMBEENDT

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2011 31.12.2010
HZ20114F HZE2010%F
12A31H 12H31H
LEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHERT FAET
Financial position: AR
Total assets 188 E 4,596,218 4,277,342
Total liabilities mafE (1,876,187) (1,765,096)
Non-controlling interests JEIERAERS (51,774) (46,533)
2,668,257 2,465,713
Group’s share of net assets of associates AEBBEHESAREEFE 1,162,182 1,078,467
Post-acquisition results: WHER A -
Turnover - 1,081,569 946,401
Profit for the year & N 7 106,328 121,831
Other comprehensive income Hih 2w 95,402 95,175
Group’s share of profit of associates RNEBBEBERRAZFEE RN
for the year 46,425 143,008
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — continued

The combined summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s other associates is set out below:

25. BMMENRIERE — &

BRAKBEMBE AR Z AR BEERDT

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Financial position: AR
Total assets BEE 120,828 440,849
Total liabilities BEE (42,486) (388,662)
78,342 52,187
Group’s share of net assets of associates AREBBMGBME AR EESE 27,080 53,560
Post-acquisition results: g e 4R -
Turnover L 552,939 296,812
Loss for the year FREE (2,922) (17,957)
Other comprehensive income H a2 K - 166
Group’s share of losses of associates REEBEBERRZ
for the year EEEE (1,046) (6,194)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses AREELIFHEREEME (2011 —H) BE QA

of two (2011: one) of the associates. The accumulated
unrecognised share of losses and the amount of losses
for the year attributable to the Group (based on unaudited
management accounts) are as follows:

ZER AERRABEEBRFARNEEREE
BeHE (BEARKEEXEERB)WT

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Unrecognised share of losses of the RER 2B ENGF 2
associates for the year FEEE (122) (1,287)
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of KR & (HH#E N A2
the associates R EB (54,892) (54,770)

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March
2012 and 2011 are set out in note 56(b).

REBEFEHE R A R2012F &2011F3A31H
2BV M E56(0) ©

~
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

26. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES 26. HEEFIKBES

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in jointly AL E e RS IE F T
controlled entities & & AR AN 25,580 4,600
Share of post-acquisition profits (losses) and BHWEE 2R (5E) &
other comprehensive income (expenses), Hip2EKRA (L) -
net of dividends received MR WA E 5,734 (535)
31,314 4,065

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities which are
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

AEBEERERATEZARZEHNBERS Z M
BERBZREIIMT -

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHTT
Group’s share of assets and liabilities of jointly 78 & & # (5 £k [7] 1% 6 # &
controlled entities: BERBE:
Non-current assets FMBEE 13,293 -
Current assets MENE E 201,082 87,546
Current liabilities RBAEE (181,814) (83,481)
Non-current liabilities EREaE (1,247) -
Net assets BESRE 31,314 4,065
Group’s share of income and expenses of AN 52 B (1 AR [R5 I i R
jointly controlled entities: W kRAX
Income recognised in profit or loss RIEE AR 2 W= 382,318 108,783
Expense recognised in profit or loss RERANERZFX (369,262) (105,891)
13,056 2,892
Particulars of the Group’s principal jointly controlled entities at AN B EHRE S ER20129F k201143 A31
31 March 2012 and 2011 are set out in note 56(c). H 2z #1585 R EE56(c) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE2012438318 L5
27. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 27. AIHHEERE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET T
Overseas listed equity securities =L i N 75 91
Unlisted equity securities FEEMARAE S
in Hong Kong a5 - 341
overseas STl 363,726 929
363,726 1,270
363,801 1,361
Represented by: K& -
Non-current JETED 363,726 1,270
Current i) 75 91
363,801 1,361
Market value of listed securities EmEHETE 75 91
The investments in overseas unlisted equity securities as EHNE LT AR AR B H 720126 R2011E3A31A 2
at 31 March 2012 and 2011 were measured at cost less WEAREETER YR ARRESSE  DEAD
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the FTEEZABGIESBRAA  AATEERAT
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that BT EMLE o B PR AREER20114E3831
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair BB EANTEBESE o

values cannot be measured reliably. The investments in Hong
Kong unlisted equity securities as at 31 March 2011 were
measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

28. LOANS RECEIVABLE

28. BIWER

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FABT
The amounts, net of allowance, bear interest EEzZE(NBEE) Ak
at the following rates: PN S
2% over Hong Kong Best Lending Rate BTHEBEEENE([BTHER
(“HKBLR?”) (note a) BEFRE]) I2E (K ita) 68,468 68,468
2% per annum, convertible bond (note b) FFIE2[E - Al ES (T aEb) - 36,531
10% per annum i%lj% (0)E2) 8,148 8,148
Zero-coupon, convertible notes (note ¢) AR ZE & (M atc) 16,020 -
HKBLR %EF@E%E%U% 10,000 -
Total amount %’\Iﬁ 4@ =g 102,636 113,147
Less: Amount due within one year or on B R—E R IR EREHN G
demand shown under current assets 7,%/;@5%?2,? (86,616) (113,147)
Amount due after one year —FR B2 B 16,020 -
Analysed as: DA
Secured B 10,000 —
Unsecured 43K 1 92,636 113,147
102,636 113,147

Included in the carrying amount of loans receivable as

at 31 March 2012 was accumulated impairment loss of
HK$19,886,000 (2011: HK$19,886,000) in respect of the
balance, which was past due at the end of the reporting
period and the relevant debtors were in financial difficulties.
Other than the above, no significant loans receivable WE TR o B %% R
balance has been past due at the end of the reporting

period for which impairment loss has not been recognised.
No recognition of impairment loss for the balance not yet
past due at the end of the reporting period was considered
necessary, since there has been no past default history in

respect of those receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

28. LOANS RECEIVABLE — continued

Notes:

(@)

The amount of unsecured loan receivable of HK$68,468,000
(2011: HK$68,468,000) bears variable interest rate at 2% over
HKBLR (i.e. 7%) (2011: 7%) and is repayable on demand. The
amount was subsequently repaid after the end of the financial
reporting period.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group subscribed for
convertible bond with an aggregate face value of HK$36,858,000
issued by Hanny Holdings Limited. The coupon interest of the
convertible bond is 2% per annum with maturity in June 2011.
The amount recognised in loans receivable represents the debt
element of the convertible bond and is determined using an
effective interest rate of 6.47% per annum at initial recognition.
The embedded conversion option of the convertible bond is
separately accounted for as derivative financial instrument and
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value. The convertible bond has been fully settled during the
current year.

During the current year, the Group subscribed for zero-coupon
convertible notes with an aggregate face value of HK$15,000,000
issued by EPI (Holdings) Limited, an independent third party.

The convertible notes are to be redeemed at 130% of principal
outstanding upon maturity in September 2013. The amount
included in loans receivable represents the debt element of the
convertible notes and is determined using an effective interest
rate of 15.03% per annum at initial recognition. The fair value of
the embedded conversion option of the convertible notes as at 31
March 2012 is insignificant.

28. FEW
EE

(@)

% % %8 /68,468,000 7T (2011 : 68,468,000/ JT)
ZEE AR E RS TR EEEEFI R M2E (B
7E) (2011« 7E) B WAKREKER - ZLE
RN SRS A RECIRIEE -

REZE2007F3A31B L FE - A% ERER KA
SEBRABAMMET - #IRMEES36,858,000/%8 T2
AREES I RRESFZEEXAFNEE -
WH2011F6 AR B - RIEWER AR Z 2 FER
TRABRBREFZEBIDSD - R UIKHERE A RE
FEe47TEEE - JRBREF 2 ERBRED T
ABTEeRIASHEAR  URKEMBKIERA
UNATFEEE - FRATRREFCREAFEDH

AE -

RAFE AEEREEBYUE=FREBEEH (T
B%) B R QB AT ST - 428K E (B A15,000,0007% 7T
ZEBARREE - A RKREEEHR2013F9A 5
R RRITETLRREEAS T Z130%E B - 5
ANERERZERCEAARER 2 ABIHS
I 74 2 B RS F15.08% 2 B FEF REE -
AR EE 2 SRR EN201243A31B 2 A F
BEMTRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE201243A31ALEE
29. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 29. BEUWEE N RIRIE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&xT &L
Unsecured other receivables, interest-free R E MR RIE 28 35,819 42,929

30.

The balance is repayable on demand except an amount of
approximately HK$29,984,000 (2011: HK$40,485,000) has
credit period of 90 days and is trade in nature. The aged
analysis presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

ZHEBBERERKEE HERBESIUHER
29,984,000/ 7t (2011 : 40,485,000/ 7t) 2z &
HAH - MR RENRTHENUREREHESHE
BammT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FABT

Within 90 days 90H A 436 12,620
More than 90 days and within 180 days #3890 H I M 180H A 145 42
More than 180 days HBiE180H 29,403 27,823
Total @t 29,984 40,485

The above balances with aged over 90 days are past due
but not impaired. The directors of the Company consider
that there has not been a significant change in credit quality
of the associates and there is no recent history of default.
Therefore, the amounts are considered recoverable.

AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED 30.
ENTITIES/A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The amount(s) due from jointly controlled entities/a non-
controlling interest are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand, except for the amounts due from jointly
controlled entities of approximately HK$52,918,000 (2011:
HK$22,952,000) which have credit period of 90 days, are
trade in nature and aged within 90 days based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

31. BEW(EM) BEFEHNIRENA

CONTRACT WORKS
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FABT
Contracts in progress at the end of the RREMTHERZEREGHTIR:
reporting period:
Contract costs incurred to date BRESHEZANIRER 41,127,376 40,409,785
Recognised profits less recognised losses R R N R A R B R 1,122,628 1,099,951
42,250,004 41,509,736
Less: Progress billings W EE R (42,589,846) (42,199,324)
(339,842) (689,588)
Represented by: K&
Amounts due from customers for contract EREFPEHTIIEFE
works 376,446 258,350
Amounts due to customers for contract ENEFPA#HIRNKE
works (716,288) (947,938)
(339,842) (689,588)

D reemeraa
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

32. ESRHMEWRA -FTERAENRE

PREPAYMENTS
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FHET
Trade debtors (note a) JE Uk BR 5K (B aFa) 799,658 610,367
Retentions held by customers for contract EHNIREFPEAEZRES®
works (note b) (KfzEb) 478,541 503,687
Interest-bearing advance (note c) STEEK (M aEe) 279,259 269,605
Advance payment for contract works BHIRZBN 291,741 -
Consideration receivable for disposal of HEFAB AR ZEWARE
Yangkou Port Co (note d) (KtiEd) 743,284 -
Deferred consideration receivables (note e) e UUEER B (M ite) 7,000 7,000
Others (note f) (e aEr) 717,820 456,726
Total amount BB 3,317,303 1,847,385
Less: Amount due within one year shown B R —F AR B A
under current assets BB EZHIE (2,688,836) (1,651,066)
Amount due after one year —E BB %18 628,467 196,319

The balance of trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments is net of allowance for doubtful debts and the

movements of allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

BHREMBEWMAER
BRRREE MESHET

e RENRELHRTIH

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiEIT
Balance at beginning of the year F ) 45 64 35,071 47,016
Amounts written off as uncollectible 7 Be W () 1M 1 85 2 R I8 - (11,376)
Amounts recovered during the year FERYE 2 FHRIE - (572)
Provided for during the year FERBE 2z FE 4,870 -
Exchange realignment PE 5 & 22 8
Balance at end of the year FRER 39,963 35,071

Included in the carrying amount of above receivables as
at 31 March 2012 was accumulated impairment loss of
HK$39,963,000 (2011: HK$35,071,000) in respect of
balances which were past due at the end of the reporting

WE T

B -

period and the relevant debtors were in financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS — continued

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s credit terms for the Paul Y. Engineering Group
segment are negotiated at terms determined and agreed with

its customers. Credit terms for ports development segment are
negotiated at specific terms with customers or in connection with
the completion of underlying construction work. Credit terms for
customers of ports and logistics segment normally range from 30
days to 90 days. Rental income for property business is receivable
according to the agreements and the credit terms granted by the
Group to other debtors normally range from 30 days to 90 days.

Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
are trade debtors of approximately HK$799,658,000 (2011:
HK$672,365,000, including trade debtors classified as held for
sale of approximately HK$61,998,000). The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. Their aged analysis, net
of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

32.

EEREMBYERR  TERANKE — &

ftet -

(@)

AEEZREFEEENDHZEENHREPER
RRABMAZ - BAERDBZEERDEEFZ
BEGTHTE  HEBRERIRZIEREM -
BORYIRDBES 2 EEH—RA0E0H - ¥
EEB M BRABRBZZRERFK  MAKE
PMEMBYSESE L ZEEH—RHB0E0H T -

BHREMBKER I REMREEFALN
799,658,000/ 7T (2011 : 672,365,000/ 7T * &
O RS EH & 2 YRR 5 4961,998,000% 7T) 2
BORKER AEBUVERZSEERFEEMNE
W AEZEHAEE MBREREEGE  ER
BEHTERZIRRINOT :

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHBT

Within 90 days 90BN 692,861 519,179
More than 90 days and within 180 days BiBI0H WHK180H A 25,550 27,587
More than 180 days HiB180H 81,247 125,599
799,658 672,365

As at 31 March 2012, included in the Group’s trade debtor
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$94,426,000 (2011: HK$165,353,000, including those
classified as held for sale) which were past due at the end of
the reporting period for which impairment loss has not been
recognised.

M201263A31H  AEB v ESBKEREHE
1E 42 BRI {H 594,426,000/ 7T (2011 : 165,353,000
Bt BENABERSZRE) 2EKER A
BRIBER RS PR AR R HES ERRREESSE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS — continued

Notes: — continued
(@) — continued

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not

32. BESRAEMBYIRN FIERBANRE —&
Wiat - — 4

(a) — &

CEBERTFREZE S EURNKERR

impaired

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Overdue: BHE
Within 90 days 90H 19,230 69,620
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBiEI0H WMR180H A 27,980 26,012
More than 180 days Him180H 47,216 69,721
94,426 165,353

The directors of the Company consider that there has not been

a significant change in credit quality of these trade debtors and
there is no recent history of default and therefore the amounts are
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

(b) At 31 March 2012, an amount of approximately HK$196,254,000
(2011: HK$220,954,000) is expected to be recovered or settled in
more than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

() Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
in the consolidated statement of financial position is an aggregate
sum of approximately HK$262,865,000 (2011: HK$253,211,000)
which mainly represents amounts recoverable (together with
interest thereon) from an independent third party which is a
property developer, in respect of amounts paid by the Group
in previous years for financing a property development project
in Beijing, the PRC (the “Project”). The principal amount was
approximately HK$184,733,000 (2011: HK$177,932,000) and
recoverable with interest calculated at the benchmark lending
interest rate as announced by the People’s Bank of China (“PBC”)
plus 8% per annum.

Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
is also an aggregate sum of approximately HK$16,394,000
(2011: HK$16,394,000) which represents an advance (together
with interest thereon) made to a related company of the above
independent third party in Hong Kong in previous years. The
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 (2011: HK$10,000,000)
carries interest at the best lending rate plus 8% per annum and
was due on 25 February 2006.
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ARBEERR ZFEHIREERZERERY
EBEAEL IR ETRILE  SZFAER
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(b)  R201243A31H - #)196,254,000/% 7T (2011 :
220,954,000 L) HHH R M EH AL+ - @
ABREBRIAE

) HEUBRENZESRHEMEREN Te&kiE
RIERBIE— £ 85 4262,865,0007% 7T (2011 -
253,211,000 7T) 2 R FER XA EE T F
FEURPBEERT2YEEEEE ([ZE
BEDINF—R2BIE=H (EAVEBRER) 2
A Y FRIE (BRI o AN & §E49184,733,000/% 7T
(2011 : 177,932,000 7T) - Al ERAZHBEARIR
THRBEARERT]) RE 2 EERFIFEMNSE 2
FRIEHS -

BHRHEMERER ST RENRERATEE—
£ 45 4916,394,000% 7T (2011 : 16,394,000/ 7T)
FE REAFERBANLBYE=F2BHA
AIERE 2B GEFRE) « A€ %8 4710,000,0004 7T
(2011 : 10,000,000% 7T.) LA & 8 = & & I & fng =
ZEFEFE - WH20065F2H258 B HHEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS — continued

Notes: — continued

()

— continued

To protect the Group’s interest, the Group has entered into
presale contracts with the property developer for certain property
units in this Project. The Group is in the course of negotiation with
an asset management company in the PRC, which has certain
interests in the above Project, for the purpose of realising the
properties under these presale contracts held for full recovery

of the amounts of HK$262,865,000 and HK$16,394,000
outstanding as at 31 March 2012. On the basis that the fair value
of the properties under presale contracts (according to a valuation
report issued by an independent property valuer) is higher than the
advances and accrued interest, the directors are of the view that
the amounts will be recovered in full and as such no impairment
loss on these has been recognised. The estimated portion of such
amounts which is expected to be recovered after twelve months
from the end of the reporting period, amounting to approximately
HK$184,733,000 (2011: HK$153,211,000), has been classified
as a non-current asset.

A writ of summons was served on 28 July 2011 upon PYE and
two of its subsidiaries claiming for, amongst others, damages in a
sum of approximately RMB780 million related to the Project. It is
stated in the writ of summons that PYE and two of its subsidiaries
were alleged to be in breach of certain terms contained in an
alleged oral master agreement (which is denied). Taken into
consideration of a legal opinion, PYE is of the view that PYE and
two of its subsidiaries would put up a respectable defence against
the alleged claim and that it is probable that there would not be
material adverse impact on the financial position of the Group.

Included in other debtors is an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB602,800,000 as at 31 March 2012 (equivalent
to approximately HK$743,284,000) (2011: Nil), which represents
remaining balance of the consideration receivable from disposal
of 50.1% equity interest in Yangkou Port Co during the current
year amounting to approximately RMB753,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$903,482,000 as at 26 May 2011) (note
46(c)) to be satisfied by instalments, remaining instalments being
RMB301,400,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$371,642,000)
and RMB301,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$371,642,000) to be paid on or before 31 December 2012
and 2013, respectively. As at 31 March 2012, the consideration
receivable in the amount of approximately HK$371,642,000

due after one year was shown under non-current assets and
approximately HK$371,642,000 due within one year was shown
under current assets. The deferred consideration receivable bears
interest equivalent to the benchmark lending rate announced

by the PBC at 6.65% per annum as at 31 March 2012 and is
secured by a charge on the 50.1% sale interest in Yangkou Port
Co. During the year ended 31 March 2012, interest income

of approximately HK$54,451,000 is recognised in profit or

loss and a deferred consideration receivable of approximately
RMB150,700,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$184,909,000)
is received by the Group.

32.

ESREMEBYRER TERANKE — @
ffet - — &

(c)

L
— &

AREAEEFG AEEERZEEETHES
HZYEREHETEEAR - AEBEHR—H
REMEAEFEEETRACHTEEEEE QA
ETEN BB AETEETUHSHEEARZY
¥EEMEE B2 E8RER2012F3A318 2K
{8 i & 262,865,000/ 7T [ 16,394,000 It ° &
REEEEEARZMESL 2 A TEE(REE
UMEMGEMBL 2 GEERS) aRNBERREFF
B ESRAZECHEBVE2HRE - KA EM L
HRABERE Bt BREAREHEERRB =
18 A % Ul 2 3% % & 58 38 9 49 4184,733,0007% 7T
(2011 : 153,211,000 7T) * WE W H A RIERH
BE -

—HEASHRR2011FT A28 H R ERERZERE
MEMBRR RZEERBOARKTEELE
RZRE - ZBERCHRERREZEZREREKNE
RAEER— 1 PTRTE Z AR AR E AR XL (2
WEE)  BRERBRLR REBEXRABRER
ELEMEMBARYZLEEETN BRI
MERAETEHAREZ M BRRBRERTH

BB

&
i

201246 3A31H - HMEKERBFEEEHA
[ #602,800,0007T (18 & R #743,284,000% 7T)
(2011 ) 2% NEAFELEXOEB AR
50.1%R # 2 UK E 4 A R #%753,500,0007T (B
201145 H26H & M 4903,482,000/% 70) (M5
46(c)) 2 4% BEARER Y HKE - 52 TH EN
15 A R #301,400,0007T (#8 & R #)371,642,0007%
7L) kAR %301,400,0007T (F8E M 49371,642,000
& T0) 15 9 Bl R20124F k2013612 A31H 3¢ 2 Al
X AF o R201293A31H » AR EFR R —F %5
HR 2 #9371,642,0008 TR EAERBEE MR
—EREH 2 4371,642,0008 TN EARBE
E -ZEENECRERPFEARRITTAEMA
EZEREER R L (FR201243A318 BEF|
%6.65%) WA F AB AR 2501%HE R
AR B E201263A31BIEFEE Al BERAY
54,451,000 TE RN B RER  MALEE KR
JiE W3l JE R (B 49 A R #150,700,0007T (18 & 7 49
184,909,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

32. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS — continued

Notes: — continued

(e) Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
is another amount of approximately HK$7,000,000 (2011:
HK$7,000,000) which represents a deferred consideration
receivable from a third party in relation to disposal of two
subsidiaries, namely Unicon Concrete Products (HK) Limited
and Hamker Concrete Products Limited, during the year
ended 31 March 2006. The consideration for the disposal
was HK$19,000,000 which shall be settled in cash by the
purchaser on or before October 2009. Accumulated settlement
of HK$12,000,000 had been made at the end of both reporting
periods. The fair value of the deferred consideration at date
of initial recognition was determined based on the estimated
future cash flows discounted at 3% per annum. The amount is
unsecured and interest-free. The amount of deferred consideration
receivable is past due but not impaired as at 31 March 2012. The
directors of the Company consider the amount will be recoverable
because the purchaser is of good financial position.

) Included in trade and other debtors, deposits and prepayments
as at 31 March 2012 is an amount of HK$50,000,000 which
represents a refundable earnest money made to an independent
third party for undertaking a potential property redevelopment
project in the PRC. In the opinion of directors of the Company, the
amount is refundable upon request, therefore, it is classified as a
current asset.
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(e)

BHRHEMEKRER ST RENREAX BE—
£ A #497,000,0007 7T (2011 : 7,000,000/ 7T ) 5%
15 TSR ELE2006F3 A1 A IEFE HEMRM
BRAR(DAEAHNERLRGA(BB)ARA A
EEMERLERERAR) ERA—F =7 KR
EIER(E - 1% F1E 2 K (EA19,000,0004 7T+ A
B HR2009F10A 2RI IR @ &E « RE K
812,000,000/ 7L B R Z M B R & BT & R )5 ©
EEREBRINERE 2 AFEE TG RKRE
CHRERTFIRMBREET - AR BANEER R
% B c R2012F3A31A 2 EWRERECAHE
HWARE - BREBEFUBRRARL MARRES
RAZSE I E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KB RMET
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE2012F3A31A LEE
33. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 33. FEEERE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Listed equity securities, at quoted bid price ETIRAFES  REARE
in Hong Kong BB 54,647 40,815
in overseas PEEIN 5,792 6,127
60,439 46,942

34.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to

banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$732,226,000 (2011:
HK$83,532,000) have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities with maturity within one year from the

end of the reporting period and are therefore classified

as current assets. The pledged bank deposits included
approximately RMB575,064,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$709,080,000) (2011: Nil) deposited in Hong Kong, which
were pledged to secure banking facilities denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and available in Hong Kong.

The pledged bank deposits and short term bank deposits
with maturity date of less than three months carry fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.3% (2011: 0.01% to
2.8%) per annum. The bank balances carry prevailing market
interest rates ranging from nil to 1.31% (2011: nil to 1.39%)
per annum.

34.

CEARTER BEHRITERRRITSE
EFRES

BEERRITEREAERETAEE 2 — KRBT
EEMERTRTZFHR - AE732,226,0007 7T
(2011 : 83,532,000 7T) 2 FHE TR B A
BERREHTAER—FANEEZ —RRITEEZK
A -AmMEINARBEE - BEERABRTEREER
4 A R 575,064,000t (48 & 7 49709,080,000
BIr) (2011 - ) FERBREZHKE  AERED
FAEAB T EL AT RE S ZRITRHE ZHEIF -

BEMRETEALIPALIRZEA 2B BT
TR F0.01E £3.3F (2011 : 0.01/EZ £2.8
B)zEEME ROGEFEMEMEANEAEEFE
Z1.31E (2011 : TE1.39F)
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

35. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 3. EZRHMEMNERRETRX
EXPENSES BHREMENERREARIN RSN THER
The following is an analysis of trade and other creditors and z DT -
accrued expenses at the end of the reporting period:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHTT
Trade creditors aged: B 5 EMNER R
Within 90 days 90H R 551,136 396,464
More than 90 days and within 180 days HBiBI0HBEM180H A 957 11,566
More than 180 days HBiB180H 51,105 60,502
603,198 468,532
Retentions held by the Group for REBRANIRFEZRES
contract works (note a) (Ktata) 343,882 364,200
Construction payable to Yangkou Port Co.  REff¥ 0% ARz TRZE 334,761 -
Other construction payables Hith TREMNFRIEA 69,911 66,767
Advance receipt from customers W EF 8= 337,629 4,099
Other payables for staff retirement and BOEBE TRKKREMBEF
other benefits of port business (note b) ZE M pENBER (KHab) 64,406 65,748
Other accruals H fth 51 5 XX 74,057 49,073
Other payables H b B A< BR 7K 480,831 386,088
Total amount NI AR 2,308,675 1,404,507
Less: Amount due within one year shown B R —FERAIBLINERBAE
under current liabilities Z I8 (2,249,521) (1,230,931)
Amount due after one year — B Y ZE 59,154 173,576

Notes:

(@) At 31 March 2012, an aggregate amount of approximately (@)
HK$83,481,000 (2011: HK$90,302,000) is expected to be paid
or settled after more than twelve months from the end of the

reporting period.

(b) At 31 March 2012, based on agreed payment terms, an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$46,598,000 (2011: HK$52,062,000)

fitet -

(b)  H201243A318 -
46,598,000/ 7t (2011 :
FEHER RSB RE

is expected to be paid after more than twelve months from the

end of the reporting period and is determined using an effective
interest rate of 4.56% (2011: 4.56%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

36. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 36.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand, except for an amount due to an associate of
approximately HK$82,390,000 (2011: HK$56,550,000)
which represents retentions held by the Group for contract
works of which approximately HK$16,478,000 (2011:
HK$56,550,000) is expected to be paid or settled after more
than twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

B HgE AR RIE

ZERBUERR  RERARZREEM - HE—
£ #982,390,0007% 7T (2011 : 56,550,000/ JT) 2
RS N R RIEERNEERA N TIRAMEE 2R
E& - % #16,478,000% 7T (2011:56,550,000
B BEHRREHEERER T Z@AABI R

+ 3=
:%D/FJ °

37. AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED 37. FEATH[E) 1% &) 48 =hE
ENTITIES REREARER %8 BREREEM -
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.
38. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 38. FE{TIFEERERTE
INTERESTS
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Fixed-rate interest at 1% per annum E R &A1 E 2 & E F =
(note a) (Ktsta) 18,003 21,378
Interest-free (note b) %8 (Kfab) 22,724 21,900
Total amount RIBAEE 40,727 43,278
Less: Amount due within one year shown W —ERIENERBAGZ
under current liabilities FRIE (7,583) (24,276)
Amount due after one year R—F 1% B 2708 33,144 19,002
Notes: Bifat -

(@) The amounts are unsecured, in which approximately HK$740,000
(2011: HK$2,376,000) is due within one year and approximately
HK$17,263,000 (2011: HK$19,002,000) is due after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

(b)  The amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand except
for the amounts of approximately HK$22,663,000 (2011: Nil),
in which HK$6,782,000 (2011: Nil) is due within one year and
HK$15,881,000 (2011: Nil) is due after twelve months from the
end of the reporting period.

(@ HEFEREERAE  EPH740,000% T (2011 :
2,376,000/ 7T.) 7 —F A B E - 1 4917,263,0007%
7T (2011:19,002,000%8 7t) 2 FIB B R iR 5 B B 4
“t+—MEAEIH-

b) ZERBAEEMREEKEE H-FHEYN
22,663,000/ 7T (2011 : &) Z FRIERR N E -
6,782,000/ 7T (2011 : &) R —F REH - m
15,881,000/ 7T (2011 « &) 2 R IF AR R & # 5=
we+-@ARHE-
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39.

40.

188 WIC) PYI Corporation Limited 2012 Annual Report

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 39. BN —EBE A BNE
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZERBAEERM  RERREREEN -
demand.
BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 40. BITRHMER
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Bank and other borrowings comprise: RITREMERBE
Bank loans RITER 2,388,749 1,939,889
Other loans HMER 246,255 54,000
2,635,004 1,993,889
Analysed as: DR
Secured BHEA 1,748,565 1,043,860
Unsecured i 886,439 950,029
2,635,004 1,993,889
The bank and other borrowings are RITREAEREREANT
repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand —FRNIRBEA 1,714,567 1,255,304
More than one year, but not exceeding BiE—F  BETAMF
two years 430,210 225,323
More than two years, but not exceeding HBEME  BETARF
five years 286,772 311,362
More than five years iR F 203,455 201,900
2,635,004 1,993,889
Less: Amount due within one year or on B — A REME
demand shown under FIEREN B B2 KIE
current liabilities (1,714,567) (1,255,304)
Amount due after one year —F &5 2 5RIE 920,437 738,585




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

40. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS — continued

The above bank borrowings include fixed-rate borrowings of
approximately HK$117,139,000 (2011: HK$150,584,000)
which are repayable within one year and are carrying interest
ranging from 3.5% to 8.9% (2011: 2.9% to 7.14%) per
annum.

The remaining bank borrowings carry floating-rate interest
ranging from 1.3% t0 9.17% (2011: 1.14% to 8.5%) per
annum.

The above other loans include fixed-rate borrowings

of approximately HK$67,817,000 (201 1: Nil) which are
repayable within one year and are carrying interest ranging
from 6.59% to 10.5% per annum and HK$124,438,000
(2011: Nil) which are repayable more than one year but not
exceeding two years and are carrying interest at 1% per
annum.

The remaining other loans carrying floating-rate interest
ranging from 7% to 7.1% (2011: 7% to 7.1%) per annum.

40.

RITREMER — &

SR AT E R FEA117,1839,000% T (2011 ¢
150,584,000/ 7T) 2 EEMER » AR —FRNEE -
WiE N F3.5/E £8.9E (2011 : 29E E7.14E) 2
FREEFE -

HHRBOTEFRNZHFXRAE  FHEHR13EE
9.17/E (2011 : 1.14EE8.5FE) 15 o

_E SR 97 18 3B 15 4967,817,000% T (2011 « 4&)
ZEBEN AR —FRNEE  WRNT659EE
10.5E 2 FF 58 + 5124,438,000/% 7T (2011 ¢
B)ER—FHRETAMTENEE  YRIEZFF

w3 -

HHREMERNEIBFNEAE  FAHERTEZRT A
E (2011 : 7TEE7AE) 15 -

&
=T
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

41,

CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE 41, BRTBEREE
During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company B E20085F3AGIHIEFERN  ARAABITELRS
issued zero coupon convertible notes with an aggregate % /121,521,000t 2 T B AT MR EE - LEE
principal amount of HK$121,521,000 for settlement of HE2007F3A31ALEEREWERILARAE
the consideration for the LPG assets acquired during the EZRE - AT RREELUETEE - ZHRE T RIE
year ended 31 March 2007. The convertible notes are BAAEN IREERTEMEE+EREH
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The notes entitled 2 @& > HHE A (201044 818H R201045A318)
the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the B+ 7 B AR P BE B 1R T iR 4.255 T (FA20084E9
Company at any time between 15th day after the date of F19R % 541358 7T+ & 72200947 B30 5t 7
issue of the notes and 15 days prior to their respective 000947 A > £ B3 3 5 0 1395 1) (7] 18 48 1 3
maturity dates on 18 April 2010 and 31 May 2010 at a TR ) S (B Y i e i s A
conversion price of HK$4.25 (adjusted to HK$4.135 on 19 B B o (I R A SR B B B 1T
September 2008 and HK$2.139 on 3 July 2009 regarding B S B 2 114.167%H B - 7K 2 7 7 R
the rights issue in July 2009) per share subject to anti- N kAT R e .
dilutive adjustments in accordance with the agreement. i; E; é ;H_Tjﬁﬂi ;& BTA Z ijﬁi/\ AE . = T_ﬂ; E:
If the notes are not converted, they will be redeemed on -7 - =
. o o SRZAEBERBAR D 2 R %5113,039,000% 7T &
maturity date at 114.167% of the principal amount of the
notes outstanding. The Company may at any time and from 8"}?2’000% e 2;007¢4ﬂ\1 9F K200746 718
time to time purchase the convertible notes at any price B2 RIBZ BB 2 BURN D FIB7.028 &
as agreed between the Company and the noteholder. The 7.58/% ¢
respective liabilities and equity portions of the convertible N . .
notes as at date of initial recognition is HK$113,039,000 TABRRRZAEADRAEFRZEHMT -
and HK$8,482,000. The effective interest rates of the liability
component of notes issued on 19 April 2007 and 1 June
2007 are 7.02% and 7.58%, respectively.
The movement of the liability component of the convertible
notes for the prior year is set out below:
2011
HK$'000
THETT
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year FHRMEE 138,189
Effective interest charge BRAEXH 549
Redeemed during the year RE R E B (138,738)
Carrying amount at the end of the year FREEEE -

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company
redeemed all convertible notes and offset against other
receivables upon maturity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KB RMET
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE201263A31 AL EE
42. DEFERRED TAXATION 42, EEBIIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) NTRAEERNIFEEBERZEZRTENIA
recognised and movements thereon during the current and BEEE)  UWREZEHBFR
prior years:
Fair value
adjustment
Fair value on project
adjustment under
Accelerated on development
tax Tax  investment and stock
depreciation losses properties  of properties Others Total
BRTEAR
REME NEFE
MEBERE WEFE ATEERE ATVEERE Hitr fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR THER TR TR TR TR
At 1 April 2010 20104 A1R 5,434 (5,434) 1,001,364 838,030 54,589 1,893,983
Exchange realignment EXAE - - 47,447 36,107 2,276 85,830
Charge (credit) to consolidated &7 & W #HE 2
income statement R (BA) 8,034 (8,034) 114,739 - 1,457 116,196
Reclassified as held for sale ~ EHMABARFIELE
(ote 17) (Bf3t17) - - (963,605) (648,027) - (1611632
Transfer B - - 30,204 (30,204) - -
At 31 March 2011 R2011%F3A318 13,468 (13,468) 230,149 195,906 58,322 484,377
Exchange realignment A% = - 9,217 7,408 2,205 18,890
(Credit) charge to consolidated  &rAKEZ 2 (BA)
income statement Eil)i1 (5,683) 5,683 36,243 (345) (2,144) 33,754
Transfer 8% = = 6,967 (6,967) = =
At 31 March 2012 #201243A31H 7,785 (7,789) 282,636 196,002 58,383 537,021
At 31 March 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of M2012F3A31H  AEEBBARTAMRBKEERD
approximately HK$950,000,000 (2011: HK$917,000,000) 950,000,000/% 7T (2011 : 917,000,000/ 7T ) A] A
available to offset against future taxable profits. A deferred RS R 2 FE R B FIE o B 3t 4947,000,000% 7T
tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately Z 518 (2011 : 82,000,000/ 7T) ERELFH B E
HK$47,000,000 (2011: HK$82,000,000) of such losses. E-BHRENENZENBRAKRAFNZHEY
No deferred tax asset in respect of the remaining tax losses 1B - B i3 & Bt 82 5 7% &5 #8903,000,0007% 7T
of HK$903,000,000 (201 1: HK$835,000,000) has been (2011 : 835,000,000/ 7T.) FERELE R IBAE K
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams A MG E B SR A 458 -

on those subsidiaries. The unused tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.
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42. DEFERRED TAXATION — continued 42. BEEBIE — &
At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of WEMTAER - WELFEKDIREFE B ER
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings HERIEETRIE G &2 R = 254 882,501,000
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not 77T (2011 : 106,401,000/ 7T) © B A AN 5 (@ 7] 4%
been recognised was approximately HK$82,501,000 (2011: SR OISR EE SRR EEa e
HK$106,401,000). No liability has been recognised in respect RN THEE  AMEERZSEBERELER
of these differences because the Group is in a position to HEE -
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
43. DEFERRED INCOME 43. EFEW A
The amounts represented the government grants related to ZECHERRXEBETEORLER CBFHA
certain ports construction projects and will be recognised in TR BRI THEEEZAGASFHARER
profit or loss over the useful lives of the related depreciable RHER o
assets.
44, SHARE CAPITAL 44, B
Number
of shares Value
RHEE k-]
HK$'000
TAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: BREEBA0E T TER
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and 7201064818 + 201143A31H
31 March 2012 K2012%3R31H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRER :
At 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 720104818 %2011F3831H 4,5629,125,134 452,913
Issue of shares pursuant to scrip BIEARK B 52 TRG
dividend scheme (note) (HE) 29,368,441 2,936
At 31 March 2012 7201243 A31H 4,558,493,575 455,849
Note: Bifat -

Pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme which was announced by the
Company on 30 September 2011, the Company issued 29,368,441
(2011: Nil) new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company to

the shareholder who elected to receive scrip dividend in respect of the
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2011. These shares rank pari
passu with the then existing shares of the Company in all respects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 27 August 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to any employees, executives
or officers, directors of the Group or any invested entity and
any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of any member of
the Group or any invested entity, who have contributed or
will contribute to the growth and development of the Group
or any invested entity (“Eligible Person”). The Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
that date.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the
Company may at their discretion grant options to any Eligible
Person to subscribe for shares in the Company without
consideration. The directors may at their discretion determine
the specific exercise period which should expire in any event
no later than ten years from date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of:

(i) the subscription price as is permissible under the Listing
Rules from time to time; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

45.

DB AREZRS

20029 8A27H A AR RN —EEAREE B
([ERETED  UmEs a8 REE R EM
BEMBELEBRZASERTMIRERE 2T
MEE THABIESRBE EEREZAL
REBEAKBEARIKEARERBE ZZAA B
BB ([6EBALT]D REBE SR - BR
BEtEEEZARESAERTF -

RIBBRESE ARAREFTRBERERNEER
ALTBEEERE BARLZEREZSIMNE
MER EBEFANBEETERR EETMABER
T BT EHRI SR BREFEERANE
R TF - TREALAQRAEZTUATINRSEM
EE E2LRNRELTRIIE AT ZAEE
Ry R BBy 2 E{E
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45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS —

continued

The maximum number of shares which may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company
as at its adoption date, i.e. 103,674,492 shares. Subject

to the approval of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date of approval

by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. Pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meetings

of the Company in 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008
and 2009, the 10% scheme limit was refreshed to 10% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company as at the
respective dates of such meetings. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed at the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 10 September 2010, the 10% scheme limit was
further refreshed to 452,912,513 representing 10% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company as at the date
of such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted to each Eligible Person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including those exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
from time to time unless such grant has been duly approved
by shareholders of the Company at general meeting at which
the Eligible Person and his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) abstained from voting. Options granted to a
substantial shareholder and/or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess of 0.10%
of total number of shares in issue and have an aggregate
value exceeding HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting in advance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE KB RMET
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BE201263A31ALFE
45, SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS — 45, BB ENREZRE — &
continued (@) AR EIR2004F12 A28 1R 1% I Bk i 5T 81 )
(@) Details of the share options granted on 28 December AEEZETEERAAABRL ZBERE Y
2004 to certain directors and advisors of the Company HERREXNZESHNOT

under the Share Option Scheme and movements in
such holdings during the year are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company
to be issued upon exercise of the share options

TERRERR TR AL ARGEA

Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
price as at during as at during as at
Date of grant Exercise period per share 1.4.2010 the year 31.3.2011 the year 31.3.2012
#1.42010 #31.3.2011 1431.3.2012
RiLBH bt SRKE HAITE RERER BRI RERXN BRI

HKS

BT
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.8.2012 0.43762 22,100,000 - 22,100,000 - 22,100,000
28.12.2004 28.12.2004 10 26.8.2012 0.52940 32,810,000 - 32,810,000 - 32,810,000
54,910,000 - 54,910,000 = 54,910,000

Exercisable at the end of the year

REERT TR 54,910,000 54,910,000
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HE201243A31BILFE
45, SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS — 45. UGB EXAREBEZRS — &
continued () FARLAFE ARBREERESSR
(b) Details of the share options granted to certain directors, AEBEBMKRERBZETES - EEBRGEH
employees and advisors of the Group and invested AR EREEEREE N T

entities under the Share Option Scheme during the
current and prior years and movements in such holdings
are as follows:

Nurber of shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise of the share options

fERRERA TR ALARGHE

Lapsed Lapsed
during during

Exercise  Outstanding theyear  OQutstanding theyear  Outstanding
price at ended at ended at
Type Date of grant Vsting date" Exercise period per share 142010 332011 3132011 31.3.2012 3132012
MA2010 BENI0N RN BEMIN0L  HH32012
LF] RuAH o fikH SRirkE BRE  LEEAN  HAGR  LFERY AR

HKS

T
fl 89.2006 89.2006 89.200610 26.8.2012 085762 3683334 - 36083334 - 3,083,334
(i 6.2.2007 6.2.2007 6.2.2007 10 26.8.2012 106881 3683334 - 3683334 = 3,683,334
(il 182007 182009 18200910 31.7.2010 158821 126000 (1,255,000 - - -
(i) 18.9.2007 18.9.2009 189200910 17.92010 126151 11,060000  (11,060,000) - - -
W 11.10.2007 11102009 1110200910 10102010 14173 566,060 (566,665) - - -
() 36.2008 1102008 110200810 26.2011 07058 17809523 - 1780958 (17809523 -
(v) 36.2008 1102009 110200910 26.2011 07058 17809523 - 1780058 (17809523 -
(i 36.2008 142010 142010t026.2011 0.7058¢ 8904763 - 804763 (3904763 -
(0 36.2008 1102010 11020101026.2011 0.70584 8904763 - 804763 (3904763 -
(¥ 36.2008 36.2008 36.200810262010 080282 AT (38,357,668 - - -
(x) 36.2008 36.2009 36.200910262010 086232 7649999 (7649999 - - -
() 36.2008 36.2009 36200910 262011 088232 5,006,666 - 5006066 (5,666,666 -
(i) 362008 36.2010 36201010 262011 106881 7508331 (425000 7,08333¢ (7,083331) -
132869569 (29324332) 73540287 (66,178569 7,366,668

Exercisable at the end of the year
NEERT T 107,581,712 78,546,287 7,366,668
* All the above outstanding share options of the Company - ARBE LB RRTRZBRESCRS
were vested in the relevant grantees upon the first date of TEHzEREBRBEEARA -

their respective exercise periods.
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45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS —

continued

(c) During both years, no share options were granted
to directors and employees under the Share Option
Scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the amount of cost of
share options charged to the consolidated income statement
was HK$261,000 (2012: Nil).

Share option scheme of PYE

On 7 September 2005, PYE adopted a share option scheme
(the “PYE Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentive

or reward to any employees, executives or officers, directors
of PYE and its subsidiaries or any invested entity and any
consultant, adviser or agent of any member of PYE and its
subsidiaries or any invested entity, who have contributed or
will contribute to the growth and development of PYE and

its subsidiaries or any invested entity (“PYE Eligible Person”).
The PYE Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
from that date.

Under the PYE Scheme, the directors of PYE may at their
discretion grant options to any PYE Eligible Person to
subscribe for shares in PYE. Consideration to be paid on
each grant of option is HK$1.00. The directors of PYE may
at their discretion determine the specific exercise period
which should expire in any event no later than ten years from
date of adoption of the PYE Scheme. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of PYE and will be at least the
higher of: (i) the subscription price as is permissible under the
Listing Rules from time to time; and (i) the nominal value of
the shares of PYE.

45.

UBROXNAREAZRS — @
© RMEFEAN HEREBEREFIAES
KEB R TBRE -

REZE2011F3A3IBILEE  HERERMRZ
B I AE AR AN & 58 5261,00058 7T (2012 « 4#) o

REBXZBRESTS

R2005F9A7H  RER X RN — AR RE &
(IMREZZEBREE)  URNHREEHRE
EEREMBARSTIMRERBHFELERZR
ERENENBARNEMKRERB L EMES
THRABREABE BFRETARERERRE
BEENEMBAREMKERRREMRERSE
ZEE BRAASIRE(REZESEBALD
REEBREH - REZEBRESEBEZAE
HBARTF-

REBEREZEXBRETS REZXEFTHER
EAREZXEAEBRALROBIRE  URBER
EREZRN SREMREZBRES VSR
1.008 T2 RE - RERZXEFARNBEETEY
R HEEEAMBELT  LRTEBRIESBEES R
FREBREFIAERANEALT TF - TEER
REZEEZEUTIIRSEMEE : 2L RORE
EHRAUTEAFCRBEE  RVRERZERD Z
H1E
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45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS — 45. IRHIZNREZRS — &

/

continued
Share option scheme of PYE - continued

The maximum number of shares that may initially be issued
upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the PYE
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) adopted

by PYE must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares of PYE as at its adoption date,

i.e. 57,669,939 shares of PYE. Subject to the approval of
the shareholders of PYE in general meeting, the limit may

be refreshed to 10% of the total number of shares of PYE

in issue as at the date of approval by the shareholders of
PYE in general meeting. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the
maximum number of shares of PYE which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the PYE Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of PYE must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of PYE in issue from time to
time. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at PYE’s
annual general meeting held on 26 August 2011, the 10%
scheme limit was refreshed to 60,695,432, representing 10%
of the total number of issued shares of PYE as at the date of
such meeting.

The maximum number of shares of PYE in respect of which
options may be granted to each PYE Eligible Person under
the PYE Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
PYE (including those exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares of PYE in issue from time to time
unless such grant has been duly approved by shareholders
of PYE in general meeting at which the PYE Eligible Person
and his associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstained
from voting. Options granted to a substantial shareholder and/
or an independent non-executive director of PYE or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) in
any 12-month period in excess of 0.10% of the total number
of PYE in issue and have an aggregate value exceeding
HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the shareholders of
PYE in general meeting in advance.

No options were granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled
during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2012

HZE20129F3A31HILEE

46. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN 46. Wi HEKB DO RER
SUBSIDIARIES @) WEKBLT

(@) Acquisition of subsidiaries
In March 2011, PYE increased its interest in three
associates from 50% to 100% at consideration of
HK$2. The net cash inflow arising on the acquisition was
approximately HK$234,000. Goodwill of HK$74,000
resulted from such acquisition had been impaired and
recognised in the consolidated income statement during
the year ended 31 March 2011 in view of the continual (b)
operating losses incurred by these subsidiaries.

(b) Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

During the current year, the Group acquired a further

5.39% equity interest in Feeder Port Holdings Limited,

which is engaged in logistic network solution, increasing

its interest from 94.61% to 100% by acquiring the

non-controlling interests for a cash consideration

of HK$7,000,000. The difference of approximately (©
HK$148,000 between the proportionate share of the

carrying amount of its net assets and the consideration

paid for the additional interest has been credited to

retained profits.

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary

On 26 May 2011, the Group disposed of 50.1%
equity interest in Yangkou Port Co, which is engaged
in the business of development of port and related
infrastructures, at a consideration of approximately
RMB1,507 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,807 million). Yangkou Port Co ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company and the remaining 9.9%
interest in Yangkou Port Co retained by the Group is
accounted for as an available-for-sale investment upon
and after completion of the disposal. As at 31 March
2011, assets and liabilities of Yangkou Port Co after
elimination of inter-company balances were classified
as “Assets classified as held for sale” and “Liabilities
associated with assets classified as held for sale”,
respectively (note 17).

R2011F3A REZXEBHER=MBZ QA
ZHEEAR50%E I E100%  REAE2ET - K
BELEZFESMALB234,0008 7T - R
ZEWBRARBERBRLEERE it B
FTESZEE740008 TEERETRE S
2011E3A3IBIEFE 2 A RERPER

EEHELRER

RAREE - A5 B LA € X 87,000,000 7T
WEFEREZ 2 AN EBEBLENRELER
2 Feeder Port Holdings Limited 2 5.39%% 7%
S FEERH4.61% EFAZE100% - BHE
SFEERLAIE S 2 REEEREIMERAT
MREZ B Z5148,0008 LD B ARE A -

HE-—BHWEAR

MR2011F5R826H  REEUREHARE
15,0718 70 (FHE R 418.07( B L) & R #
EBONRERERREER2FOBRAZ
501 %Az - FOBRBTHAERRATZ
MEBAR  MAEERFOBRAMREZ
A TO.9% M m N H & T B IER T M &%
EARR - R2011F3A31R  FABQAAIZE
ERABBELATMEHREEE DRI ER
[DERFIFHEAEI RIESERFIELE
ZEEMBzEBEI(MFF17) -
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46. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary — continued

46. W HEMBARERS — &
c) HE-—BHEAT — &

HK$’'000
F&T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment E R 1,082,312
Investment properties BEME 2,416,835
Project under development ZKREBIER 1,196,116
Stock of properties MEFE 1,124,698
Trade and other debtors, deposits and BEoHREMBERER ek
prepayments B FRE 544,299
Bank balances and cash RITEFERRS 69,554
Trade and other creditors and accrued expenses B REMEMERMEAFRZ (224,081)
Taxation payable & < 7 18 (70,535)
Bank and other borrowings RITR H M fE (1,258,993)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBAME (1,627,091)
Total net assets FEERE 3,253,114
Less: non-controlling interests W IR (1,2562,559)
2,000,555
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HeE—RME AT 2 W
Consideration received and receivable Bl R ERAE 1,806,964
Levies paid B #E (903)
Net assets disposed of HeEBERE (3,253,114)
Non-controlling interests RS 1,252,559
Initial recognition at fair value of 9.9% interest in MRBEAFEEERALNERR
Yangkou Port Co retained by the Group as FOBERBFATRE 29.9%H 55
an available-for-sale investment BRI ERE 352,758
Gain on disposal before taxation and release of BR A e HE Tk A 18 1B AT 2 & W as
attributable reserve 158,264
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the R B B A B I R R py A S
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from equity By EER - BZMBART
to profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiary BEFEEHEZRABEL =% 230,797
Gain on disposal before taxation PR AT 2 H & W e 389,061
Less: taxation (note 14) W B (K aE14) (126,832)
Gain on disposal after taxation BritIE % 2 HE W= 262,229
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEE ZREFN
Consideration received and receivable B R R (E 1,806,964
Less: levies and income tax withheld B BHEEB RATER (127,735)
Less: deferred sales proceeds classified as other BB EHEMERERRZEEHEE
receivables (note 32(d)) i 18 508 (K1 5£32(d)) (9083,482)
Cash consideration received BEHBRSRE 775,747
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B FTHERITHEERES (69,554)
706,193
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46. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES — continued

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary — continued
The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 31
March 2012 contributed approximately HK$9,090,000
(2011: HK$65,223,000) to the revenue of the Group
during the year. It did not contribute significantly to the
net profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$105,074,000).
The cash flow contributed or utilised by this subsidiary
for the year was not significant.

Capital reserve in relation to the above subsidiary

amounting to approximately HK$247,958,000 has been

charged to the retained profits upon disposal of the
subsidiary.

46.

Wi HENB QRS — &

(©)

HE—RBMHMBELAR — &

RE E2012F3A31BLEFEARLE ZH B
A AL AR B F R B BL£99,090,0007% 7T
(2011 : 65,223,000/ 7T) ° H ¥ # £20124F
SASIAIEFEZ AR AR AEILFE R T
Wi E KB E (2011 : 105,074,0008 7T) ° %
WMBARIRAFENMERMIMBAZRS
MEWFEK -

BERAMBRARAEBZIEARARED
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 47. €WMI A
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SBMIAEZEH
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Financial assets cRMEE
FVTPL Tﬁ/\ifﬁﬁuu)\igﬁnﬁﬁ
— Investments held for trading —FIEEECRE 60,439 46,942
Loans and receivables ER R E W EIE
— Loans receivable —ERER 102,636 113,147
— Trade and other debtors and - B REMEWNERR
deposits 2,889,383 1,682,700
— Amounts due from associates — JIE Y B & A R FUE 35,819 42,929
— Amounts due from jointly controlled — FE U L [R5 Il ¢ 4 SR TE
entities 52,921 22,956
— Amount due from a non-controlling — U B4 PR 2 RRIE
interest 1,233 1,188
— Bank deposits —IRITER 1,182,805 454,809
— Bank balances and cash —RITEGFERE S 557,656 657,799
4,822,453 2,975,528
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESHEE
— Available-for-sale investments —AHEERE 363,801 1,361
Total A&t 5,246,693 3,023,831
Financial liabilities at REBHERAIE2SHEE
amortised costs
Trade and other creditors B 5 &AM ERRR 1,896,989 1,351,335
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities — f& 1 £ B 45 il # 48 51 1H 95,401 45,000
Amounts due to associates JE 1 B & R R R IE 108,059 66,268
Amount due to a related company JE < — B Bk & B 30IR - 233
Amounts due to non-controlling interests &1 3E & iz 5 IR 40,727 43,278
Bank and other borrowings HRIT R HEMIERK 2,635,004 1,993,889
4,776,180 3,500,003
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
debtors and deposits, loans receivable, available-for-
sale investments, investments held for trading, trade
and other creditors, amounts due from (to) associates/
jointly controlled entities/non-controlling interests/
related company, bank and other borrowings. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

(@) Market risk
(i)  Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is
attributable to its financial instruments that are
subject to both variable rate and fixed rate.
Those financial instruments of variable interest
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Details of the Group’s interest bearing
financial instruments at variable rate have been
disclosed in notes 28, 32, 34 and 40. Financial
instruments at fixed interest rates expose the
Group to fair value interest risk. Details of the
Group’s interest bearing financial instruments
at fixed rate have been disclosed in notes 28,
34, 38 and 40.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk,

the Group adopts a policy of maintaining

an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate
borrowings which is achieved primarily through
entering into different contractual terms of
borrowings. The position is regularly monitored
and evaluated by reference of anticipated
changes in market interest rate.

47. €W ITHE — &

b.

TREREEEERBR

AEBZTEeRIABBERITER  RIT
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RITEEMER - PSR T AMRMSEZ =
ZRBMAREEFRBR ZBRGENOT - F
EEEERERZSAR UEREKEER
RRZERG - ARBZBERKAEZFHER -

(a) WHER
() == b

AEBZANERBRREZERTER
CRMIA - ZEFESRMIAFER
SEEYRERENERR K&
Bz Z2EemIT AFBERN 28
32 34RA0ONHE - EEERMIA
FAEBmEYAFEENERR -
AEEBZTFE SR TEFBERIGE
28 - 34 - 38 RAON I FE o

% XBEBIYTRAANREZ
EH REEERIESBIAY
HEES  HMRNEHER ¥
eI R R 2 TR O 17 34

Pild resmaras 05w 203




/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(@ Market risk — continued
(i) Interest rate risk — continued

The Group’s exposures to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the rates
announced by the PBC arising from the
Group’s RMB borrowings and advance at
variable rates and Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate and HKBLR arising from the
Group’s HK Dollars loans receivable and
borrowings at variable rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable rate instruments at the

end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the effect to the profit of the Group
is insignificant.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(@ Market risk — continued

(i)

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value
of a monetary item will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Certain
receivables of the Group are denominated

in foreign currencies such as Macau Pataca
(“MOP”), RMB and United States Dollars
(“US Dollars”) and which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, management monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Certain Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group
also operate in the Mainland China with certain
transactions denominated in either RMB or
US Dollars. RMB is not freely convertible

into other foreign currencies and conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.
Certain subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency transactions, including purchase

of materials, expenses and borrowings. The
Group manages its exposures to foreign
currency transactions by monitoring the level
of foreign currency receipts and payments.
The Group ensures that the net exposure to
foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable
level from time to time.

47. €W ITHE — &
SREREEEEREE — &
mEER — &

b.

(a)

(i

SRR

SN RREESREEESEE
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

@)

206 Pv1

"
v

Market risk — continued

Currency risk — continued

All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated
in HK Dollars and RMB. The Group mainly
draws borrowings in the functional currencies
of the entities as management considers the
repayments can be sourced from income to
be generated in those currencies.

As HK Dollars is pegged to US Dollars, the
Group believes the exposure of transactions
denominated in US Dollars which are entered
by group companies with a functional currency
of HK Dollars to be insignificant.

The exchange rates between HK Dollars and
MOP would not materially fluctuate, hence,
the Group’s currency risk in relation to MOP is
expected to be minimal.

The Group considers its foreign currency
exposure is mainly arising from the exposure of
RMB against HK Dollars. The Group regularly
reviews the balances of assets and liabilities
and the currencies in which the transactions
are denominated so as to minimise the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

47. €W ITHE — &

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. *HEAMREEEEREE —#
policies — continued (@) THEEKR — &
(@ Market risk — continued i)y EERB— &
(II) Currency risk — continued 7N £ [E LA HNIE A 8 7 3F T AN HE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign My EEEEREKaB(SERE
currency denominated monetary assets PEEAE)RNBRESH &R B
and monetary liabilities, with exposure to EENT
foreign currency risk which are considered as
significant by management, at the end of the
reporting periods are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=L BE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET FTHET THETT
US Dollars E7T - - 1,091 788
RMB AR 123,815 119,203 2,061,185 446,664
HK Dollars BT 24,677 24,677 15,528 26,220
MOP P 442,166 9,360 429,525 27,848
Sensitivity analysis BB T

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease

in RMB against HK Dollars and HK Dollars
against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for

a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in
profit where RMB strengthen 5% against HK
Dollars. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
HK Dollars, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year.

TRFVNAEBRARELETR
BT AR B R0 FOR 5%
B2BRBE BARNSIEEEA
BERIIERRE - JHRM5%R/H
RELE GREIFTEERRT
BEWAINERBEML 2 ERIHRE -
BRERER 6% EEEITHE
TRZEBERAREL BT LT
5% M I - ARBHLETT
BR5%E - HEREN 2 RFHER
R - W MR
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(@ Market risk — continued

(i)

(i)

Currency risk — continued
Sensitivity analysis — continued

47. €W ITHE — &
SREREEEEREE — &
mEER — &

b.

(a)

(i

SRR — &
HRESNT — B

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Increase in profit for the year % I 1 a0 80,885 13,671
Other price risk (i) EAbERE R

The Group is exposed to equity securities price
risk from its available-for-sale investments

and all of the held for trading investments.
Management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. The Group has monitored
the other price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks for
investments in equity instruments carried at
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the effect
to the profit or loss and investment revaluation
reserve of the Group is insignificant.
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
(b) Credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge obligations by the
counterparties is:

— the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;
and

—  the amount of contingent liabilities as
disclosed in note 50.

In order to minimise the credit risk of the debtors,
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
understand the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are made
to customers with good credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers and credit term granted to
customers on different business units are reviewed
regularly. In addition, the Group reviews regularly

the recoverable amount of each individual customer

to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the

directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

47. €W ITHE — &
b. *REAREEEERKEK —&

(b)

FERR
AEBEXHEFREBTEEBRT -
EHEHSREEMAEZEREER
@A

- HEMBRARLEIECHERE
MEEZEmE: M

- S0P EZHAEE -

REBEREREESZEERR &2
BEZk—/NEZEEETEEERE 5
ERUREMEETE ERILEDS
MR SRR ERE G BXEFAHFEP
- AREERRETPZEEE X
TREEEERE -ZARFEELE
LEPHAETEEHRE TREKE
NZEFHREEERBERMETEFPZE
EHHEERMRA - B AEEEE
HMEZSEHERP 2 REFE - MR
FLARBEUWR B2 FRIBME 18 E Bl - Blit
ME ARREFRR/AKEZEEH
RPN
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(b) Credit risk — continued

The Group has concentration of credit risks as
follows:

For the Paul Y. Engineering Group segment, due
to the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers

and significant concentration of credit risk by
geographic location in Hong Kong. In view of their
credit standings, good payment record in the

past and long term relationships with the Group,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is not material. At the end of the
reporting period, the outstanding balances with the
five largest customers amounted to approximately
HK$527,778,000 (2011: HK$478,280,000) in
aggregate, of which the single largest customer
represents approximately 22% (2011: 24%) of the
total debtors at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has advances together with interest
thereon to a non-trade debtor and a related
company of this debtor which are included in trade
and other debtors, deposits and prepayments,
amounting to approximately HK$262,865,000
(2011: HK$253,211,000) and HK$16,394,000
(2011: HK$16,394,000), respectively, (see note
32(c) for details) which expose the Group to the
concentration of credit risk on these counterparties.
To protect the Group’s interest, the Group has
entered into presale contracts with property
developer for certain property units in the project
and the market value of such units is higher than
the carrying amount of the outstanding balances,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s exposure to credit risk on these balances
is reduced.
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(b)

FERR —&
AEBEEERRZEFEREAT

HREZEEEI TS  HREAER
BLHAREMERRERS SIBAEEE
EACEETFERREEEF REFRR
EEZHBENE ARBESEERE
BENFEBERITRERNEAERHAH
B HMARREZERAAEEZEER
BMAEEARA - HEHELER  KERKX
BPZRERBEHE KK R527,778,000
# 7T (2011 : 478,280,000/ 7T) » H &
B KR P RS B 5T 4 0 R UR
FALER 222% (2011 : 24%) o

ZK%ﬁf%atféi%%ﬁ%/\&é%ﬁﬁ%
A—HBEBEARSIBRNT (ERERE
5 REM BRI - 5]& RIEMHRIE) &
B A D B #£)262,865,0007% 7T (2011 ¢
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(b) Credit risk — continued

With respect to concentration of credit risk arising
from amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
default of the counterparty is limited as the jointly
controlled entities have strong financial position and
the Group does not expect to incur a significant
loss for uncollected amounts due from these jointly
controlled entities.

With respect to concentration of credit risk arising
from deferred consideration receivable amounting
to HK$743,284,000 (2011: Nil) (see note 32(d) for
details), the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the counterparty is limited as no
history of default payment from the counterparty
and the Group does not expect to incur significant
loss.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, the exposure
of which spreads over a number of counterparties.

47. €W ITHE — &
b. *REAREEEERKEK —&

(b)

FERR —&
REWRHREHNEESFR 2 EERRT
FooARZARZEEEZFBERRR
o ARERENTEOMELEZEER
BRAER NEBETERTSEKRERZ
3[R 9 I A 4 M o B M R S R R A R
ZHREMBHEARNERK -

$£743,284,0007% 7T (2011 : &) Z fE UMK
EIEAE (FE1E R KT 5E32(d ))21f§ﬂ
MmE - BRE T EE RN KL K
SERHAFROAMEEZEERBRER -
AEBNEHTGRLMABRELRESL -

BN R 5% F15 R E R FREEF A
BEEMRZRT RBPE2ZEER
BRAER -
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BET HRBIBRZEXZHF
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 47.

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March
2012, the Group has available unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$456 million (2011:
HK$651 million). Details of the amounts utilised at
the end of the reporting period are set out in note
40.

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate

the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. There are
unutilised banking facilities available to finance the
Group’s working capital requirements. The Group
relies on borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. Management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants. The Group will also consider the issue
of equity instruments so as to finance its investment
projects.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities and based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting
period.

/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME
For the year ended 31 March 2012
BZ201263 A3 AILEE
47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 47. ®WMIH — @&
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. SREAREEEERKE — &
policies — continued c) RBELEAK — &
(c) Liquidity risk — continued RHESRAZAKRE

Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted More than Total

average  Ondemand 90 days and undiscounted
effective or within within ~ More than cash Carrying
interest rate 90 days 365 days 365 days flows amount

ik 33 REA #890A AERRS

BRI F90BR  BR5AM 65 il KA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

% TEL TiEL TiEL TiEL TiEL

2012 2012
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ $#j+ 4 BEHE
Trade and other creditors EHREMERES - 1,076,773 677,581 142,635 1,896,989 1,896,989
Amounts olu o associates/jointly EHBERR/
controlled entities/non-controling SRS/
interests FERER R
- non interest bearing -Rith - 122,387 71,438 32,359 226,184 226,184
- interest bearing -5 1 - 785 18,029 18,814 18,003
Bank and other borrowings ROREMER
- fixed rate -8 3.84 119,099 71,480 124,442 316,021 309,394
- variable rate -38 487 1,236,110 358,309 931,162 2,525,581 2,325,610
Financial quarantee contracts BHERAN - 2,208 43157 360,618 406,003 -
2,596,597 1,222,750 1,609,245 5,388,592 4.776,180
2011 2011
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 44 @EE
Trade and other creditors BAREMERER = 656,988 430,469 263878 1,351,335 1,351,335
Amounts due to related companies/  EFEEAF/
associates/jointly controlled BENA/ LR
entties/ non-controlling interests BB/ FERiESTE
-non interest bearing hE: - 68,140 8,711 56,550 133,401 133,401
- interest bearing -HE 1 - 2,534 19,842 22,376 21,378
Bank and other borrowings ROREMER
- fixed rate -E8 382 128,974 25,313 - 154,287 150,584
- variable rate -%8 511 747,885 400,479 870,930 2,019,204 1,843,305
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREN = 65,321 - - 65,321 -

1,667,308 867,506 1,211,200 3,746,014 3,500,003

Pld resmaras 0Fs 213



/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

(©

Liquidity risk — continued
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement
for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counter party to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject

to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

c. Fairvalue

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

'
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
c. Fair value — continued

47. €W ITHE — &

c. RYEEE—#
Fair value measurements recognised in the ERGEMERRRPERZ AT EETE
consolidated statement of financial position
LTI ERRHE-—BESBRIAZHST /T
The following table provides an analysis of financial B SERE Y AV EEHSE  ARE R
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial CE=  BREEATEESRESE -
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is o R—ATEBEHERARY BER
observable. BERNERTIS BB (FERE) B -
e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived " AT AR —
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for * ;E’:;_ “;Eg{ ;ZZR 1 E ~ i j EHEZ
identical assets or liabilities. wEI - & éé ﬂ; {2 AT ﬁ’g Z; At
BAEE (AT AEETAER] BB
e Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived REBRI])ETE -
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or . R=ERNTEEZGHERHERD 8
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. A IR AR T 5 BUR 2 A B (3F
derived from prices). ABRHARB) CEERABEMET -
e | evel 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
31.3.2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ER— BiR= Bxr= &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET FHET FET
FINANCIAL ASSETS tRMEE
Investments held for trading BIEEERE 60,439 - - 60,439
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 75 - - 75
TOTAL &5t 60,514 - - 60,514
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued
c. Fair value — continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

47. €W ITHE — &
c. AVEE—%
ERGEEUBERRRTIBERZLAFEETE

i
— &

— continued
31.3.2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EiR— Bix—= ER= A&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAET FHET FHT

FINANCIAL ASSETS SRMEE
Investments held for trading BIEEERSE 46,942 - - 46,942
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 91 - 341 432
TOTAL &%t 47,033 - 341 47,374

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for
both years.

48. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
in banks and investments in money market instruments, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related
items in the consolidated statement of financial position as

RREEEmMS BR—REBRX-_2BHE
iz o

48. BehHBEEEHEER
REARSREAMS HARERLSHEERSR
EFERBARSURNREETHBIAZRE M
BAEERTES NARSHTHER  SARD
MERMBETFRARERSSHEEEJAESY
BMRRERAZABBEEHENT

follows:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Short term bank deposits WHERITIER 450,579 371,277
Bank balances and cash RITEFRAS 557,656 657,799
1,008,235 1,029,076

Cash and bank balances classified as held DEERBEHEZES R
for sale (note 17) RITEETT (Hfa17) - 128,341

1,008,235 1,157,417
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49. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 49,
The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit

KR FET 8
AEERAEREERECD REHRNENKENG

schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are separately held in funds under the control of
trustees.

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries in the
PRC are required to contribute a specified percentage of
their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The cost charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions paid and payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where
there are employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At the end of the reporting period, there were no material
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the Group’s
contributions becoming fully vested and which are available
to reduce the contributions payable by the Group in future
years.

With effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at the rates specified

in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

2 ZEHECEEARAEAECEZLSRESEY
BA -

AEBETEMNBRARZEER - 2 i EBUTHT
ZERERRARBANGFEZKE - hEHERF
ARFEAZFELD - RRKE N E B L4
Ko REBMERKGENTEZME—FE - BEFS
BRREHRR -

R RRERBEZER RAKERZEFEZ
BRAME PN TFES2HR - WEBEANE
BASERFAN 2 HERAMELZEFAE KK
B A R AT HOR W R 2 2 BIE R, ©

RBEMTER YERNEERRSFAIZFEAEE
HHAM 2 MESAMREZFHEMELEZEKR
08 US4 R e AT A R 5 B TR R 2R 4R R D B A R
ZERBIHR -

2000512 A1H R - ANE B A& &M AR S5
B ([aEesrdll) -aEeta e RERBIMER
BestEGAERFERAESEERER - 8ES
HEZEEBURASEZEE  ABIUZEAL
HoESRHE REBRESHEA R EEXRE
BY9ES BRAAFTAZ LKA EER - AEH
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

49. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES — continued 49.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the

MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contributions paid and payable to the funds by the
Group at the rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

During the year, the total retirement benefit scheme
contributions charged to consolidated income statement
amounted to approximately HK$18,022,000 (2011:
HK$16,275,000).

50. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 50.

Apart from the claim described in note 32(c), the Group has
the following contingent liabilities:

RABREE — @&

A dlmEh 2 RNBFFEHRIESES
W RN - HERARB R BRATHZLLE
AEE DN BN Z R -

FR - REERERATHE ZRIKERTEHRA
B84 418,022,000/ 7T (2011 : 16,275,000/ 7T ) °

HREME
BRI EES2(c)fmll z REIN  ARBEAUATHARE:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHTT
Indemnities issued to banks for performance BUTATEREZEESLNMR
bonds in respect of construction contracts RITIREEARE ¢
undertaken by:
— an associate — — A& 2 A 5,589 3,542
— jointly controlled entities — HEEHI R 33,255 33,255
38,844 36,797
Guarantees given to banks in respect of FATALTERZETEERT
banking facilities granted to: RITEAR
— third parties —-%=5 70,046 65,321
- an investee ——RKEKRER 335,957 -
406,003 65,321
444,847 102,118

The Company’s directors consider that the fair value of the
financial guarantees at the initial date of providing these
guarantees is insignificant.
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51. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 51. REMEERIE
(@) The Group as a lessee: (a) AKEERZEEA:
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBRERRER  REBETAREZ AR
commitments for future minimum lease payments T HER AR HEYELRKRE L#
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of WIS ETBAFESERRRER S RERIE -
leasehold interest in land, rented premises and plant and B EAYE Y TAHII T
machinery which fall due as follows:
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Within one year —&FR" 28,666 26,428
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZENLF(FRME
BEEA) 41,995 58,398
Over five years BiBAF 7,640 25,317
78,301 110,143
Leases are negotiated, and monthly rentals are fixed, for MOzENkBAEETE  FTEHRA—
terms ranging from one to thirty years. FE=1F F-
(b) The Group as a Iess9r: | (b) AEBMESEBA
At ”t‘e et”‘?jofg‘]et repotrt”_‘g pe”Od; ”}e,tGTOUp thad t REEHERE ASERERENEYH
con rag ed with tenan .slm respect of its inves merj Bk R AR S HETY - ST
properties for future minimum lease payments which fall
due as follows:
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 11,667 10,928
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERF(HEEME
BEERN) 21,042 23,450
Over five years il A F 19,998 21,872
52,707 56,250

Operating lease arrangements represent rentals
receivable by the Group for certain of its premises.
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 year to
10 years.

REHERFEASEREMERK 2ES -
MOZBHTERRBE—FETFITE -
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52. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 52.

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were
pledged to banks and financial institutions to secure the
general credit facilities granted to the Group:

AEERHA

RBERTER  THEECERTRIT R BH
B ERARERB—REERE KR :

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$000

FHET FHTT

Investment properties A 210,376 190,024
Property, plant and equipment M - R R 863,295 733,508
Prepaid lease payments B HEERE 248,959 248,996
Bank deposits (note) RITIE R (M 3E) 732,226 83,532
Trade receivables JEWE 5 BR X 12,330 50,475
Other intangible assets Hi\EpEE 33,712 97,740
Project under development #RPIER - 221,385
Stock of properties MEFE 144,783 449,986
Inventory eSS - 16,966
2,245,681 2,092,612

In addition, the Company’s investment in certain subsidiaries
of approximately HK$295,541,000 (2011: HK$140,614,000)
and the Group’s benefits under certain construction contracts
were pledged to secure the facilities granted.

Note: The pledged bank deposits included approximately
RMB575,064,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$709,080,000)
(2011: Nil) which were denominated in RMB and deposited in

BN ARBARETHERAZEEY
295,541,0007% 7t (2011 : 140,614,000/ 7T) & 7
EENETREANZNED TERS  (EAFER

HEEZER -

M EEFRTERERE —"SEAEPNARE
575,064,0007T (1 & 7 4709,080,000/ 7T )
(2011 B)AARBHESEFTRE B ZHE -

Hong Kong.
53. COMMITMENTS 53. &I
2012 2011
HK$’000 HIK$’'000
FExT AT
Expenditure contracted for but not provided HUELTERBTHERR
in the consolidated financial statements RAEMBRENBEBE 2RAL
in respect of acquisition of:
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - W KRHRE 97,441 145,757
— Project under development —EEFIHEA - 44,565
97,441 190,322
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RE KB RMET

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BE201243A31BILFE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 54. BBATIRZ RER
BALANCES (@ KRV BHRREMBOBEEN FA-
(@) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated REBETEEETHEBALTII LU TEARS

financial statements, the Group also entered into the
following significant transactions with certain related
parties during the year:

2012 2011
Class of related party Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
BB ALT 28R REME FTET FET

Associates of the Group Sale of properties by the Group

REEZHERNT AEBHENME 24,704 -
Project management fees charged by the Group
ASEYRBEEEREE - 11,739
Construction works charged by the Group
AEEWERETEE 6,384 -
Construction works charged to the Group
AR TRETIRE 98,565 123,986
Interest charged to the Group
AEESAFIE - 2,627
Service fees charged by the Group
AEEWMRBE 610 242

Jointly controlled entities of the Group Service fees charged by the Group

AEEZ AREHIHE AEEWMRBE 15 15
Construction works charged by the Group
AEEURELTIRRE 260,536 76,420
Construction works charged to the Group
AEESNEETRE 23,849 -
Sale of properties by the Group
AEEHEME 19,956 -

Subsidiaries of ITC (note) Interest charged to the Group
EECEWBERR (F ) AEEZRHE - 221
Rentals charged to the Group

KEELHAS 240 360
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

54, BBALIRBRESG — &

BALANCES — continued @) — &
(@) — continued
Bt -
Note:
BHCERADAZEIEZERRREARAFTERY
[TC is the substantial shareholder of, and has significant influence BHo s EEEETAEEAERAAT Y T

over, the Company. In addition, Dr Chan Kwok Keung, Charles

is the substantial shareholder and director of both ITC and the

Company. ) BERAMEIEEBEINE NMFHES
(b) The remuneration of directors and other members of key E2EMFIABZRARTH BT MEE -
management, which is determined by the remuneration BT

committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends, is as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Short-term benefits SE-EEER] 80,068 44,381
Post-employment benefits RIKAE R 557 476
Share-based payment expense AR I 2 B H - 252
80,625 45,109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

54. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 54, BBMAIRGRER — &
BALANCES — continued b) — &
(b) — continued
FARTEFARMATEAEARARD Z
Details of the share options for the Company’s shares BERRAE S HEENT
granted to the directors or outstanding during the year
are set out below:

Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
price per as at during as at
Name of director  Date of grant Exercise period share 1.4.2011 the year 31.3.2012
BROEE
HK$ #1.4.2011 74831.3.2012
BEpg REAH (ixid BT e RAT ERXN e R AT
LauKo Yuen, Tom  28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to % 26.8.2012 0.43762 18,416,666 - 18,416,666
5@ 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to Z 26.8.2012 0.52940 18,416,666 - 18,416,666
Chan Shu Kin 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to £ 26.8.2012 0.43762 1,841,666 - 1,841,666
R s 2 28.12.2004 28.12.2004 to Z 26.8.2012 0.52940 1,841,666 - 1,841,666
Leung Po Wing, 8.9.2006 8.9.2006 to £ 26.8.2012 0.85762 3,683,334 - 3,683,334
Bowen Joseph
Li Chang An 6.2.2007 6.2.2007 to £ 26.8.2012 106881 3,683,334 - 3,683,334
ZER
Sub-total/Nir 47,833,332 - 47,883,332
(c) Details of the balances with related companies, () MIBEHTHEN  BBAF BEQARHE
associates and jointly controlled entities at the end of () 42 Tl 6 18 2 1 R A% R S 1B DI RO BT RE29
the reporting period are set out in notes 29, 30, 36, 37 30363739 -
and 39.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

55. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the

reporting period includes:

55. RQFIZzHMBER

RBEHTER  AEREZHMBERBRE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Assets BE 3,638,853 3,407,627
Liabilities =R (1,939,545) (1,434,987)
1,699,308 1,972,640
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EEXR#E
Share capital LN 455,849 452,913
Reserves (Note) &1 (M at) 1,243,459 1,519,727
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS BRES 1,699,308 1,972,640
Note: Bt
Share-
Convertible based
Share notes payment Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
TER URHX A
iR E ZERE RERE REET At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT T TFAL FATL
At 1 April 2010 201054518 489,421 8,482 14,116 1,081,674 1,593,693
Recognition of equity-settled share-based AUNROSTNTEZER
payment expense - - 261 - 261
Release upon lapse of vested options EEBERELNSER - = (4,826) 4,826 -
Release upon maturity of convertible notes T 0 P 2 0 T A e = (8:482) = 8,482 =
Loss for the year EEHE = = = (74,227) (74,227)
At 31 March 2011 R2011E3A318 489,421 - 9,551 1,020,755 1,519,727
Issue of shares under scrip dividend scheme REARK S ERTRG 4,073 = = = 4,073
Release upon lapse of vested options EEBEREANSEER - = (7,102) 7,102 =
Distribution (note 15) 2k (KEE15) - - = (135,874) (135,874)
Loss for the year EEER - - - (144,467) (144,467)
At 31 March 2012 R20126E3A31H 493,494 - 2,449 741,516 1,243,459
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REMBERRME
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EZE2012F3A31BILFE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 56. TEMBAR HELARAFERHE
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED &8
ENTITIES () AR EEHE A A R20124 201143

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
31 March 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

S1RZFHBHOT

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital
BRfTRE/EMERAS L
Place of .
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid held by the
registration/ share capital/ subsidiaries/ attributable
L operation registered capital Company* . L
Name of subsidiary P BRAR to the Group Principal activities
R/ BERE/ HEEAR/
HEARER EEME EMER ARAE AEBELR IEXH
2011 2012 2011 2012
% % % %
China Earth Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 61.92 61.92 Investment holding
ERERAR &R AT ERRER REBR
Corless Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Investment holding
ABRAES BT ERRRR RERR
Feeder Port Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$27,840 ordinary shares 94.61 100 94.61 100 Investment holding
EERARE 27 BAOETEBRIRIA REER
Glory Well Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary shares 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
BEERAA Tk 10,000% 7T & BAR R 12 REER
Jiangsu Wanhua Real Estate PRC US$8,800,000 100 100 100 100 Development, investment
Development Co., Ltd. i registered capital and sale of properties
THEERNEREARAA (note (i) below) WEER RERHE
8,800,000%
SRER(FXMH))
Jiangsu Yangtong Investment PRC US$30,000,000 75 75 75 75 Development of
and Development Co., Ltd. HE registered capital infrastructure and port
IHEFBREREARAR (note (i below) related facilities
30,000,000% 7T EERENRMBER
B A (T k)
Jiaxing Feeder Port Investment Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 94.61 100 Ports operation and
Limited Bk 1ETERRRHD infrastructure
RANTBREFRAR investment
BOBERERRE
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012

BZE20129F3A31HILFE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES — continued

56. TEMBLAE BHEQXTARARZHHEE

a8 —a

(a) — &

C) PYI Corporation Limited 2012 Annual Report

(@) — continued
Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital
BRfTRE/ERMERAS L
Place of .
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid held by the
registration/ share capital/ subsidiaries/ attributable
. operation registered capital Company* . -
Name of subsidiary P BRER to the Group Principal activities
RI/ER/ BRERE/ 0 NGV
WELRER EENE EMER ARERR AEEER IEEY
2011 2012 2011 2012
% % % %
Jiaxing International Gontainer PRC RMB128,800,000 920 20 85.15 90 Port development
Feeder Port Limited i registered capital BORE
EENTEREERER (note (i) below)
BRAA AR 128,800,000
HEMER (T XA )
Nation Cheer Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 orclinary shares 100 100 100 100 Securities investment
SERERRAT & 1,200,000/ 7% B3 EHiRE
Paul Y. Building Materials Hong Kong HKS2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Trading and installation of
Company Limited & 2B ERRRG building materials
BEMHES RER
Paul Y. Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 100 100 Ports operation and
RELEERAT B 2B ERRIRG infrastructure investment
ROEERERRE
Paul Y. - Concentric Joint Venture  Hong Kong = 51 51 31.58 31.58 Civil engineering
2 (note (ii) below) TARIRE
(Fchizi)
Paul Y. - CREC(HK) Joint Venture Hong Kong - 60 60 37.15 37.15 Civil engineering
5 (note (i) below) TAIE
(Fxhiztiy)
Paul Y. (E & M) Contractors Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$20,000,000  99.9998 99,9998 61.92 61.92 Provision of electrical,
REBETRERAF % ordinary shares mechanical and buiding
20,000,000 SRRRLA senvices
RUEEHRBERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

200,000,000 T SRR

REMBERRME
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE
56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 56. FEMBAR -HEQXRARIFEFKE
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED 'R —&
ENTITIES — continued (@) — &
(@) — continued
Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital
BRfTRE/ERMERAS L
Place of )
incorporation/ Issued Td fully ptzll(; held by the
registration/ HIERSET] subsidiaries/ i
o 0 iration registered capital Company® EILIELS R
Name of subsidiary p BRH R pany to the Group Principal activities
RI/ER/ BRERE/ 0 NGV
WELRER EENE EMER ARERR AEEER IEEY
2011 2012 2011 2012
% % % %
Paul Y. Builders Group Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Investment holding
REREEERRAT Bk BT ERRRR REmR
HK$1,000,000 non-voting - - - -
deferred shares
(note (iv) below)
10000008 TR EEE
ERBARS (FxHiHi)
Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong HK$102,000,000 100 100 61.92 61.92 Buiding construction
REZEERAA % ordinary shares BT
102,000,007 7¢ & B
Paul Y. Construction & Engineering ~ Hong Kong HK$42,000,000 100 100 61.92 61.92 Buiding construction and
Co. Limited % ordinary shares specialist works
RERETRERAR 42,000,000 EARRH BYRERSRTR
Paul Y. Construction Singapore $$50,000 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Construction
& Engineering Pte. Limited g 50,0008 05T S BARAR BETRE
Paul Y. Contracting Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Construction
B 100A T EBRR(A BETR
Paul Y. Engineering (BV) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$123,868,229 - 100 - 61.92 Investment holding
RERIAEE ordinary shares REZR
123,868,229 T EERIR 1A
Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ~ Bermuda HK$121,390,864 61.92 61.92 61.92 61.92 Investment holding
REREXEEERAR BRE ordinary shares REZR
121,390,864/ L & BRR
Paul Y. Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 61.92 61.92 Provision of finance
REHBERAR &R AT ERRER RALEE
Paul Y. General Contractors Limited  Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100 100 61.92 61.92 Civil engineering and
RERLELEFRAF % ordinary shares building construction

TATREETRE
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REMBERRME
For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE
56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 56. TEMBAR BELARLAFEFHE
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED 'R —&
ENTITIES — continued (@) — &
(@) — continued
Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital
BRfTRE/ERMERAS L
Place of .
incorporation/ Issued :;:r:ulgp?tjl(; held by the
Name of subsidiary ‘r)ep%f;;‘::‘on/ registered cap_ital sgl;j:‘d;::;f/ t:t:::lg::llle Principal activiti
BRAE p rincipal activities
R/ &/ BERE/ HEEAR/
WELRER EENE EMER ARERR AEEER IEEY
2011 2012 2011 2012
% % % %
Paul Y. Interior Contractors Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Interior decoration works
REEHTRARAT B BT EBRRH and services
EREBIRERE
Paul Y. Management Contracting British Virgin Islands US$2,000 ordlinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Investment holding
Group Limited RERLES 2,000% T K BRI RERR
RERZTEEEERAR
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Trading and letting of
REEHEEERAR B BT EBRRLA plant and machinery
REREHE SRS
Paul Y. Construction Company, Hong Kong HKS$2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Civil engineering,
Limited BE 2B ERRRG buiding construction
REREARAA and investment holding
IAIR  BFRER
REmR
HK$50,000,000 - - - -
non-voting
preferred shares
(note (1) below)
50,000 000 TR E
\ BEmMS (FxHH)
Paul Y. Construction (China) Limted ~ PRC RMB120,000,000 100 100 61.92 61.92 Civil engineering and
RERE (PE) ARAR HE registered capital buiding construction
(note () below) TATRRETRE
AR 120,000,0007C
SMER(TxhH))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

@)

56. TEMBLAE BHEQXTARARZHHEE

a8 —a

(a) — &

— continued
Percentage of issued share capital/
registered capital
BRfTRE/ERMERAS L
Place of )
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid held by the
registration/ share capial subsidiaries/ attributable
. operation registered capital Company* . -
Name of subsidiary p BRER to the Group Principal activities
RI/ER/ BRERE/ 0 NGV
WELRER EENE EMER ARERR AEEER IEEY
2011 2012 2011 2012
% % % %
Paul Y. Facilities Management Co.,  Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Faciliies management
Limited BB BT EBRRA senvices
REREERERAR HE IR
Paul Y. Foundation Holdings British Virgin Islands USS$1 ordinary share 100 100 61.92 61.92 Investment holding
Limited EBRRES 1XTERRRH RERR
Paul Y. Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 61.92 61.92 Civil engineering and
REHEERAT i ordinary shares foundation works
10,000,000/ 70 & AR Bk (7 ITAIRRBELR
Paul Y. Foundation (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 100 100 61.92 61.92 Civil engineering and
Limited P registered capital foundation works
REDE (RF9) ARAF 25,000 8P TR M AR TATRRMETR
Paul Y. Management Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Management and
REEEARAR & 2B ERRR(A secretarial senvioes
ERRHERK
Paul Y. Project Management Hong Kong HKS2 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Project management
International Limited B% 2B ERRRA senvioes and investment
REBBIRERARAR holding
BRERRBRRERR
Paul Y. Specialist Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary shares 100 100 61.92 61.92 Construction
Bk 1,000 7% BRI BEIR
PY Construction (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 registered capital 100 100 61.92 61.92 Construction
RERERE (7) ARAR il 25,000%M T AR BEIR
PYI Infrastructure Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 orclinery share 100" 100 100 100 Investment holding
ZERLHS 1ETEBRRA REEK
PYI Management Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 ordinary shares 100 100 100 100 Management services
RESEERERAF i 2B ERRR(A BEMRK
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES — continued

@)

230 P

— continued

Name of subsidiary

HEARZE

PYI Min Sheng Investment Limited

REREREBRAR

PY! Properties (HK) Limited
RERE (B4) ARAA

PYI Xingdong Properties (Jiangsu)

Limited

RERREZ (TH)BRAT

PYI Yichang Investment Limited

REEERARRAA

Unistress Goncrete Products (HK.)

Limited

BhERtsm (B8 ERAA

Yangtze Feeder Port Limited

R=ANTEERAT

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

R/ &/
EENY

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
&E

PRC
i

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BEAR
BRERE/
EHEA

HK$2 ordinary shares
2B ERRER

HK$1 ordinary share
AT SRR

1$$20,000,000
registered capital
(note (i) below)
20,000,000% 7
SEMER(FXHH)

HK$1 ordinary share
1ATERRRH

HK$200,000 ordinary shares
2000005 T E ER KD

HK$1,000,000

non-voting

deferred shares

(note (iv) below)
1,000,003 T EREE
RRBMR (F i)

HKS1 ordinary share
BT ERRER
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56. TEMBLAE BHEQXTARARZHHEE

a8 —a

(a) — &

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital
BRfTRE/ERMERAS L
held by the
subsidiaries/ attributable
Company* to the Group
HHEAR/
ARERR AEEER
2011 2012 2011 2012
% % % %
100 100 100 100
100 100 100 100
100 100 100 100
100 100 100 100
100 100 61.92 61.92
100 100 61.92 61.92
100 100 94,61 100

Principal activities

IREH

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Development, investment
and sale of properties

NEER RARHE

Ports operation and
infrastructure investment
EOEERERRE

Manufacturing, trading and
installation of concrete
products and
construction works

BRIERYE 85
ALK REETR

Investment holding
REZR
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES — continued

@)

— continued

Name of subsidiary

HEARZE

Yichang Port Group Limited
HEABEEEREEAT

A RERRRILRARAR

HIERERRERRISR

BRAT

MIXBERBRAR

RNEBHERERRAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

R/ &/
EENY

PRC
hE

PRC
hE

PRC
hE

PRC
hE

PRC
FEl

Issued and fully paid
share capital/
registered capital
BEAR
BRERE/
EHEA

RMB203,690,000
registered capital

(note (i) below)
ARH#203,690,0007
&R (ki)

US$41,000,000
registered capital

(note () below)
41,000,000% 7T
AR (M)

US$15,000,000

registered capital

(notes () and (v}) below)
15,000000%70
AEMER(FXHEEW)

RMB30,000,000
registered capital

(note () below)
AR#30,000,0007
AMER(FXHH))

RMB10,000,000
registered capital

(note () below)
AR10,000,0007
AR (TxhH))

56. TEMBLAE BHEQXTARARZHHEE
BE®—m

(a) — &

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital
BRfTRE/ERMERAS L
held by the
subsidiaries/ attributable
Company* to the Group
HHEAR/
ARERR AEEER
2011 2012 2011 2012
% % % %
51 51 51 51
100 100 100 100
100 100 100 100
100 100 80.96 80.96
100 100 80.96 80.96

Principal activities

IREH

Port operation
BOEE

LPG distribution and
logistics
BICRBREHER DR

LPG technical research
and development
RICRBRRITHER

R

Investment holding

REER

Property holding
RIS

The company is directly held by the Company.

ZABHARNRAEERE -
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HZE20129F3A31HILEE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(@) — continued

All of the above subsidiaries are limited companies
except Paul Y. — Concentric Joint Venture and Paul Y.
— CREC(HK) Joint Venture which are unincorporated
bodies. Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited is listed in
Hong Kong.

Notes:
(i) Being the wholly-foreign-owned-enterprises.
(i) Being the sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

@iy ~ There is no issued share capital/registered capital for the joint
ventures as they are unincorporated bodies.

(iv)  The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled
to vote, are not entitled to any dividends for any financial
year and are, on winding up or otherwise, only entitled out
of the surplus assets of the company to a return of the
capital after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has
been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company.

(v)  The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are not
entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends unless the
net profits of the company available for dividend exceed
HK$100,000,000,000 in which case they should be entitled
to a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per
annum for any financial year and are, on winding up, only
entitled out of the surplus assets of the company to a return
of the capital after a total sum of HK$10,000,000,000 has
been distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company.

(vi)  As at 31 March 2012, the registered capital of #1t R A IR
REGRFE TR AR AR is paid up to US$11,731,768. The
registered capital of all other principal subsidiaries registered
in the PRC are fully paid up as at 31 March 2012.
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56. TEMBLAE BHEQXTARARZHHEE
BE®—m

(a) — &

LB B AR ABR AR - HPaul Y. -
Concentric Joint Venture 2 Paul Y.— CREC(HK)
Joint Venture R3EEAEE - REZXEEHEF
RABIERE L™ -

et
() WHERABIEBELE-
iy UFEARABFRINEEEERTA -

(i) BAREECEDIFEAEE MLEEET
A EMER -

vy WEEBERERELERFBEAERERE B
ERERTAMBRFEZRE BERA®
EZARBEREREREMEBENLTDIKARK
100,000,000,000,000/% 7T F 7% A 7] & i A% 5
BARHERBEEZBEAT  BREER -

vy HEEREREARFAEAEERER TE
BERRE  RIEZR A AR BAEF B
100,000,000,000/ 7T " EILIERA T - HEH
RREMMBFEER—BEFEAEZETE
FERRS  BERAREZAREREDIR
#%810,000,000,0008 T Tz A A @RITE
AEHBERBEEZBRT  BREEK -

(viy  FA201243A31H « it R A RRaLIR F iy 8
BAERAREHMN11,731,768% L 2 i &
Ke-FiEHEMRPEIMzEEZEMBRAAR
20126 3AB1THE MR IMELR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued (b)
(o) Particulars of the Company’s principal associates

indirectly held by the Company at 31 March 2012 and
2011 are as follows:

56.

TEMBEARA BMEQAARKBFEHES
ER—m

ARARHEBEFRBZETEHE R RIR2012F &
20113 A3TH ZFHBWT ¢

Issued and Percentage of
fully paid issued share
Place of share capital/ capital/registered
incorporation/ registered capital attributable
Name of associate registration capital to the Group Principal activities
ERTRAE AEEEEERTRE/
BENTER L/ A 2 BRA& &R ZMERB DL TEXH
2011 2012
% %

CSCEC - Paul Y. Construction PRC US$10,000,000 19.40 21.47 Civil engineering
Company Limited H registered capital and building

HRRERABERETAA (notes (a) and (b) construction

below) IARTRREFRE
10,000,000% &
AfER
(T K@) k(b))

GTECH - Paul Y. Joint Venture Hong Kong - 31 31 Provision of electrical

& (note (c) below) and mechanical
(FXHtiE(c)) services
RESEES

Jiangyin Sunan International PRC RMB400,000,000 40 40 Port operation
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. H registered capital ABOLE

IRHHERERABEERAT (note (a) below)

AR #400,000,0007T
M &R (F X Hizt(a)
Nantong Port Group Limited PRC RMB966,004,400 45 45 Port operation
BRADEBERAH HE registered capital BORE
(note (a) below)
AR #966,004,4007T
M &R (F X Hiat(a)

Zhong Yu - Paul Y. Project PRC US$500,000 24.8 24.8 Project management
Management Company H registered capital and consultancy
Limited (note (a) below) services

TR FREIRBAER 500,000% 70 A BB REARSE
BRAA &R (F X Hiat(a)

All of the above associates are held by the Company
indirectly.

LA ERRYBARREERSA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES — continued
(b) — continued

Notes:

56. TEMBLAE BHEQXTARARZHHEE
BE®—m

(o)

(@  The company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company.

(o)  PYE indirectly held 34.67% (2011: 31.33%) interest of the
company, which PYE is a 61.92% held subsidiary of the

Group.

(c)  Thereis no issued share capital/registered capital for the joint

venture as it is an unincorporated body.

(c) Particulars of the Company’s principal jointly controlled ©

entities at 31 March 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Place of
Name of jointly controlled entity incorporation

HEZHEBEE 8 AR 3 3t B

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered
capital
ERTRBERAE
/ERER

— B

GEX
@ BAAATIAEREAR -

b) RERXHEEFBAZAAZL67%(2011:
31.33% ) )HEHm REZERAEERSA
61.92% @ 2 HIB AR -

© BRAEELETDIFEAER HA\DET
A I A o

ANAR)E B AR 2 6B R2012F K20114F
SH3IBZHEBWMT ¢

Percentage of
issued share
capital attributable

to the Group Principal activities
REBERN
ERITREABEAL TEEH
2011 2012
% %

LB EEMEREBR AT PRC

H

Laing O’Rourke-Hsin Chong - Hong Kong
Paul Y. Joint Venture &

Paul Y. — Omas Joint Venture Macau

RE—REFBENT A

Paul Y. - Omas Joint Macau
Venture Company Limited !

RE-BEHEER AR

Paul Y. Penta-Ocean Joint Hong Kong
Venture a5

RMB22,264,900
registered capital
(note (a) below)
AR #22,264,9007T
ERIINE
(FxHiit(a)

(notes (b) and (c;
below)
(FXH & (b) R (c)

(notes (b) and (65
below)
(Fx Kzt o) & (d)

MOP100,000
registered capital
(note(d) below)
100,000:R 9 7T
TMEAR
(FXCHtat(d)

(notes (b) and (d)
below)
(T Bzt (o) & (d))

= 22,95 Development and
investment of
properties
MEERRIIRE

13.9 13.9 Civil engineering
TARIR

31 31 Construction
BETRE

31 31 Construction
BETR

= 31 Civil engineering
TARIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBEmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2012
HZE20129F3A31HILEE

56. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES — continued

(c) — continued
Notes:

(@)  Being an equity joint venture company which 45% interest
was held by Yichang Port Group Limited, a 51% held
subsidiary of the Group.

(b)  There is no issued share capital/registered capital for the joint
venture as it is an unincorporated body.

(c) PYE indirectly held 22.5% interest of the company, which
PYE is a 61.92% held subsidiary of the Group.

(d)  PYE indirectly held 50% interest of the company, which PYE
is a 61.92% held subsidiary of the Group.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

56. TEMBLAE BHEQXTARARZHHEE

a8 —a

() — &

Pt et

=

(8 ABROHELQNR BAEERFES1 %D M
BRAAEEAKEEBRETARIEFISY
ZHE -

el

b) HREECETDNEEIABE BWEDET
A, FEREAR -

() REREMBEFBEZAFL%ED  RERE
EEREEFEC1.02%EF 2B AR -

(d) REREXBESAZAFS0NEDR  REZXE
RBAEERH61.92% 5% 2 B A -

ERAIIRESRRIEFEAKTEFEEEAL
HRARERIENEEFELARAMBAR - B
ERABIRARZEHEE -BEERA FIEECHE
DA BERRRARZESERBEZERBSRET
£ o

BEMBARENFRETEANEEES -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

For the year ended 31 March
BZSAALFE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FAT FABT FET
RESULTS E44
Turnover EER 5,502,543 4,835,905 4,260,421 5,357,200 5,207,922
Profit before taxation A& A 833,297 577,295 402,484 466,040 560,612
Taxation Biom (315,186)  (327,784)  (165,764)  (166,852)  (191,595)
Profit for the year FE A 518,111 249,511 236,720 299,188 369,017
Attributable to: el
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE VSN 359,982 138,794 149,298 200,104 334,072
Non-controlling interests Bl 158,129 110,717 87,422 99,084 34,945
518,111 249,511 236,720 299,188 369,017
At 31 March
MA3HS31H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET FAT FABT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Total assets BB E 10,361,473 12,315,942 14,041,000 14,894,955 11,827,762
Total liabilities BwEE (6,252,163) (7,767,925) (8,383,510) (8,569,395) (6,539,504)
4,109,310 4,548,017 5,657,490 6,325,560 5,288,258
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners KAREEE A
of the Company G 3,377,085 3,646,596 4,129,679 4,500,613 4,609,939
Non-controlling interests JEIERR R RS 732,225 901,421 1,527,811 1,824,947 678,319
4,109,310 4,548,017 5,657,490 6,325,560 5,288,258
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BEDTREME
Estimated
Stage of completion
Location and area Existing use completion date Group interest
NEREE REAR Fe R P& ER et e B REBFTGER
0.35 sg km land being formed Undetermined use Land leveling March 2013 75%
located at the west of the AR TE % stage 201343 A
outer gate of Yangkou T BB R
Town, Rudong Country,
Nantong City, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC
BT # A @™
AR S F O SESNE A Al
0.35FHRE
SEEE R 43
STOCK OF PROPERTIES MEFE
Location and area Existing use Lease term Group interest
EREE B AR HER AEBEFGER
Nantong International Trade Center with Held for sale Leasehold with 100%
gross floor area of some 80,000 sg m FIELE medium term
88 Chongchuan Road, Nantong City, hHEHERA

Jiangsu Province, the PRC
PEDTIERE AT

=11 3&885%

HEBREESH L

FREEMAEXY80,000F 77K
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman and Managing Director
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Executive Director
Chan Yiu Lun, Alan

Non-Executive Director
Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
(With Chan Yiu Lun, Alan as alternate)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chan Shu Kin

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph aas, s,

Li Chang An

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph eas, up
Li Chang An

Remuneration Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph aas, up

Nomination Committee

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph eas, up

Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom)

Corporate Governance and Compliance Committee
(Formerly known as Compliance Committee)

Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph aas, sp

Ko Hiu Fung

Share Repurchase Committee
Chan Shu Kin (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Leung Po Wing, Bowen Joseph ass, Jp
(Alternate to Chan Shu Kin)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ko Hiu Fung
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Ko Hiu Fung
Wong Yiu Hung
(Alternate to Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Ko Hiu Fung)

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Jiangsu

BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.

CITIC Bank International Limited

DBS Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hankou Bank Co., Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
The Bank of East Asia Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

DLA Piper Hong Kong (Hong Kong)

JC Master Law Offices (PRC)

Reed Smith Richards Butler (Hong Kong)
Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co. (Hong Kong)

FINANCIAL ADVISERS

Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited

KPMG Transaction Advisory Services Limited
PricewaterhouseCoopers Consultants (Shenzhen) Limited
Somerley Limited

RERE

SR

= B

BRI
(BEEZEREEEE)

BB

mHeMEMRT AT
FTEARRT

FEIRTT (BB) BRAT
T ERIRTT

EBERIRTT
hEERRITROBR AR
FEEBITROAB AR
BEBRITROBRA A
FRERERITRNDARA T
FIERITERARA A
ERRITERAA
BEERITARAA]
EORITIRDBRA A
TR IERITIRDBR AR
LEBRERRBITRNDBRAA
RERITARAA]
BELBELRITERDA
KFIHRITER DA
KERITER DA
EEER
FIEREMEBM (AREZE)
BREE RN E AT (BB)
FMRENEB AT (FE)
BIEERERMT (F8)
REREREMEZH ()

Bt ISR

ReMBERBRLA

KPMG Transaction Advisory Services Limited
BEXBAACRI) BRAT
MBENERDA
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEH

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES ADMINISTRATORS
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited

(Share Award Scheme — Trustee)
BOCI Securities Limited

(Share Financing Plan — Custodian;

Share Option Scheme — Administrator)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
33/F, Paul Y. Centre

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel : +852 28318328

Fax : +852 2372 0641

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

WWW.PYiCOorp.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 498
American Depository Receipt PYIFY
Frankfurt Stock Exchange PYW
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=% 8 3t HE

Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
TEEXRMHE

e

5 B E515%
REREF L3312
B - +852 2831 8328
fEH : +852 2372 0641

ROBFELRE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HM 08

Bermuda

ROBFERLDE
FEMERHEAERIA
)

B

£/ KER28%

T $E I 0261

it

WWW.pyicorp.com

R 42 1557
BIBH R
LRAERES
R BB

498
PYIFY
PYW



Py rz2EE85R AT
PY1D D oyi corporation Limited

33/F, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BENEERBEESIRRELES L3318
Tel B3 :+852 2831 8328
Fax & :+852 2372 0641

WWW.pyicorp.com
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